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The English text of this annual report shall prevail over the Chinese text for the purpose of interpretation.
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Singamas Container Holdings Limited has been listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since
1993. We are one of the world’s leading container
manufacturers and a major logistics operator in the
Asian-Pacific region. Our container factory and depot
networks are among the most comprehensive in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Our manufacturing business is currently supported
by twelve factories in the PRC. Phase 1 of our new
production facilities in Qidong, Jiangsu Province was
completed and commenced trial production in July 2012.
Phase 2 of the Qidong project was completed after the
Chinese New Year break in 2013.

We manufacture a wide range of products including
dry freight containers, collapsible flatrack containers,
open top containers, bitutainer, refrigerated containers,
U.S. domestic containers, tank containers and other
specialised containers and container parts.

Our logistics business includes container depots/
terminals and logistics company, and is currently running
eleven container depots/terminals, eight at the major
ports in the PRC - Dalian, Tianjin, Qingdao, Qidong,
Shanghai, Ningbo, Fuzhou and Xiamen, two in Hong
Kong and one in Laemchabang, Thailand. We also
operate a logistics company in Xiamen, the PRC.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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REVENUE
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2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
2012
US$’000
FEx
Revenue ERE 1,536,608
Profit (loss) from operations R (B1E) 116,734
Profit (loss) attributable to RRRIRRIEL =T (BE)
owners of the Company 60,346
Basic earnings (loss) per share (US cent(s))  EAEAZF| (E18) (=) 2.49
Net asset value per share (US cents) BREEFE(FEW) 23.93
Equity attributable to owners NNSIIE a0
of the Company 579,162
Bank balances and cash RITEBR NI ® 418,430
Total borrowings (Note) weE (M) 366,480
Current ratio mEhth = 2.08to/ Lt 1
Gearing ratio BREEFE X 0.63
Net debt to equity ratio B FHRERRERL X -0.09
Interest coverage ratio FEAM = 10.24
Return on equity (%) A& AU 25 2R (%) 10.4

Note: Total borrowings represent the aggregate amount of interest-bearing debts.
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PRODUCTION OUTPUT REVENUE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to present
the operating results of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The year 2012 was one of unexpectedly depressed
world trading patterns, which had a direct impact on the
Group’s results. The Group’s consolidated revenue for the
year amounted to US$1,536,608,000, a decline of 15.5%
from the record results achieved in 2011. Consolidated
net profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to US$60,346,000, a decline of 56.5% from
2011. Basic earnings per share were US2.49 cents,
against US5.74 cents for 2011.

A combination of political and economic issues extended
the global economic downturn through 2012, and
consequently the normal increase in trade in the second
half of the year did not materialise. Both the US and
European markets remained cautious, creating a knock-
on effect on global shipping volume and new container
demand. On the other hand, new container customers,
both the shipping lines and leasing companies are very
cautious about placing orders, which also affected the
Group’s total sales. Despite a weak demand, the Group
continued to achieve profitability in 2012.
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Even the weakness of the market over the past year,
the Group can look back on a number of positive
achievements in 2012. Its operations remain highly
streamlined and cost-effective, and certain changes
carried out during the year have further strengthened
them. The new manufacturing plant in Qidong/Nantong
near Shanghai is progressing well towards full
productivity, and will be excellently placed for the eventual
market upturn. The financial position of the Group is
strong and healthy and its gearing ratio stands at a
reasonable level.

Taking a conservative viewpoint, we expect a
strengthening of trading volumes in the second half of
2013. The Group’s management, however, observes
signs suggesting an earlier pick-up. The Group is
cautiously optimistic that normal demand will begin to
return by the second quarter of 2013, and gradually
strengthen during the year.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of HK2 cents
per ordinary share (2011: HK5 cents) for the year ended
31 December 2012. Together with the interim dividend
of HK4 cents per ordinary share (2011: HK9 cents), total
dividends paid for the year would be HK6 cents per
ordinary share (2011: HK14 cents). The dividend payout
ratio for the year remains stable at around 31%.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Manufacturing

The Group’s manufacturing orders declined in 2012.
Manufacturing revenue amounted to US$1,506,200,000
against 2011’s record of US$1,782,022,000. This figure
was also affected by the lower average selling price
(*ASP”) of dry freight containers in 2012, partly as a result
of lower raw materials costs. Profit before taxation and
non-controlling interests was US$96,687,000, against
US$198,980,000 in 2011.

Manufacturing remained the Group’s primary revenue
earner. It accounted for 98% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year, same as year 2011. The Group produced
600,102 twenty-foot equivalent units (“TEUs”) during the
year, against 648,014 TEUs in 2011, while a sales volume
of 571,634 TEUs was achieved (2011: 672,382 TEUs).

The revenue contributions from dry freight containers
and specialised containers were 70.7% and 29.3%
respectively. The Group will continue its strategy of
increasing the percentage of specialised containers it
produces, in order to take advantage of the higher profit
margins they generate.

In line with the fall in the cost of raw materials, the
ASP also fell in 2012. The price of a 20-foot dry freight
container averaged US$2,452, compared with US$2,667
for 2011. Although average raw materials prices fell in
2012, they are expected to steadily increase in 20183.
This, in turn, would lead to a gradual pick-up in the ASP.

The Group’s manufacturing output is produced from
twelve separate facilities in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), which serve most of the country’s major
ports. In order to streamline the Group’s operations, on
16 October 2012, the Company has entered into a share
transfer agreement with Guangdong Fuwa Machinery
Holdings Co., Ltd. to dispose of its 100% equity
interest in Foshan Shunde Singamas Tank Container Co.,

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

EHERR
HEXRT

AEERZT—_FHRETERLD - LR
MERA TR B ERENFIIEE A -
B35 TE R L E BAER151,506,200,000 F 7T
L - ——FME £ = A1,782,022,000
E T BT AT & IEVE IR IR R = AR F
596,687,000k ;t° — T — — F 8l B
198,980,000 % 7T °

BEEBRNARTEEN T EZEEBRR
HASEFEHEETENIBY  B-FT——F
—E o FA - AEEHEEG00,102 EHRE
Hf o M-T——FR1/648,0141E - SHE=
#571,634 & (ZF——4 : 672,382 1) °

CEEBLMEREEREENEEBEL SR A
70.7% } 29.3% - H RiFEE KA A E R
£ AEEBEEETRSFESEMELR
K& o

ZE—F  AEEREMBRATR - £EEF
BHEBMBEL TH - HREEEANTIHER
24523k L —E——FH|AE2667ETT -
BARRMBFEHERE_S——F ¥ - B
HER—_E—=FBLOH - REEEHETY
EEZH LA -
AEEEFEAREMB (AR HEH
TR EERNE - AEEAITSEESD
R - BIFEEE  ARRE_Z——F
TATAHEEREERMEEEGR AT
—IERR R - BRI B B
NEEAR AT ([SSTCL)BI100% A% A kg
SSTCRIERE - EFIN ERMANEXS - F
BLSN_E—=F_A%KiE FETFY



Ltd. (“SSTC”). SSTC, based in Shunde, is exclusively
engaged in the manufacture of tank containers. After the
completion of the transaction in February 2013, orders
from new and existing customers have been transferred
to Shanghai Pacific International Container Co., Ltd., the
Group’s another tank containers manufacturing plant in
Shanghai. The proceeds generated from this disposal
have further strengthened the Group’s cash position.

The new Qidong facility has continued to move forward.
Phase 1 of the plant was completed during the year
2012, and trial production of both dry freight containers
and some specialised containers began in July. Phase 2,
which is mainly engaged in the production of refrigerated
containers, was completed after the Chinese New Year
break in 2013. Since the Group’s existing production
line for refrigerated containers in Shanghai has already
reached full capacity, the new capacity provided by
Qidong will strengthen the Group’s ability to satisfy strong
demand from the Shanghai area.

The Qidong complex also includes a new container
terminal, which has now begun operations. The new
terminal supports the production facilities to which it is
adjacent, and also further extends the Group’s network of
depots and terminals.

Logistics Services

The Group’s logistics operations, involving the operation
of a series of container depots and terminals have made
up a relatively minor part of its overall business. Due to
the overall industry downturn and the resultant lower
figures for handling and storage, segment revenue
slipped to US$30,408,000 (2011: US$35,696,000), profit
before taxation and non-controlling interests increased
to US$6,192,000 (2011: US$5,756,000), which included
a gain on disposal of a depot located in Shanghai
amounted to US$2,833,000. The Group’s logistics
operations handled around 2,990,000 TEUs in 2012
against around 3,475,000 TEUs in 2011, while average
daily container storage stood at 94,000 TEUs (2011:
99,000 TEUSs).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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During the year, the Group also disposed of one portion
of its logistics capacity, Foshan Shunde Leliu Wharf &
Container Co., Ltd. (“*SLWC”), which is engaged in the
provision of container terminal services in Shunde. In
October 2012, the Group through the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiary, namely, Singamas Terminals
(China) Limited, entered into a share transfer agreement
with Foshan Shunde Chuangijian Investment Co., Ltd.
respectively to dispose of its entire equity interests in
SLWC. As the container traffic in Shunde/Pearl River
Delta area has been decreasing in recent years, this
disposal was a strategic move aimed at streamlining
the Group’s logistics operations. The transaction was
completed in February 2013.

PROSPECTS

The Group expects the market in the first half of 2013
to remain soft, demand would firm up gradually in the
second half. Management is confident that the extended
downturn in global trade from late 2011 to early 2013 has
reached its natural turning point. Specifically, the issues
that caused economic uncertainty last year, including
the Euro debt crisis and weak US consumer confidence,
have begun to recede, paving the way for a renewed
robustness in trade and a new appetite for spending. The
continuous export growth in China also evidences the
stability of global economy.

In addition, the scheduled vessels delivery would peak
in 2013 and the accumulation of container demand
in 2012 is expected to drive up sales in 2013. Many
shipping companies have delayed replacement of aging
containers, keeping them in service throughout 2012. The
result is expected to be a spate of orders in the coming
years. This is likely to be accompanied by a rise in the
ASP of containers given the current climbing costs of raw
materials.

With these expectations, the Group is continuing to
implement its proven business model, while looking to
consolidate its operations where possible in order to
enhance profitability and optimise operational efficiency.
It is also exploring the development of new product
offerings and container solutions for customers.

il Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012
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Both phases of the new, ultra-modern and highly efficient
Qidong manufacturing plant have now been completed,
and the plants are expected to reach full operation in
mid-2013. Given an upswing in global trade allied with
a strong production base, the Group is well posed to
capture opportunities in 2013 and the coming years.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This has been another year in which a large number
of people and institutions have been essential to the
Group’s steady progress. | would like to thank our
customers and business partners, who have continued
to support us loyally over the year. My fellow board
members and talented management team have been
instrumental in making balanced strategic decisions
and giving the Group direction and momentum, even
when the business environment was slow. Moreover, our
employees at every level have worked diligently to keep
the Group’s operations running efficiently and effectively,
and | thank each one for their efforts. With such loyal
customers and dedicated personnel, from management
to factory workers, Singamas stands in a strong position
as it readies itself for the eventual market revival.

Chang Yun Chung
Chairman
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FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS
— A 2 ]

The year 2012 saw unexpectedly depressed
world trading patterns during the second half.
A combination of political and economic issues
has created major uncertainties within the global
economy. How has Singamas faced the economic
downturn and tackled the resulting challenges?

The unexpected weakness of the market in
the second half of 2012 created a ripple effect
on global shipping volume and new container
demand. New container customers are very
cautious about placing orders, which has affected
our total sales. Despite a weak demand, the
Group’s operations remain highly streamlined and
cost effective. The Group continued to achieve
profitability in 2012.

In order to streamline our operations, we disposed
of Foshan Shunde Singamas Tank Container
Co., Ltd., which is exclusively engaged in the
manufacture of tank containers and Foshan
Shunde Leliu Wharf & Container Co., Ltd., a
container terminal services provider in Shunde
during 2012. The proceeds generated from these
disposals have further strengthened our cash
position.

There are signs that the market is recovering
within the shipping industry. When do you think a
parallel recovery trend will happen in the container
industry? What is the order book looking like for
dry freight containers and specialised containers?

Taking a conservative view, we expect the market
to remain soft in the first half of 2013 with demand
gradually firming up in the second half of the year.
However, there are indications of an earlier pick-up
in trading volumes. We are cautiously optimistic
that demand will begin to return to normal by the
second quarter of 2013.

We currently have slightly more than one month
of orders on hand for both dry freight containers
and specialised containers, which is in line with the
industry norm.
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What are Singamas’ expectations for the global
trading environment during 2013? How is the
Group preparing to meet the anticipated rising
market demand in the future?

As mentioned above, we expect the global trading
environment would remain soft in the first half of
2013 but would gradually revive in the second
half. Based on this expectation, we will continue to
implement our proven business model; in addition,
we will continuously streamline our operations and
optimise our efficiency so as to enhance overall
profitability.

Both phases of the new, ultra-modern and highly
efficient Qidong manufacturing plant have been
completed, and the plants are expected to reach
full operation in mid-2013. With the completion of
the Qidong production facilities and our existing
strong production base, we are well-prepared to
meet any rise in market demand in the future.

While many shipping companies delayed
replacement of aging containers throughout 2012,
what is Singamas’ expectation for the vessels
delivery business in 20137

Based on industry publications, the scheduled
delivery of vessels would peak in 2013, with an
estimated increase in total shipping capacity of
1.8 million twenty-foot equivalent units. Besides
this enlarged shipping capacity, many shipping
companies have delayed replacement of aging
containers in the past few years resulting in
accumulated pent-up container demand. We
expect these two factors to drive up sales in the
second half of 2013 onwards.

In line with the fall in the cost of raw materials, the
average selling price (“ASP”) also fell in 2012. What
is Singamas’ expectation for the ASP of containers
in 20137

Although raw materials prices fell in 2012, they are
expected to steadily increase in 2013. We expect
the ASP would gradually pick up in line with the
increase in raw materials prices.

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS
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FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS
— iR

The construction of the new Qidong facility is well
on track. What are Singamas’ expectations for
the revenue and profit contribution of the Qidong
facility to the Group in 2013?

We expect the new Qidong facility can achieve
positive revenue and make a profit contribution to
the Group for 2013. Besides, this new capacity
can further strengthen the Group’s ability to satisfy
the strong market demand from the Shanghai area.

In view of higher profit margins enjoyed by
specialised containers, how does Singamas plan
to further expand this business in the long run?

In view of higher profit margins enjoyed by
specialised containers, we have put continuous
effort into R&D for new product development and
putting up new facilities for specialised containers.
We aim to generate around 40% to 50% of total
revenue from specialised containers in two to three
years.

Do you have any fund-raising need in 20137 What
do you expect the gearing ratio for the year 2013
will be?

Qur three-year RMB1.38 billion 4.75% notes
will come to mature in April 2014, to have a
better cash flow planning, we may consider the
refinancing options in the second half of 2013.

Our gearing ratio in 2012 remained relatively low
at 0.63 as at 31 December 2012 and the net
debt to equity ratio at -0.09, representing bank
balances and cash on hand was higher than the
total interest bearing debts. We expect our gearing
ratios in 2013 to remain healthy as we expect our
performance for the coming year to be satisfactory.

Note: “A” denotes “Answers”.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EEREEBEEASHEHMT

DIRECTORS

The Directors at the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Mr. Chang Yun Chung "° Chairman
(also known as
Mr. Teo Woon Tiong)
Mr. Teo Siong Seng "
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung *

Vice Chairman
Executive Director

(appointed on 1 March 2012)
Executive Director
Executive Director
Non-executive Director
Independent

Mr. Hsueh Chao En *
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng *
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin #2
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,

David Non-executive Director
(appointed on 1 November
2012)
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan *  Independent
Non-executive Director
Mr. Ong Ka Thai ©* Independent
Non-executive Director
Mr. Yang, Victor # Independent

Non-executive Director

# Audit Committee Member

" Management Committee Member
° Nomination Committee Member

4 Remuneration Committee Member

Brief biographical details of the Directors at the date of
this annual report are as follows:

Mr. Chang Yun Chung (also known as Mr. Teo Woon
Tiong), aged 94, Chairman, was appointed on 20 April
1993, started his shipping career in Singapore in 1949
and is the founder of Pacific International Lines (Private)
Limited (“PIL”), the controlling and substantial shareholder
of the Company as defined under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chang is the
father of Mr. Teo Siong Seng and Mr. Teo Tiou Seng.
Mr. Chang graduated from the Xiamen Datung College.
Mr. Chang is the Chairman of the PIL Group of
companies in Singapore, which is engaged in shipping
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and related businesses. He is also the Chairman of
Pacific International Lines (H.K.) Limited (“PILHK”) of
Hong Kong, a subsidiary of PIL, Maya Corporation Pte.
Ltd. of Singapore, Maya Manufacturing & Trading Co. (M)
Sdn. Bhd., Maya Plastic Sdn. Bhd., Mosfly International
(M) Sdn. Bhd. and Malaysia Shipping Corporation Sdn.
Bhd. of Malaysia, Eastern Maritime (Thailand) Ltd. and
Pacific Seatran Lines Ltd. of Thailand. Other than PILHK,
the rest of the aforesaid companies are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons of
the Company.

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, B.Sc. (Naval Architect), aged
58, was appointed on 20 April 1993, became the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 1 February 1997. Mr. Teo is a son of Mr. Chang Yun
Chung and he is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Teo started his shipping career
with the PIL Group in 1979 and was appointed the
managing director of PIL in October 1992. He is an
executive director of various PIL subsidiaries and joint
venture companies whose activities include shipowning,
liner shipping, ship agency, freight forwarding, container
manufacturing and depot/warehousing, logistics park,
supply chain management and travel. Mr. Teo is currently
an independent non-executive director of China COSCO
Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Teo is the Founding Member of
India-Singapore CEO Forum. He is also the Chairman
of The Standard Steamship Owners’ Protection and
Indemnity Association (Asia) Ltd. and Singapore Maritime
Institute Governing Council. Mr. Teo sits on the Board
of Business China. He is also a Nominated Member
of Parliament (NMP). Besides, Mr. Teo is the Honorary
Citizen of Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Yixing City, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC respectively.
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Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, aged 55, was appointed on 1
March 2012. Mr. Chan is the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company and is a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. He joined Eng Kong Container Services
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, on 1 July 1994.
He has more than 33 years of combined experience
in marketing, container depot management, container
inspection and repair, and container leasing. Prior to
joining the Company, he was the Technical Director of
Unicon International Ltd., a container surveying company
with major interests in the Far East.

Mr. Hsueh Chao En, Dip. Eng., aged 60, was appointed
on 16 May 1997, joined Shanghai Pacific International
Container Co., Ltd., a 60% owned subsidiary of
the Company, in July 1989. Mr. Hsueh graduated in
mechanical engineering from a technical institute in
Taiwan. Prior to joining the Company, he had over
10 years’ experience as a plant manager in various
container manufacturing plants in Taiwan.

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, aged 60, was appointed on 26 June
1996 as Executive Director of the Company and is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Teo
is a son of Mr. Chang Yun Chung and has been engaging
in shipping business since 1977. Mr. Teo graduated and
holds a MBA from the University of Western Ontario,
Richard Ivey School of Business — the leading business
school in Canada. He has more than 30 years of working
experience in container transport business and is also a
director of PIL and the managing director of PILHK.

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin, aged 64, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 15 July 1998.
Mr. Kuan joined PIL in 1994 as the General Manager of
the Finance Division and has been an executive director
of the Finance Division of PIL since 7 June 2004. He also
holds directorship in various PILl’s Group of Companies.
Other than their relationship with PIL, these various PILs
Group of Companies are third parties independent of the
Company and connected persons of the Company. Prior
to joining PIL, he held a number of senior financial and
accounting positions across diverse business groups,
including two public listed companies in Malaysia.
Mr. Kuan is a fellow member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (United Kingdom).
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Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, aged 64, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 November 2012. Mr. Cheng graduated in 1975 from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor (Honors)
Degree in Social Science. He has extensive experience in
banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited. He is also the
Head of Shipfinance in Asia of Crédit Agricole CIB. Credit
Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited and Crédit Agricole
CIB are third parties independent of the Company and
connected persons of the Company.

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, aged 54, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 March 2011. Mr. Lau is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master Degree in Professional Accounting. He
has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management. Mr. Lau is currently an independent
non-executive director of CCT Tech International Limited,
a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited, a
company listed on the growth enterprise market of the
Stock Exchange. CCT Tech International Limited and
Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons of
the Company.
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Mr. Ong Ka Thai, aged 58, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since 17 May 1997. Mr. Ong is currently the Chairman
of various companies including Ong Pacific (H.K.) Ltd.,
Ong First Tradition Pte. Ltd., Ong Commodities Pte. Ltd.
and Ong Pacific Capital Ltd.. These companies are third
parties independent of the Company and connected
persons of the Company. Mr. Ong graduated from the
University of California at Los Angeles with a Bachelor
of Arts Degree majoring in Economics, had served as
the CEO for a number of multinational joint ventures
since then. Mr. Ong is currently an independent non-
executive director of Shanghai International Shanghai
Growth Investment Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong was previously an independent
non-executive director of China Bohai Bank Limited.
Except for the provision of banking facilities by China
Bohai Bank Limited to subsidiaries of the Group,
Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited and China Bohai Bank Limited are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons of
the Company. Mr. Ong has over 36 years of experience in
the manufacturing, corporate and trade finance, regional
equity, futures and commodities trading, investment
banking and corporate advisory services, as well as direct
and private equity investment.
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Mr. Yang, Victor, aged 67, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 15 April 2008. Mr. Yang was a founding partner of
Boughton Peterson Yang Anderson, Solicitors, Hong
Kong and he is also a qualified lawyer in Canada and the
United Kingdom. Mr. Yang has over 39 years experience
in legal practice primarily in the areas of corporate
finance, commercial law, mergers, acquisitions and
taxation. He is presently a governor of the Canadian
Chamber of Commerce, a director of the Hong Kong
Foundation for UBC Limited, and was a board member of
Canadian International School of Hong Kong Limited and
a member of the Major Sports Events Committee of the
Home Affairs Bureau, Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Mr. Yang is also an independent non-executive
director of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited and
Playmates Toys Limited, both of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Yang resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Media Chinese International
Limited as of 1 October 2009 but was appointed the
company’s consultant on the same date. China Agri-
Industries Holdings Limited, Playmates Toys Limited and
Media Chinese International Limited, all are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons of
the Company.

All Directors, except for the managing director of the
Company who shall subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years but shall be eligible for
re-election, are subject to retirement and re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. For details
of their respective profiles, please refer to the circular
accompanied with this annual report.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management at the date of this annual report
are as follows:

President and
Chief Executive Officer

Chief Operating Officer

Senior Vice President
(appointed on 15 November
2012)

Executive Vice President —
Manufacturing Operations
(resigned on 1 January 2013)

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung
Mr. Chao Chun Yen,
Winston

Mr. Hsueh Chao En

Ms. Chung Pui King, Chief Financial Officer
Rebecca (appointed on 2 February
2013)

Vice President —
China Container Depot
Operations

Mr. Wang Yung Fu,
Terry

Details of the senior management at the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, was appointed as President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997. Please refer to the Directors section for details.

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, was appointed as Executive
Vice President of Marketing and General Manager — Hong
Kong Container Depot and Terminal Operations on 1 July
1994 and was appointed as Chief Operating Officer of
the Company on 1 November 2012. Please refer to the
Directors section for details.

Mr. Chao Chun Yen, Winston, B. Shipping and
Transportation Management, aged 63, Senior Vice
President, joined the Company on 15 November 2012
and is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Chao has more than 30 years’ experience
in shipping management and related businesses. Prior
to joining the Company, he was an executive director of
Pacific International Lines (China) Ltd..
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Mr. Hsueh Chao En, Dip. Eng., was appointed as
Executive Vice President — Manufacturing Operations of
the Company on 1 June 1993. He resigned as Executive
Vice President on 1 January 2013 but remains as
Executive Director of the Company. Please refer to the
Directors section for details.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, M.B.A., HKICPA,
FCCA, aged 44, was appointed as Chief Financial Officer
of the Company on 2 February 2013. Ms. Chung joined
the Group on 1 January 1996. She has more than
21 years of combined experience in public accountancy,
sourcing and manufacturing.

Mr. Wang Yung Fu, Terry, B. Navigation & Marine
Management, aged 52, Vice President — China Container
Depot Operations, joined the Company on 1 January
2006 and is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Wang has more than 26 years’ experience
in shipping lines and container depot management. Prior
to joining the Company, he was the General Manager of
the Qingdao Branch and Shanghai Branch of PIL.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2012, Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) has fully
complied with all the applicable principles and code
provisions of the revised Corporate Governance Code
(effective on 1 April 2012) (“the Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) as well as the
former code and also adopted certain recommended
best practices of the Code.

The board of directors (“Board”/“Directors”) of the
Company believes that appropriate corporate governance
practices are essential for the Company to enhance
its accountability and transparency so as to achieve a
balance of the interests of shareholders, customers,
employees and investment partners of the Company in
all material respects. Accordingly, the Company aims
at maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of
the Directors, all of the Directors have complied with, for
any part of the accounting period covered by this report,
the required standard set out in the Model Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Apart from its statutory and fiduciary responsibilities,
the Board is responsible for reviewing the financial
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) and approving and monitoring the Group’s
strategic plans, major investments, funding proposals and
risk management policies. The Board is also responsible
for monitoring managerial performance, achieving return
for the shareholders of the Company each year, and
promoting good corporate governance by reviewing the
recommendations made from audit committee (“Audit
Committee”), management committee, nomination
committee (“Nomination Committee”) and remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) of the Company.

The Company’s articles of association (“Articles”) provide
that if a director has a conflict of interest in a material
matter, such director must abstain from voting and
not be counted in quorum. Under such circumstance,
a full board meeting will be held instead of by way of
circulation.

The implementation of daily operations is generally or
specifically delegated to the management but Board
approval is required for material transactions such as
acquisitions and disposals of assets of the Group.
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‘ “Qﬁ ‘ “ ‘ ‘I {8 Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

BT

BREEA DAERZENEEIN  EFST
BERMARBNMEMB AR (ST AEE])
MR UHEREEAEBNRIER
g T2HREHR - @EEE  UWRERER
HER - R EFENARREEBHRE
EMEEEARRRINREFISE® : R &
ZENAEMAANRANEZZE S ([EKE
ggl) FEZE® REZEe([RRZEE
gD EkFHEZEE((FHEZES ) IREME
& HEAMRAARRNBREEER °

ARRZABEIRAMA(TEIZANA ) 51880
FEFHESEEFHILESNEER  ZEF
VERAMERENTE AL EGHAEEARLZ
W ERIBRT  EFSERVARITATE
BRI AR -

ERECEEER U TR MR T
TRBEERES - RAREFLEERER
REREE Y BAR S UERGEERNH
o




The Board currently comprises five executive Directors,
a non-executive Director and four independent
non-executive Directors. No alternative Director was
appointed during 2012. The Board members for the year
ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date are:

Executive Directors

Chang Yun Chung (Chairman)
(also known as Teo Woon Tiong)
Teo Siong Seng (Vice Chairman)
Chan Kwok Leung (“Mr. Chan”)
(appointed on 1 March 2012)
Hsueh Chao En
Tam Shuk Ping, Sylvia (“Ms. Tam”)
(appointed on 1 March 2012 but resigned on
2 February 2013)
Teo Tiou Seng

Non-executive Directors

Jin Xu Chu
(retired on 6 June 2012)
Kuan Kim Kin

Independent non-executive Directors

Cheng Fu Kwok, David (“Mr. Cheng”)
(appointed on 1 November 2012)

Lau Ho Kit, lvan

Ong Ka Thai

Yang, Victor

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 17
to 22 of this annual report. The relationships (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships) among members of the Board are also
disclosed therein.
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The Board held five meetings in 2012. The 2012 annual
general meeting (“2012 AGM”) at which the external
auditors attended was convened on 6 June 2012. No
other general meeting of the Company was held in 2012.

Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings
held for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the 2012
AGM of the Company are set out below:

EEgR T ——FEATHAREZE - =_F
—FEZRRAFRg([ZE——FKRAE
FRE)ER T —_F/NANBET > JNEE
ZERMEHE - RZTE—ZF » AQFWE
BRAHEMBRREAS -

TR ESHFHE_ZT :¢+ — A
=+—HLEFEMNESEERNK ZFRR
REAFRKgZHE

Number of attendance

HE R 8
Board 2012 AGM
meetings —_F—_fF
Name of Directors EEna EExgEgx BREAFEXE
Chang Yun Chung bas 3/5 0/1
(also known as Teo Woon Tiong)
Teo Siong Seng SRINEER 5/5 1/1
Chan Kwok Leung PeR B £ 4/5 1/1
(appointed on 1 March 2012) (R-F——F = F—HEZT)
Hsueh Chao En R 3/5 0/1
Tam Shuk Ping, Sylvia UK 5/5 1/1
(appointed on 1 March 2012 (RZFE——F=H—HEZ(F -
but resigned on 2 February 2013) WR-ZF—=4F—H = HFT)
Teo Tiou Seng sREARE 4/5 1/1
Jin Xu Chu 2MEH) 1/2 01
(retired on 6 June 2012) (R=ZF——FNHANHREF)
Kuan Kim Kin ARt 4/5 0/1
Cheng Fu Kwok, David 8 B 2/2 N/A T~ A
(appointed on 1 November 2012) (RZF——F+—H—HEZF)
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2 n] £ 5/5 1/1
Ong Ka Thai FRZFE 5/5 0/1
Yang, Victor 5 4/5 1/1
As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the EAYESREEZ —8t)  EFETKE
Directors are updated with latest developments regarding ~ #1A B LM AR R R EMEMREERE < &%

the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time to ensure compliance of
the same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged
to attend external forum or training courses on relevant
topics which may count towards continuous professional
development training.
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Pursuant to the revised Code, which has come into
effect from 1 April 2012, Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. For the period from 1 April 2012 to
31 December 2012, all Directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development
activities either by attending training courses or by
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or
to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

The participation by individual Directors in 2012 is
recorded in the table below:
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Participation in Continuous
Professional Development in 2012
—F-HFSHEZEEERER

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/
Reading conferences
materials HEERENE
Name of Directors EEEE FEE R Lk
Chang Yun Chung KA H v v
(@also known as Teo Woon Tiong)
Teo Siong Seng SRINEE v v
Chan Kwok Leung PR B ER v v
(appointed on 1 March 2012) (R-ZFE——F=H—HEZT)
Hsueh Chao En BREER v v
Tam Shuk Ping, Sylvia ERUK v/
(appointed on 1 March 2012 (RZF——F=H—HEZT -
but resigned on 2 February 2013) TR —F— =4 — = HEFHT)
Teo Tiou Seng SREAE v v
Jin Xu Chu &BY) v v
(retired on 6 June 2012) (R-—FE——F N HNHRIE)
Kuan Kim Kin AR v v
Cheng Fu Kwok, David B [ v
(appointed on 1 November 2012)  (R=ZF——F+—H—HEZ(F)
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2] v
Ong Ka Thai FxZFE v v
Yang, Victor %A v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and exercised by different individuals. Mr. Chang
Yun Chung (also known as Mr. Teo Woon Tiong) serves
as the Chairman and Mr. Teo Siong Seng serves as the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
The Chairman focuses on Board issues and the Group’s
overall strategies. The President and Chief Executive
Officer has overall responsibility for the daily operations
and general development of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

According to the service agreements entered into
between each of the non-executive Director or
independent non-executive Director and the Company,
the term of appointment is generally for one year but
subject to retirement and shall be eligible for re-election
at annual general meetings (“AGM”) under the Articles.

Under the Articles, every Director, other than the
Managing Director who shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years, shall retire from office at
AGM but shall be eligible for re-election.

Under the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting of the Company
after such Director’s appointment.

The Company’s circular of its AGM contained detailed
information on election of Directors, including detailed
biographies, interests, and (where appropriate)
independence of all Directors standing for re-election.

Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the
Company has received a written confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence
to the Company. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

I T
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BOARD COMMITTEES

1.

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee
to investigate and handle matters within its terms
of reference and make recommendations to
the Board for any necessary improvement. The
full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company'’s
website (http://www.singamas.com).

The current members of the Audit Committee
include two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan (Chairman) and Mr.
Yang, Victor, and a non-executive Director, namely,
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin. None of them is a former partner
of the existing external auditors of the Company.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the
findings and recommendations to the Board after
each meeting.
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The Audit Committee has regular meetings at least ERZESTHRTEE 5P BFW
twice a year. In 2012, a total of three meetings ReMRZE—ZF  BEREZEEHEH
were convened and held with satisfactory MBUITZRG% EHERSARE -
attendance. The details of Audit Committee RZZE——F BRBEZZEENEN

members’ attendance in 2012 are as follows: HE R EFEFIE AT -
Attendance
(in person)
(RABFERE)

Committee members ZEENE

Lau Ho Kit, lvan (Chairman) 2nTEE(F/E) 3/3
Kuan Kim Kin B iR 2/3
Yang, Victor 15 &R 3/3

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties. The Audit
Committee is accountable to the Board and
minutes of meetings are circulated to the Board for
information.
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The following is a summary of the work of the Audit
Committee during the year under review:

(@) reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial
reports for the year ended 31 December
2011 and for the six months ended 30 June
2012;

(b)  reviewed the external auditors’ statutory
audit plan and the letters of representation;

(©) reviewed the findings and recommendations
of the internal auditors;

(d)  considered and approved the 2012 audit
fees and terms of engagement for the
external auditors;

(e) reviewed the “Continuing Connected
Transactions” set forth on pages 50 to 55 of
this annual report; and

4] reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems of the
Group.

On 22 March 2013, the Audit Committee met to
review the 2012 consolidated financial statements,
including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, in conjunction with external
auditors. Based on this review and discussions
with the management and external auditors,
the Audit Committee endorsed the accounting
treatment adopted by the Company and had,
to the best of its ability, assured itself that the
disclosure of the financial information in this report
complies with the applicable accounting standards
and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee therefore recommended the Board’s
approval of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012 for public
release.
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The Audit Committee also recommended the
re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as the Group’s external auditors for 2013 and
that the related resolution shall be put forth for
shareholders’ consideration and approval at the
forthcoming AGM.

Nomination Committee

The Board has established the Nomination
Committee on 27 March 2012 for nominating
potential candidates for directorship, reviewing
the nomination of Directors, assessing the
independence of each independent non-executive
Director and making recommendations to the
Board on such appointments. The full terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (http://www.singamas.com).

The current members of the Nomination Committee
include one executive director and Chairman of
the Board, namely, Mr. Chang Yun Chung (also
known as Mr. Teo Woon Tiong) (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and Mr. Ong Ka Thai.

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee
reports the findings and recommendations to the
Board after each meeting.

In 2012, the Nomination Committee met once and
attendance of individual members at Nomination
Committee meeting in the year is summarised
below:
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Attendance
HEE
(in person)

(RARRE )

Committee members ZEENE

Chang Yun Chung (Chairman) kAP (FE)
(also known as Teo Woon Tiong)

Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2n]£E

Ong Ka Thai FxRE
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The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The
Nomination Committee is accountable to the Board
and minutes of meetings/resolutions are circulated
to the Board for information.

The following is a summary of the work of the
Nomination Committee during the year under
review:

(@) reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board; and

(b)  considered the appointment of Mr. Cheng as
independent non-executive Director.

All new appointments and re-appointments of
Directors are based on the following criteria:

° Integrity
o Independent mindedness
° Possession of core competencies that

meet the current needs of the Company
and the ability to complement the skills and
competencies of the existing Directors

° Readiness to commit time and effort to carry
out duties and responsibilities effectively

o A good track record of experience at a
senior level in corporations/organisations

° Financial knowledge

During the year under review, Mr. Chan and Ms.
Tam were appointed as executive Directors on
1 March 2012 which was before the establishment
of the Nomination Committee. The Board was
responsible for their new appointments. The
Board considered the academic and professional
backgrounds of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tam and
based on the above-mentioned criteria, the Board
resolved to appoint Mr. Chan and Ms. Tam as
executive Directors.
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Since the establishment of Nomination Committee
on 27 March 2012, Mr. Cheng was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on
1 November 2012. The Nomination Committee
considered Mr. Cheng’s academic and professional
background and based on the above-mentioned
criteria, the Nomination Committee recommended
the appointment of Mr. Cheng as an independent
non-executive Director to the Board. The Board
then approved Mr. Cheng’s appointment after due
consideration.

The Company’s circular of its forthcoming AGM
contained detailed information on election of
Directors, including detailed biographies, interests,
and (where appropriate) independence of all
Directors standing for re-election.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established Remuneration
Committee to make recommendation on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management. No Director and senior management
can determine his own remuneration. The full
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (http://www.singamas.com).

The current members of the Remuneration
Committee include two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yang, Victor (Chairman) and
Mr. Ong Ka Thai, and a non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Kuan Kim Kin.

The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
reports the findings and recommendations to the
Board after each meeting.
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In 2012, the Remuneration Committee met four
times and attendance of individual members at
Remuneration Committee meetings in the year is
summarised below:

R-T——F HFMZESSHBLR

A=
FZE 8 g @RI B B i F 2 G
T~

Attendance
H =
(in person)
(RABFERE)

Committee members ZEEHE
Yang, Victor (Chairman) BER(FE) 4/4
Ong Ka Thai TRZE 4/4
Kuan Kim Kin FA iR 4/4

The remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The
Remuneration Committee is accountable to the
Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to
the Board for information.

The following is a summary of the work of the
Remuneration Committee during the year under
review:

(@) reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board on the Directors’ fees for the financial
year of 2012;

(b) reviewed and approved the salary adjustment
of the Company’s executive Directors and
senior management;

(@] reviewed and approved compensation
payable to salaried Directors and senior
management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

(d) reviewed and approved the Company’s
annual performance-based bonus payments;

(e) evaluated tax impact of the proposed

employment model from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu; and
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U] reviewed the service agreement of
senior management under the proposed
employment model.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated to
be responsible for determining the remuneration
packages of individual executive Director and
senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment, to
make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors and to
consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

Details of each Director’s remuneration and any
remuneration payable to members of senior
management for the year under review are set out
on pages 164 to 166 of this annual report.

Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been
established. The Board is responsible for the
corporate governance functions with the following
duties:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors;

() to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors;
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(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report; and

® such other corporate governance duties and
functions set out in the Code (as amended
from time to time) for which the Board is
responsible.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company’s Audit Committee has recommended
to the Board that, subject to shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be
re-appointed as the external auditors for 2013.

During the year under review, the fees paid to the
Company’s external Hong Kong auditors for audit work
amounted to HK$3,148,000 and for non-audit and
review activities amounted to HK$502,000 (including
HK$275,000 for interim review, HK$70,000 for tax review
and HK$157,000 for other related services).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tam (a certified public accountant), who was also
an executive Director and the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company on 1 March 1997 but resigned on 2
February 2013. Following the resignation of Ms. Tam, Ms.
Lam Suk Nga was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company on the even date.

The appointment and dismissal of the company secretary
of the Company were approved by the Board via a
physical Board meeting.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

All Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for
overseeing the preparation of financial statements of each
financial period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash
flow for that period. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards which are in conformity
to the International Financial Reporting Standards, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has
conducted annual reviews of the effectiveness of
the system of internal controls covering all controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls,
broad-based risk management processes, and physical
and information system security of selected operating
units of the Company. No suspected frauds and
irregularities, internal control deficiencies or suspected
infringement of laws, rules and regulations have come
to the Audit Committee’s attention to cause the Audit
Committee to believe that the system of internal controls
is inadequate. The Board, through the review of the Audit
Committee, is satisfied that the Group has fully complied
with the Code provisions on internal controls during the
year under review.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The auditors’ responsibility is stated on pages 72 to 73
under the “Independent Auditor’s Report” section.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBE

EEMMBHRENEIEN

TRESARFSEEERESEFBBE
W HmENET  WEETEA R HRRZE
FMASERNF BN - UWREERBERER
Mo EmHEBE_FT——_F+_A=+—H1
FEZVBHRERE  EFCEREALSEN
FEBR - WEEZARABEVBEREER -
A& BRI s 228 - 3 B Z2EMEN —
PIHET R AR - BERNRE EUAARIFELE

EFEeRAERZ B2 NI RN
BRI LR - BRPGER  EFEER
BREE BENREREERRF - UEARR]
EEHEEEMFEM LR ERMERRE - AR
AL R] SR ARRE RN IR R A BB BT R R 3K R] E
MERER - HAIRER Mo EEZZE®E
B BEREZZESREAMERRGET
A - REBFEAR  EXSABRELEZES
MWEHN  mEAREREEETEXRELER
ST RIB RE R BRET IR -

BEMEE

REENEFENRET2EEE73EN B
AR S | AP -

i
“E-CEER | BWEECEFARAF o




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

&%

EindlE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1.

gl

Procedures for shareholders to
convene an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”)

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
of the paid-up capital of the Company can deposit
a written request at 19/F., Dah Sing Financial
Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, the registered office of the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The written request must state the objects of the
meeting, signed by the shareholders concerned
and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more of those shareholders.

The request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrar and upon their confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will request the Board to convene an
EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the request has
been verified as not in order, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as
requested.

Procedures for putting forward
proposals at AGM

Shareholders holding not less than one-fortieth of
the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of the request the right to vote at the
AGM; or not less than 50 shareholders holding
shares in the Company on which there has been
paid up an average sum, per shareholder, of not
less than HK$2,000, can submit a written request
to move a resolution at the AGM.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

A% SR HEF

1.

BRERBRBREFNKE ([ BRRE
MXEDZERF

ARt Z2—HARRIERE
PR BCR - AR E B SOXE AR AT
R =R - BABBFELITB108
AP 01918 - UBAART
W AEIME -

HZEEBRERLEHENTE  YHE
BEBRREZZNATHZHER XA
A BipAl bt — R e A ERRER
2.

RRBH PR B P &R MR B %K
ERERENEE H RRAWERNES
REMNEZTEERARBREX
g WIREBSARERMAERCARRE
HFEMEEA - BRI - BRFERER

R THEE  ARRRBRKE ML
R MEL N EHE B KA FRRRE
BIRE -

REREAFAERHEEZAZER

AT ATAIAIARRRHIRR E M KL
BRRBAFRE LBRRER  TZm K
EREMBBRBEYIRREEAFAS
EFR&R - BADRIBRRBRAED
Mt+nz—: ATLROEFEARR
BRI - AMB AR ETF
B0 B8R B9 R D $2,000 ©




The written request must state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred
to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
shareholders concerned and may consist of
several documents in like form (which between
them contain the signatures of all the shareholders
concerned).

The written request must be deposited at 19/F,,
Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, the registered office of
the Company, for the attention of the Company
Secretary not less than six weeks before the
meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and not less than one week in the
case of any other requisition.

The request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrar and upon their confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the AGM provided
that the shareholders concerned have deposited
a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholders concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. If the request has been verified as
not in order or the shareholders concerned have
failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution
will not be included in the agenda for the AGM.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EERER®RE

LEEHRARRERER - W £ —
BEHTS 1,000 FHRLE - AS
EREZRERERAF BT
A2 BEMRREELThS HER
AR (A2 BERREEENS
HE) -

% EH A SKER A TR REF R AR A
MM ER « HBEHFELITE08
SRAFT &R 01918 - UBHARF
MIARIME @ B EREHIRERBA
HBESKE - X ERBITA AN DRINE
EH - RnEEMEMERE - A4
R—EEH] -

RRB R 3B P B LB % B a% i oK
ERERENEE @ RRIWERNERS
ERRAEE S BFILLORERT AKX
BREREAFARENFHRZEAN  EBABRRA
XN —FEEERAETARA - AEH
WX NARRREAEZRERANEE
FEBR B LR B RSB LB Z A
BRARREXHNRAENER - HR
- BRBERERER RS TEE LB
IERORA AN R SRR A FE R AR A A 3h
B BRmMIIHHER - BRARRKK
TAER - ORBERITE M AEEA
AR EFRGHHET o

:g—:¢¢ﬁ|%M§E¢¥ﬁm@a{ihHWWﬂMM




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERBE

3. Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited. Shareholders and the investment
community may at any time make a request for
the Company’s information to the extent that such
information is publicly available. Shareholders
may also refer to the contacts under “Investor
Relations” section in the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com) for enquiries.

Shareholders have the right to put enquires to the
Board. All enquires shall be in writing and sent by
post to the registered office of the Company or by
email to info@singamas.com for attention of the
Company Secretary.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company provides updated information of the
Group to all shareholders when it becomes available and
appropriate, through the publication of interim and annual
reports, circulars, notices, media releases or other means
in compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements.
The Company has made such information available on
the Company’s website (http://www.singamas.com)
as well as on an independent website provider
(http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas). This purpose
is to provide our shareholders an alternative channel
to access the Group’s information easily and reach
the potential shareholders globally. No change in the
Company’s constitutional documents was made during
the year under review.

il Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

3. MFEREME

REERMARARNBFLELRE -
BEAPREBLFEZBERAT BH
FEAREZERE  REREREA
TAERERZDMABARARAZA
AR RERINAIRIE AR D A4
(http://www.singamas.com)[ &% & % &3
7] AR ERMELHER o

BRTEEOEFSIELER - AL
AANEBERAIEL - WEL T ARIMW
ENBEERRTTMPERXEHLE
info@singamas.com °

Hig BHRF

RABHARMBRRBERNEEZHER -
WHEZEE R EBZ ERBERN T P RS &
Fif - B BE - FEREMIETEENE
ERENEHMEN c RARWAEZFER LH
AR BIHY A8 UE (http://www.singamas.com)
FEMEER - BB HEER
(http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas) -
Uk B RS RIRHEINE AR R E R ST
MAREB R ER LB AR EE T IRERR -
FA - NAREBERX MW EEMES -




Apart from providing a forum for Directors’ dialogue
with shareholders in the Company’s general meeting
during the year, the Company continuously enhances
shareholders communications by holding press and
analyst conferences locally and overseas during any
reporting period or year. The institutional shareholders
may ask questions on the Company’s operations or
related financial information in such conferences and the
Company would then take the opportunity to explain
to them the latest development of the Group. This
direct communication with shareholders or potential
shareholders would enable them to understand the
Group’s standards and the manner of conducting
businesses. In addition, the Company has a “Frequently
Asked Questions” section in its annual report providing
its shareholders with more clear and concise information
that may be of common concern. Besides, the Company
has responded to letters and telephone enquiries from
shareholders and potential shareholders throughout the
year under review.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

The board of directors (“Board”/“Directors”) of Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) present the
Company’s annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and provision of management services to its
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities are set out in notes 20,
22 and 23, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 74 to 75.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: HK5 cents per ordinary
share). Together with the interim dividend of HK4 cents
per ordinary share (2011: HK9 cents per ordinary share),
total dividend for the year would be HK6 cents per
ordinary share (2011: HK14 cents per ordinary share).
Subject to approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the proposed final dividend is payable on or
before 31 July 2013 to those shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 7 June 2013. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 4 June 2013 to
Friday, 7 June 2013, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 231 to 232 of this annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 42
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities of the Company are set out
in notes 20, 22 and 23, respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had bank balances
and cash of US$418,430,000 (2011: US$331,577,000)
and total interest-bearing debts of US$366,480,000
(2011: US$452,270,000). This represented a gearing
ratio, calculated on the basis of the Group’s total interest-
bearing debts over equity attributable to owners of the
Company, of 0.63 (2011: 0.83) and a net debt to equity
ratio, calculated on the basis of the Group’s net interest-
bearing debts (after deducting bank balances and cash
of US$418,430,000) over equity attributable to owners
of the Company of -0.09 (2011: 0.22), representing the
amount of bank balances and cash was higher than the
total interest bearing debts.

Although there was a decrease in interest-bearing debts,
with the decline in profit as a result from soft demand,
the interest coverage ratio of the Group’s profit before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) to
total net interest expense decreased to 10.24 times for
the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: 17.81 times).
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s revenues are largely transacted in US$. To a
lesser extent, certain operating expenses are transacted
in other currencies including Hong Kong dollars and
Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). To monitor the currency risk
exposure, the Group’s interest-bearing debts are in both
US$ and RMB. As at 31 December 2012, approximately
38.0% of the total (2011: 45.9%) was in US$ with the
balance in RMB.

To further strengthen the financial position of the Group
and to ensure stable funding for the Group’s operations in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company
issued on 14 April 2011 a three-year RMB1,380,000,000
(equivalent to US$210,600,000) notes that will mature on
14 April 2014 (the “Notes”). The Company applied the net
proceeds from the Notes for working capital and general
corporate purposes in the PRC. Accordingly, contrary
to the past that the Group’s interest-bearing debts were
largely arranged on a short term revolving basis for
the financing of its daily working capital requirements,
a majority of the Group’s short term interest-bearing
debts were repaid by the proceeds of the Notes. Of the
total interest-bearing debts as at 31 December 2012,
the maturity profile spread over a period of three years
with US$50,554,000 repayable within one year and
US$315,926,000 within two to three years. Other than
the Notes which bear a fixed interest rate of 4.75%, the
Group’s interest-bearing debts are principally on a floating
rate basis.

In order to hedge against the foreign exchange risk
arising from the fluctuation of RMB relative to US$ in
relation to the Notes, the Company entered into two
par forward contracts to receive RMB at fixed rate
of RMB6.15 to US$1 based on notional amount of
RMB1,576,829,589. This notional amount represents
the total interest payments and final principal repayment
of the Notes during the three-year tenor. The terms of
these two par forward contracts were negotiated to
match the terms of the Notes. As at 31 December 2012,
the Group’s aforesaid outstanding derivative financial
instruments designated as hedging instruments had
a total notional amount of RMB1,478,055,616 (2011:
RMB1,543,964,794).
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BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group and the
Company are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements. No interest was capitalised by the
Group during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. The Group had the following connected
transaction which is subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules during 2012:

On 5 July 2012, Singamas Depots Holdings
Limited (“SDHL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a share transfer
agreement (the “Share Transfer Agreement”)
with Pacific International Lines (Private) Limited
(“PIL”) under which SDHL agreed to acquire from
PIL the 40% equity interest in Shanghai Huasing
International Container Freight Transportation Co.,
Ltd., a sino-foreign owned joint venture enterprise
established in the PRC, at the consideration of
RMB110,698,609.44 (equivalent to approximately
HK$135,744,901.15).

As the Group is one of the world’s leading
container manufacturers and logistics service
providers, the implementation of the transaction
would allow the Group to further strengthen its
logistics business segment and could generate
better profit to the Group as a whole.

PIL, a company in which Messrs. Chang Yun
Chung, Teo Siong Seng and Teo Tiou Seng are
directors and shareholders, is the controlling and
substantial Shareholder, as defined under the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, PIL is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules
and entering into the Share Transfer Agreement
constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Based on the size tests performed, each of the
percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) is
less than 5% threshold, entering into the Share
Transfer Agreement falls under Rule 14A.16(2) of
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, it is subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements set out
in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 and is exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
the connected transaction have been disclosed by
way of an announcement published on 5 July 2012
in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Group had the following connected transaction
which is exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules during 2012:

On 16 October 2012, each of the Company and
its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Singamas
Terminals (China) Limited (“STC”), entered
into a separate share transfer agreement with
Foshan Shunde Chuangjian Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Chuangijian”) to dispose of all of the Company’s
direct and indirect equity in Foshan Shunde
Leliu Wharf & Container Co., Ltd. (“SLWC”), a
company incorporated in the PRC and 59%
owned subsidiary of the Group, in which 40%
was held by the Company and 19% was held
by STC, at the consideration of RMB98,310,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$120,417,437)
and RMB46,690,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$57,189,402), respectively.

On the same date, the Company entered into a
share transfer agreement with Guangdong Fuwa
Machinery Holding Co., Ltd. (“Fuwa Machinery”)
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Foshan
Shunde Singamas Tank Container Co., Ltd.,
a company incorporated in the PRC, at the
consideration of RMB171,525,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$210,096,643).
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The Group is one of the world’s leading container
manufacturers and logistics service providers, the
entering into the above transactions would allow
the Group to streamline its operations and at the
same time generate cash flow for the Group to
further strengthen the Group’s financial position,
competitiveness and overall efficiency.

According to Rules 14.23(1) and 14A.26(1) of the
Listing Rules, as Chuangjian and Fuwa Machinery
(both of which are companies incorporated in the
PRC) are parties associated with each other, the
above transactions would require to be aggregated
for the purpose of Chapters 14 and 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As the counter-parties to the above transactions
are Fuwa Machinery and Chuangjian respectively
(both of which are connected persons of the
Company), the above transactions constitute a
connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, as the
above transactions (a) are entered into on normal
commercial terms; (b) both of Fuwa Machinery
and Chuangjian are connected persons of the
Company only by virtue of the relationship(s) with
a subsidiary of the Company (namely SLWCQ); (c)
100% of each of the value of the total assets,
profits and revenue of the relevant subsidiary of
the Company (namely SLWC) represents less
than 5% under the relevant Percentage Ratios
based on the latest financial year ended 31
December 2011; and (d) the consideration ratio
for the above transactions in aggregate is less
than 10%, according to the Rule 14A.31(9) of the
Listing Rules, the above transactions constitute
a connected transaction that is exempt from
the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements.
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In addition, based on the size tests for the above
transactions in aggregate, since certain percentage
ratios exceed 5% but all of the applicable
percentage ratios are less than 25%, the above
transactions also constitute a discloseable
transaction of the Company subject to the
notification and announcement requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Details of the
above transactions have been disclosed by way of
an announcement published on 16 October 2012
in compliance with the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following continuing connected
transactions during 2012:

On 30 November 2010, Singamas Terminals (Hong
Kong) Limited (“STHK”), a company engaged in
the business of provision of mid-stream services
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a terminal agreement (the “2011
Terminal Agreement”) with Pacific International
Lines (H.K.) Limited (“PILHK”) to take effect from 1
January 2011, for a term of three years and will be
ending on 31 December 2013. PILHK is currently
a subsidiary of PIL (the controlling and substantial
shareholder of the Company as defined under the
Listing Rules). Accordingly, PILHK is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Since the 2011 Terminal Agreement involves
transactions, which occur on a recurring basis
over a period of time, the transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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It was estimated that the amount of STHK’s
transactions with PILHK, on annual basis, for
the three financial years commencing from
1 January 2011 would not exceed 5% for each
of the percentage ratios, other than the profits
ratio, in the threshold tests in Rule 14A.34 of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions are
only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47,
the annual review requirements set out in Rules
14A.37 to 14A.40 and the requirements set out
in Rules 14A.35(1) and 14A.35(2) of the Listing
Rules and they are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed by
way of an announcement published in compliance
with the Listing Rules.

On 1 January 2011, Singamas Logistics (Tianjin)
Co., Ltd. (“SLTC”), a company engaged in the
business of provision of container depot services
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a depot agreement (the “Depot
Agreement”) with the Tianjin Branch of Pacific
International Lines (China) Ltd. (“PILChina”) to take
effect from 1 January 2011, for a term of three
years. In view that PILChina is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of PIL, PILChina is a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Since
the Depot Agreement involves transactions, which
occur on a recurring basis over a period of time,
the transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules.
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It was estimated that the amount of SLTC’s
transactions with PILChina, on annual basis,
for the three financial years commencing from
1 January 2011 would not exceed 5% for each
of the percentage ratios, other than the profits
ratio, in the threshold tests in Rules 14A.34 of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions are
only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47,
the annual review requirements set out in Rules
14A.37 to 14A.40 and the requirements set out
in Rules 14A.35(1) and 14A.35(2) of the Listing
Rules and they are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed by
way of an announcement published in compliance
with the Listing Rules.

On 15 March 2011, each of Hui Zhou Pacific
Container Co., Ltd., Ningbo Pacific Container
Co., Ltd., Qingdao Pacific Container Co., Ltd.,
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container Co., Ltd.,
Singamas Container Industry Co., Ltd., Shanghai
Pacific International Container Co., Ltd., Shanghai
Reeferco Container Co., Ltd., Guangdong Shun
An Da Pacific Container Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde
Singamas Tank Container Co., Ltd., Tianjin Pacific
Container Co., Ltd., Xiamen Pacific Container
Manufacturing Co., Ltd., Qidong Singamas
Energy Equipment Co., Ltd. and Singamas
Management Services Limited, subsidiaries of
the Company (collectively the “Subsidiaries”),
entered into a master purchase agreement (the
“2012 Master Purchase Contract”) with PIL for the
sales of containers and other related equipment
by the Group to PIL Group. In view that PIL
is a connected person of the Company, the
entering into the 2012 Master Purchase Contract
constituted a connected transaction. As the 2012
Master Purchase Contract involves transactions,
which occur on a recurring basis over a period
of time, the transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company.
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As it was estimated that the proposed annual caps
of the transactions, for each of the three financial
years ending 31 December 2014 would exceed
the HK$10,000,000 threshold under Rule 14A.34
of the Listing Rules, pursuant to Rule 14A.35,
the transactions are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements set out in Rules
14A.45 to 14A.47, the annual review requirements
set out in Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
set out in Rule 14A.48. After obtaining the approval
from the independent shareholders on 30 May
2011, the 2012 Master Purchase Contract had
taken effect from 1 January 2012 and will be
ending on 31 December 2014. Details of these
continuing connected transactions have been
disclosed by way of an announcement published
in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have
been approved by the Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed these transactions
and are in the opinion that:

(@)

those continuing connected transactions between
STHK and PILHK are entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group,
conducted on normal commercial terms and
entered into in accordance with the agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole and on terms no
less favourable than those available to or from
independent third parties. The total amount of such
transactions for the year ended on 31 December
2012 was HK$7,098,000 and did not exceed the
annual cap of HK$60 million;
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those continuing connected transactions
between SLTC and PILChina are entered into
in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group, conducted on normal commercial
terms and entered into in accordance with the
agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole and on
terms no less favourable than those available to or
from independent third parties. The total amount
of such transactions for the year ended on 31
December 2012 was RMB6,236,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,665,000) and did not exceed
the annual cap of RMB14,742,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$17,310,056); and

those continuing connected transactions between
the Subsidiaries and PIL are entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group, conducted on normal commercial
terms and entered into in accordance with the
agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole and on
terms no less favourable than those available to or
from independent third parties. The total amount
of such transactions for the year ended on 31
December 2012 was US$1,274,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$9,881,000) and did not exceed
the annual cap of US$100 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$780 million).
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has engaged the external auditors of the
Company to report the continuing connected transactions
of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The external auditors have reported to the Board
and confirmed that for the year 2012 the continuing
connected transactions (i) have received the approval
of the Board; (ii) are in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company; (iii) have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and (iv) the continuing connected
transactions in paragraphs (1), (2) and (3) above have
not exceeded the relevant caps as disclosed in the
announcements dated 30 November 2010, 1 January
2011 and 15 March 2011, respectively.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 RIF LT E 13.21 1§ 2 5E

OF THE LISTING RULES

B
il

(1) On 25 March 2011, the Company entered into a (1) AR _E——F=HA-+HBHEZ

facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with
DBS Bank Ltd., ING Bank N.V., Sumitomo Mitsui
Banking Corporation and United Overseas Bank
Limited as the mandated lead arrangers and DBS
Bank Ltd., ING Bank N.V., Hong Kong Branch,
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, Hong
Kong Branch and United Overseas Bank Limited
as the original lenders for a term of four years for
the purpose of financing the corporate funding
requirements and the capital expenditure of the
Group. The Facility Agreement includes conditions
to the effect that PIL continues to be the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) and
the single largest beneficial shareholder of the
Company. A breach of the above conditions will
constitute an event of default under the Facility
Agreement. If such an event of default occurs, all
amounts outstanding under the Facility Agreement
may become immediately due and payable.

On 14 April 2011, the Company issued the Notes.
The Notes bear interest from and including 14 April
2011 at the rate of 4.75% per annum. Interest
will be payable semi-annually in arrear on 14 April
and 14 October in each year commencing on 14
October 2011. The Notes are not rated by any
rating agency and are unsecured. Application
was made to the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited and approval was received for
listing of the Notes. Pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Notes, it is provided that at
any time following the occurrence of a change
of control, holder of any Notes will have the right
at his option to require the Company to redeem
all but not some only of that holder’s Notes at
101% of their principal amount, together with
accrued interest. Under the terms and conditions
of the Notes, a change of control occurs when
PIL ceases to be the controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the single largest
beneficial shareholder of the Company.
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, no asset of the Group (2011:
Nil) was pledged as securities to any third parties.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During 2012, the Company provided guarantees to
banks as securities for credit facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC. Details of
which are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance and has taken appropriate
steps to adopt and comply with the applicable principles
and code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of
the Directors, all of the Directors have complied with, for
any part of the accounting period covered by this annual
report, the required standard set out in the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Mr. Chang Yun Chung
(also known as Mr. Teo Woon Tiong)

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung
(appointed as Executive Director on 1 March 2012)

Mr. Hsueh Chao En

Ms. Tam Shuk Ping, Sylvia
(appointed as Executive Director on 1 March 2012
but resigned all of her capacities in the Company on
2 February 2013)

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng

Mr. Jin Xu Chu*
(retired from office at the 2012 annual general meeting
held on 6 June 2012 and did not offer himself for
re-election)

Mr. Kuan Kim Kin*

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David*
(appointed as Independent Non-executive Director on
1 November 2012)

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan*

Mr. Ong Ka Thai*

Mr. Yang, Victor*

# Non-executive Director
* Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”), every Director not being
a managing Director shall retire from office at annual
general meetings and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. A Director so appointed as to the office
of managing Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years but shall be
eligible for re-election.

The term of office for non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is for a year and is
subject to retirement and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Articles.
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However, Mr. Chang Yun Chung (also known as Mr. Teo
Woon Tiong) and Mr. Hsueh Chao En have expressed
not to offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David,
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan, Mr. Ong Ka Thai and Mr. Yang,
Victor and considered them as independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions
of the Directors in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (a)
were required notification to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which
any such Director is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered into
the register maintained by the Company; or which (c)
were required, pursuant to Model Code contained in
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:
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(A) Ordinary Shares of HK$0.10 each of (A) AAREERESR0.10ET
the Company
Number of Shares/
Underlying Shares Held Percentage
BHZBRYERRHEE of Issued
Personal  Corporate Total Shares
Name Capacity Interest Interest Interest Le#T
i3 54 EAER PREHR wEE RHEs
Mr. Chang Yun Chung Beneficial Owner 1,360,525 953,954,534 955,315,059 39.47
(Notes 1 & 2) ExBAA
RAPEEBFILR2)
Mr. Teo Siong Seng (Note 3) Beneficial Owner 49,996,250 - 49,996,250 2.07
SRINE ST A (M5 3) EBAA
Mr. Hsueh Chao En (Note 4) Beneficial Owner 2,823,650 - 2,823,650 0.12
EERLE (Wit4) EBEBA
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng (Note 5) Beneficial Owner 668,730 - 668,730 0.03
REAB S (M5t 5) ExHAA
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin (Note 6) Beneficial Owner 668,730 - 668,730 0.03
MRS L (Hite) EBAA
Mr. Ong Ka Thai (Note 7) Beneficial Owner 668,730 - 668,730 0.03
FRERE M T7) EnBEBA
Notes: Hraz -
(1) A total of 953,954,534 Shares are held by PIL (1) AB2(73953,954,534 KK (775 1 X

(ft=" MM

in which Mr. Chang Yun Chung is interested, in
aggregate, in 496,800,000 shares representing
89.61% of the issued share capital of PIL. Mr.
Chang Yun Chung'’s interest in shares of PIL
comprises a personal interest in 79,275,000
shares and corporate interests in 175,500,000
shares through South Pacific International
Holdings Limited, a company in which he
holds 2.02% of the issued share capital and
242,025,000 shares through Y. C. Chang & Sons
Private Limited, a company in which he holds
2.86% of the issued share capital. Messrs. Teo
Siong Seng and Teo Tiou Seng, Directors, both of
their interests in shares of PIL comprise personal
interests in 3,600,000 shares and 2,400,000
shares respectively and representing 0.65% and
0.43% of the issued share capital of PIL.
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The personal interest of Mr. Chang Yun Chung
represents the interest in 408,625 Shares and
interest in 951,900 underlying Shares in respect
of the share options granted by the Company,
the details of which are stated in the following
section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Teo Siong Seng
represents the interest in 40,489,250 Shares and
interest in 9,507,000 underlying Shares in respect
of the share options granted by the Company,
the details of which are stated in the following
section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Hsueh Chao En
represents the interest in 200,000 Shares and
interest in 2,623,650 underlying Shares in respect
of the share options granted by the Company,
the details of which are stated in the following
section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Teo Tiou Seng
represents the interest in 196,780 Shares and
interest in 471,950 underlying Shares in respect
of the share options granted by the Company,
the details of which are stated in the following
section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Kuan Kim Kin
represents the interest in 104,000 Shares and
interest in 564,730 underlying Shares in respect
of the share options granted by the Company,
the details of which are stated in the following
section “Share Options”.

The personal interest of Mr. Ong Ka Thai
represents the interest in 52,000 Shares and
interest in 616,730 underlying Shares in respect
of the share options granted by the Company,
the details of which are stated in the following
section “Share Options”.

Other Directors do not hold any interests in the
Company’s securities, except for their interests
in the underlying Shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company, the details of
which are stated in the following section “Share
Options”.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position
in the Shares and underlying Shares.
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(B) Share Options (B) HERE#E
Particulars of the share option scheme adopted ARAIRZETLF A —BHEMNZE
by the Company on 1 June 2007 (the “Option IxiEst S ([MEAERTEl)) 2 S B ERAR
Scheme”) are set out in note 41 to the consolidated BRI 41 -

financial statements.

Movements of the share options under the Option RER - BIRETSI THREREZ SN
Scheme during the year are as follows: N
Number of Share Options
ERiESE
As at Asat
1 January 31 December
Name/ s/ 2012 Reclassification 2012 Exercise
Category 48% WIZF-ZF  Adjustment Granted Exercised Lapsed WZF-_F GrantDate  Exercisable Period Price
of Participants 24 -A-H NERE i friE %% +ZA=1+-H RHAS s R
(Note a) (Notes a, b &) HKS
(Wiita) (Wita, bkc) A
Directors £
Chang Yun Chung FAH 261,300 - - - - 261,300 28/6/2007  28/6/2008-27/6/2017 398
261,300 - - - - 261,300 28/6/2007  28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
261,300 - - - - 261,300 28/6/2007  28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
1,333 - - - - 1,333 /712010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
83,333 - - - - 83,333 /712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
83,334 - - - - 83,334 1/7/2010  1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38
951,900 - - - - 951,900
Teo Siong Seng RILE 2,613,000 - - - - 2,613,000 28/6/2007  28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
2,613,000 - - - - 2,613,000 28/6/2007  28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
2,613,000 - - - - 2,613,000 28/6/2007  28/6/2010-27/6/2017 3.98
750 - - (750) - - 6/8/2008  6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
750 - - (750) - - 6/8/2008  6/8/2010-5/8/2018 1.48
1,088,750 - - (1,088,750) - - 6/8/2008  6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
1,333 - - - - 1,333 1/7/2010  1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
833,333 - - - - 833,333 1/7/2010  1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
833,334 - - - - 833,334 /712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38
10,597,250 - - (1,090,250) - 9,507,000
ChanKwokLeung ~ [REVR - 522,600 - - - 522,600 28/6/2007  28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
(Note d Hi#a) - 522,600 - - - 522,600 28/6/2007  28/6/2009-27/6/2017 3.9
- 522,600 - - - 522,600 28/6/2007  28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
- 750 - - - 750 6/8/2008  6/8/2009-5/8/2018 1.48
- 750 - - - 750 6/8/2008  6/8/2010-5/8/2018 1.48
- 217,750 - - - 217,750 6/8/2008  6/8/2011-5/8/2018 1.48
- 166,666 - - - 166,666 1/7/2010  1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
- 166,667 - - - 166,667 1/7/2010  1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
- 166,667 - - - 166,667 /712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38
- 2,287,050 - - - 2,287,050
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Number of Share Options
BRESR

Asat Asat

1 January 31 December
Name/ s/ 2012 Reclassification 2012 Exercise
Category 48% WZF-ZF  Adjustment Granted  Exercised Lapsed RZF—Z#  GrantDate Exercisable Period  Price
of Participants 248 -A-H nERE i frfE %% +-B=+-A FHAS TR GEE
(Note d (Notes a, b &) HKS
(Witad) (Wiita bic) BT

Directors (Continued) E%(Z)

Hsueh Chao En 3 653,250 - - - - 653,250 28/6/2007  28/6/2008-27/6/2017 3.93
653,250 - - - - 653,250 28/6/2007  28/6/2009-27/6/2017 3.93
653,250 - - - - 653,250 28/6/2007  28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
1,300 - - - - 1,300 6/8/2008  6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
1,300 - - - - 1,300 6/8/2008  6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
261,300 - - - - 261,300 6/8/2008  6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
200,000 - - - - 200,000 1/7/2010  1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
200,000 - - - - 200,000 1/7/2010  1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

2,623,650 - - - - 2,623,650
Tam Shuk Ping, Sylvia 35Uk - 522,600 - - - 522,600 28/6/2007  28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
(Note ) (W) - 5260 - - - SDE0 28/6P007 28/62000-27/6/2017 393
- 522,600 - - - 522,600 28/6/2007  28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
- 750 - (750) - - 6/8/2008  6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
- 750 - (750) - - 6/8/2008  6/8/2010-5/8/2018 1.48
- 217,750 - (217,167) - 583 6/8/2008  6/8/2011-5/8/2018 1.48
- 166,666 - (166,666) - - 1/7/2010  1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
- 166,667 - (166,667) - - 1/7/2010  1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
- 166,667 - - - 166,667 /712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

- 2,287,050 - (552,000) - 1,735,050
Teo Tiou Seng FeE 130,650 - - - - 130,650 28/6/2007  28/6/2008-27/6/2017 3.93
130,650 - - - - 130,650 28/6/2007  28/6/2009-27/6/2017 398
130,650 - - - - 130,650 28/6/2007  28/6/2010-27/6/2017 3.93
260 - - (260) - - 6/8/2008  6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
260 - - (260) - - 6/8/2008  6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
52,260 - - (62,260) - - 6/8/2008  6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
40,000 - - (40,000) - - 1/7/2010  1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - - 40,000 1/7/2010  1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - - 40,000 1/7/2010  1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

564,730 - - (92,780) - 471,950
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Number of Share Options
BRER

Asat Asat

1 January 31 December
Name/ s/ 2012 Reclassification 2012 Exercise
Category 48% WZF-ZF  Adjustment Granted  Exercised Lapsed RZF-Z#  GrantDate Exercisable Period  Price
of Participants 2488 -A-H nERE i frfE %% +-B=+-A BHAS TR R
(Note ) (Notes a, b &) HKS
(i) (Wiita bfic) BT

Directors (Continued) E%(Z)

JinXu Chu EalL] 522,600 - - - (622,600) - 28/6/2007  28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
(Nots &) (Wite) 52260 - - - (5260 - o8/R007 28/6/200927/62017 393
522,600 - - - (622,600) - 28/6/2007  28/6/2010-27/6/2017 3.93

1,667,800 - - - (1,567,800) -
Kuan Kim Kin ohit 130,650 - - - - 130,650 28/6/2007  28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
130,650 - - - - 130,650 28/6/2007  28/6/2009-27/6/2017 398
130,650 - - - - 130,650 28/6/2007  28/6/2010-27/6/2017 398
260 - - - - 260 6/8/2008  6/8/2009-5/8/2018 1.48
260 - - - - 260 6/8/2008  6/8/2010-5/8/2018 1.48
52,260 - - - - 52,260 6/8/2008  6/8/2011-5/8/2018 1.48
40,000 - - - - 40,000 1/7/2010  1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - - 40,000 /712010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - - 40,000 /712010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

564,730 - - - - 564,730
Ong Ka Thai I%5% 130,650 - - - - 130,650 28/6/2007  28/6/2008-27/6/2017 398
130,650 - - - - 130,650 28/6/2007  28/6/2009-27/6/2017 398
130,650 - - - - 130,650 28/6/2007  28/6/2010-27/6/2017 3.93
260 - - - - 260 6/8/2008  6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
52,260 - - - - 52,260 6/8/2008  6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
52,260 - - - - 52,260 6/8/2008  6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148
40,000 - - - - 40,000 1/7/2010  1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - - 40,000 1/7/2010  1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - - 40,000 1/7/2010  1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

616,730 - - - - 616,730
Yang, Victor BEH 40,000 - - - - 40,000 1/7/2010  1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - - 40,000 1/7/2010  1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - - 40,000 1/7/2010  1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

120,000 - - - - 120,000

Sub-total et 17,606,790 4,574,100 - (1,735,030) (1,567,800) 18,878,060
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Number of Share Options
BREHE
As at Asat
1 January 31 December

Name/ #%/ 2012 Reclassification 2012 Exercise

Category 4% WZF-ZF  Adjustment Granted Exercised Lapsed WZE-Z% GrantDate  Exercisable Period Price

of Participants 248 -A-H nERE i frfE %% +-B=+-A FHAS TR GEE

(Note d) (Notes a, b &) HKS
(ita) (fiita bRc) B
Employees (\ote fE;(ﬁ/fEf) 2525900 (1,045,200 - - U3B500 1045200 2862007 28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
In aggregate 5 2,525,900 (1,045,200) - - (435,500) 1,045,200 28/6/2007  28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
2,525,900 (1,045,200) - - (435,500) 1,045,200 28/6/2007  28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
23,170 (1,500) - (21,670) - - 6/8/2008  6/8/2009-5/8/2018 1.48
23,170 (1,500) - (21,670) - 6/8/2008  6/8/2010-5/8/2018 1.48
1,064,795 (435,500) - (225,730) (245, 640) 147,925 6/8/2008  6/8/2011-5/8/2018 1.48
478,625 (333,332 - (54,668) (6,957) 84,668 1/7/2010  1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
1,020,000 (333,334) - (206,664) (303,334) 176,668 1/7/2010  1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
1,020,000 (333,334) - - (303,334) 383,332 1772010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

Sub-total NGt 11,197,460 (4,574,100) - (630,402 (2,164,765) 3,928,193
Al other et 958,100 - - - (435,500) 522,600 28/6/2007  28/6/2008-27/6/2017 393
employees {31 958,100 - - - (435,500) 522,600 28/6/2007  28/6/2009-27/6/2017 393
In aggregate At 958,100 - - - (435,500) 522,600 28/6/2007  28/6/2010-27/6/2017 393
212,560 - - (17,420) (23,506) 171,634 6/8/2008  6/8/2009-5/8/2018 148
212,560 - - (17,420) (23,507) 171,633 6/8/2008  6/8/2010-5/8/2018 148
313,560 - - (17,420) (23,507) 272,633 6/8/2008  6/8/2011-5/8/2018 148

Sub-total Vgt 3,612,980 - - (62,260) (1,377,020) 2,183,700

Total % 241720 - - 3T (5109585 24989953

Notes: BT -

(a)  The share options with the exercise price of (@ L/(f TIEE3.93F T EREE 75
HK$3.93 are vested and exercisable in three —FENFANAFNA  —FF
tranches on 28 June 2008, 2009 and 2010 Jlﬁﬁ/\ﬁ TNAR=ZF—FFNA
respectively and up to 27 June 2017. ZFNAZ =B BETE R AT T

@& TR —F—+FNA -+
Hif e

(o)  The share options with the exercise price of (b)  KITEEE1.48 8T oy fE IR 1 B A5 75
HK$1.48 are vested and exercisable in three FIR - FEZNFNANH  —F—F
tranches on 6 August 2009, 2010 and 2011 FNANAR -FE——F/NANAS
respectively and up to 5 August 2018. =B BETE R ATHETTIE - 7TER

BEoE-NFNHAAL °
(c)  The share options with the exercise price ©  UXITIEE1.38F THIERIEC A

of HK$1.38 are vested or to be vested and
exercisable in three tranches on 1 July 2011,
2012 and 2013 respectively and up to 30 June
2020.

BAFR = E——F+HA—H =&
——F+H—AR=EFE—=F+HA—
A7 =250 BELE R AT R{T#E 77
FEE —FE - FFNA=FHIf -

—CFER | BHERECEARAH
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(d) Mr. Chan Kwok Leung and Ms. Tam Shuk
Ping, Sylvia were appointed as Directors on
1 March 2012. Accordingly, their respective share
options were re-classified from the category of
“Employees” to “Directors” on the date of their
appointment.

(e) Mr. Jin Xu Chu (“Mr. Jin”), a former Director,
retired from office at the 2012 annual general
meeting held on 6 June 2012 and did not offer
himself for re-election. Pursuant to the Option
Scheme, the vested share options (1,567,800
Shares) held by Mr. Jin were lapsed on 7 July
2012.

] Employees are working under employment
contracts that are regarded as “continuous
contracts” for the purposes of the Employment
Ordinance.

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries
a party of any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Save as disclosed above, none of Directors nor their
associates, had any other interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required notification to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which
any such Director or chief executive is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b)
were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be
entered into the register maintained by the Company;
or which (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company or the Stock Exchange and none of Directors,
nor their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2012, according to the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, and so far as was known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the interests of certain Directors disclosed under the
section headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above),
had an interest or a short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO:
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FERFEZ#ER

RZZE——F+ZA=+—8  RELAQARZ
(FBEH NS IEG)E 336 1517 B 2 B MR AT
N R ESRSAITHRABASAM - THIA
T (B ETEERKG - HERG KEEE
ZERRAR| —BEBEETESHA 2=
SN ERHD RIEBROER < ERIAE
WAREBGES RHEIEG)DEXVEHFE2 R3D
HRAARARFEENALHOGERINT

Number of Ordinary Percentage of

Shares of HK$0.10 Each Total Issued
ShEEI10ETZLERYE Shares
Name Notes Direct Interest Indirect Interest LT
2 Hiat BiE#ER iz BROBESL
Madam Lee Kheng Wah (1) - 955,315,059 (L)* 39.47
FBEL L
PIL 2) 953,954,534 (L)* - 39.42
LT
Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited (3) - 953,954,534 (L)* 39.42
Prime Capital Management 178,788,000 (L)* - 7.39

(Cayman) Limited

(L)# - Long Position 4£&
Notes:

(1) Madam Lee Kheng Wah, as the spouse of Mr. Chang
Yun Chung, is deemed to be interested in these Shares.

2) A full explanation of these Shares is disclosed under the
section headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.

3) As Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited directly controls
one-third or more of the voting rights in the shareholders’
meeting of PIL, in accordance with SFO, Y.C. Chang &
Sons Private Limited is deemed to be interested in PIL’s
interests in the Company’s issued shares.

HiaE -

(1) BFBEZLTDRAFAEZLE  HFX
L RIBE BB KA FILEREL ALK

e

.
Pz o

Q) BEEERGESHEER Lt [EER
BRG - IERIR G o AR 2 25 BA R ) —
BB -

(3 ARY.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited B
BEEREX MBS REAXE FITE=5
LU FRIRERE - KRB RE
1&41) » Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited
WA R E A TR L 7] R 17 B
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Save as disclosed above, there was no other person
known to the Directors or chief executive, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who, as at
31 December 2012, had an interest or a short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

As at 31 December 2012, no Directors or proposed
directors had any existing service contract or proposed
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in note 49 to the consolidated
financial statements (which were approved by the
independent non-executive Directors and in the opinion
of the Directors were carried out on normal commercial
terms and in ordinary course of the Group’s businesses),
no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its ultimate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales
attributable to major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

FTEERRMER

AEEREREIEEETREIZHER LT
FzankmT :

Percentage
Btk
Percentage of purchases attributable REEGRAHEEMEEERE 7.9%
to the Group’s largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable AEBERAHERMEBEERE 30.3%
to the Group’s five largest suppliers
Percentage of sales attributable REESFARPAIGEERE 24.8%
to the Group’s largest customer
Percentage of sales attributable RAEBAARREFPAMGE X 49.9%

to the Group’s five largest customers

During the year, none of the Directors nor their associates
nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Retirement Benefits Scheme are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RERN > BEFSEBBALTREFBRR (3
EEMAEEARB 2B 5% ) 1R BHE L
AEBEFMEER A TR

Bo - HESELE LhEs

FARRRHEEMHERRHEERE - HE
S IEEA N RUER EHES ©

BEEEGH

RABRFRLET L ERAEARRZE K
TREABPEHZEERITRAH

BIREFIFTE

BKER G B 2 FBHN G E M HRERM
13 °
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PARTICULAR OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 17 to
24 under the “Directors and Senior Management Profile”
section of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The remuneration policy for the employees of the
Company is set by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group, including its
subsidiaries but excluding associates and jointly
controlled entities, employed 8,594 (2011: 9,106) full-time
employees. Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
amounted to US$113,986,000 (2011: US$104,684,000)
for the year. All full-time salaried employees, except for
factory workers and contract employees, are being paid
on a monthly basis, plus a discretionary performance
bonus. Factory workers are being remunerated based on
a basic wage plus production incentive. Share options
are also being offered to selected grantees of the Group.
The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees
are competitive and employees are awarded on a
performance related basis within the general framework
of the Group’s salary and bonus system. To further
enhance the capability of its human resource, the Group
provides on-the-job training to its employees.

Other than the subsidiaries in the PRC, neither the
Company nor any of its other subsidiaries has established
labour union. The Company and its subsidiaries, however,
are not subject to any collective agreements. The Group
has maintained good relationships with its employees.
None of the Group’s employees is represented by a
labour union.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital
was held by the public as at the date of this annual
report.

AUDITORS

A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Chang Yun Chung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

%) 3L 1% B A ¥

Deloitte.
=

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINGAMAS CONTAINER HOLDINGS
LIMITED

(incorporated in the Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 74 to 230, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and is such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We

|
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conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2013
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
.-\71' A éﬁq&ﬁl%

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #{Z2 —F——F+ - H=+—HIFFF

2012 2011
—F—_F —ET——%F
Notes US$’000 US$’'000
Wizt TEx FET
Revenue S 7 1,536,608 1,817,718
Other income E A A 6,487 4,156
Changes in inventories of finished BRI mm RIERIM A
goods and work in progress IEaSE-i) 15,851 (35,322)
Raw materials and consumables used RAR KBRS (1,182,013) (1,297,273)
Staff costs (S IEN (113,986) (104,684)
Depreciation and amortisation expense e RiE (20,292) (18,243)
Exchange gain (loss) b 5 Uz (J&18) 837 (4,282)
Other expenses HEmEA (126,758) (137,882)
Finance costs BSER 9 (19,676) (19,121)
Investment income TEWA 10 4,421 3,722
Reclassification of fair value gain (loss) WIEE AR TAMNITAE
of derivative financial instruments EMIAZAREE
designated as hedging instruments A (E18) e
from hedge reserve ENEER 39 2,427 (7,734)
Changes in fair value of derivative SEABEEX S
financial instruments classified PTHESRMTAY
as held for trading AREEE - 931
Share of results of associates FEAG B & R A] 2 5 A 575 112
Share of results of jointly controlled FEMEREEHEE
entities (E18) & F (1,602) 2,638
Profit before taxation PR AL AT F 11 102,879 204,736
Income tax expense FriSHiEmM S 14 (33,948) (50,909)
Profit for the year REEZR 68,931 153,827
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEEEWRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —4#+ _-H=+—HIF)F

2012 2011
—F-=fF —E——F
Notes US$’000 Us$'000
Btat FEx FET
Other comprehensive Hitt 2wz ()
income (expense)
Exchange differences arising BMEINETEETE
on translation 82 3,812
Fair value adjustments on forward  #WiEEABREREL H 2
contracts designated as EHISHN AR BERE
cash flow hedges 3,166 (12,671)
Reclassification of fair value AR BECEN) BB
(gain) loss from hedge reserve REPREBEN 2EE
to profit or loss (2,427) 8,002
Other comprehensive income R H it @Yz (FX%)
(expense) for the year 821 (857)
Total comprehensive income N £ EUL FH4E5E
for the year 69,752 152,970
Profit for the year attributable to: 754 & E{LEF) :
Owners of the Company VNN 60,346 138,641
Non-controlling interests IR IR 2 8,585 15,186
68,931 153,827
Total comprehensive income FE(L £ EUREHAREE -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARIRE 61,150 136,848
Non-controlling interests IR IR 2 8,602 16,122
69,752 152,970
Earnings per share BHREER
Basic HAK 16 US2.49 cents 1l US5.74 cents 311l
Diluted i3 16 US2.49 cents =1l US5.73 cents 11l

“E-CEER | BWEECEFARAF o




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ra BRI R

As at 31 December 2012 R=—F——F+—-H=4+—H

2012 2011
—F--F —T——%F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Htst SeEDT F=7T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - s R 17 343,159 252,560
Patents SR 18 - 117
Goodwiill EES 19 6,246 6,246
Interests in associates KRB N R 2R 22 5,314 5,628
Interests in jointly controlled entities REEREIEHIEEE 2 23 6,812 19,606
Available-for-sale investment AHEZRE 24 1,614 1,614
Prepaid lease payments A ERIE 25 79,004 70,164
Deposits for non-current assets IERBEELRS 26 20,127 23,077
462,276 379,012
Current assets MEBEE
Inventories " 27 253,284 277,671
Trade receivables FEUER X 28 181,785 273,372
Prepayments and other receivables TES R B Ath U GR IR 29 144,767 119,533
Amount due from ultimate FEW S AR AZAR A AR IE
holding company 30 90 1,015
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries T ES VNS E O 31 519 536
Amounts due from jointly controlled FEM R RS B R FIE
entities 31 - 1,160
Amount due from a related company N —BBEEQERIE 32 - 405
Tax recoverable Al Bz FIE 2,212 870
Prepaid lease payments JEMEERE 25 1,842 1,629
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR MRS 33 418,430 331,577
1,002,929 1,007,768
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
i E AR

As at 31 December 2012 R =F——F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
—E-°fF —E——fF
Notes US$’000 US$'000
k3 FEx FET
Current liabilities nEat
Trade payables FERTBR IR 34 127,047 128,602
Bills payable ARESE 35 118,949 63,621
Accruals and other payables FERTE B R EA B BR K 36 176,696 98,465
Amount due to ultimate holding company  FE{S & 44T AE A BIFUE 30 10 10
Amounts due to associates X RE S NEIE O 31 1,990 2,014
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities &1 H [El#% %lJ BERIE 31 12 37
Tax payable FERFLIR 7,725 12,586
Bank borrowings SRITER 37 50,554 99,808
482,983 405,143
Net current assets REEEFE 519,946 602,625
Total assets less current liabilities EEBERTBERE 982,222 981,637
Capital and reserves BAXRRRFHE
Share capital &N 40 31,181 31,151
Share premium &0 im(E 236,897 236,315
Accumulated profits Rl 262,056 241,035
Other reserves Hib R 49,028 37,044
Equity attributable to owners R BIRRR FE(G A
of the Company 579,162 545,545
Non-controlling interests IR R 69,868 66,657
Total equity HESBEE 649,030 612,202
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SR L RN S

As at 31 December 2012 R=—F——#F+_-H=+—H

2012 2011
—E—_fF —T——%
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Htst SeEDT F=7T
Non-current liabilities EREBAE

Bank borrowings HRITIERK 37 97,500 135,451
Notes =k 38 218,426 217,011

Derivative financial instruments designated #&7E &% T EH)
as hedging instruments PTHEESHmIEA 39 8,962 12,403
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFIEAE 43 8,304 4,570
333,192 369,435
982,222 981,637

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 230 were HRE74BEFE 0B VR A VB REREEE S
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors ([EE®] /[E2) R _E—=F=A=+HAH
(“Board”/“Directors”) on 25 March 2013 and are signed on its ~ #L/fERIREENRL - WA TFIESARES -

behalf by:

Teo Siong Seng R B Teo Tiou Seng REAE
Director E% Director E%#
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A3 Ak L 2

As at 31 December 2012 R=—F——F+—-H=+—H

2012 2011
—E—_fF —ET——%F
Notes US$’000 US$000
Kt F=x FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment e T N 17 3,944 4,217
Patents B 18 - 117
Investments in subsidiaries RBRBZIRE 20 305,811 279,473
Investments in associates REE AR 2 I8E 22 757 757
Investments in jointly controlled entities RERIERIEEZIE 23 - 676
Available-for-sale investment AHEEZRE 24 669 669
Deposits for non-current assets ERBEELS 26 1,420 -
312,601 285,909
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables FEfT R H AL W IE 20,934 9,999
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI e 21 237,344 323,243
Amounts due from jointly controlled FEUR SRR B B BB RIA
entities 31 - 1,141
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRNIRS 33 116,669 73,428
374,947 407,811
Current liabilities REaRE
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R E AR ER K 7,683 7,636
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENLRIEVNGIE e 21 9,622 18,968
Amount due to ultimate FEST B AR A B FUR
holding company 30 10 10
Amounts due to associates FETE & N BB 31 218 113
Bank borrowings RITIER 37 30,000 22,500
47,533 49,227
Net current assets REEEFE 327,414 358,584
Total assets less current liabilities EERERTEARE 640,015 644,493
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
LYE SR

As at 31 December 2012 R=—F——#F+_-H=+—H

2012 2011
—E—_fF —ET——%F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Hiat FEx FET
Capital and reserves BAREFE
Share capital &N 40 31,181 31,151
Share premium f& a8 42 236,897 236,315
Share option reserve BRERE 42 4,724 5,706
Hedge reserve Hh 42 (3,930) (4,669)
Accumulated profits S el 42 46,255 19,076
315,127 287,579
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank borrowings IRITHER 37 97,500 127,500
Notes 5 38 218,426 217,011
Derivative financial instruments BEASHRITAN
designated as hedging instruments PTHEEHBIA 39 8,962 12,403
324,888 356,914
640,015 644,493

Teo Siong Seng Rz E
Director €%

il Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &% —F— —4#F+ - H=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARBREELR
Exchange Non-
translation controlling
Share Share reserve  General Development Revaluation Share option Hedge Other Accumulated interests
capital  premium  SMEHE  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve reserve profits Total 3H""ﬂ§ﬂi§ Total
B BhiEE B -REE URBE ERERE BRERE  HMEE  ZHEE  ZHE &% %

US§000  USSO00  USS000  USSO00  USSO00  USSO00  USGO00  USSOO0  USGO00  USSOO0  USS000 u5$000 US§000
TRt TR TEr TRt TRar TR TR TEm TR TR TR TEm AR

(Note)
i)

At 1 January 2011 R-F-——F-F-B 31,084 235,026 9,852 14,330 4214 1,361 5819 - 8,193 161,560 460,113 48,454 508,567
Profitfor the year RERER - - - - - - - - - 1364 13864 15,186 153827
Bxchange diferences BENEREEE

arising on translation - - 2876 - - - - - - - 2,876 936 3812
Fair value adjustments on BETARSRE

forward contracts designated £ ZZHAL

as cash flow hedges HARBESR - - - - - - - (267) - - (12,671) - (12,671)
Reclassifcation of fairvale A% EEBEH

loss from hedge reserve FREAZER

to profit or loss - - - - - - - 8,002 - - 8,002 - 8,002
Total comprehensiveincome~ AEE 2 ENEAE

for the year - - 2816 - - - - 4,669 - 138,641 136,848 16,122 152,970
Exercise of share options ﬁ E%ﬁx 67 1,289 - - - - (384) - - - 972 - 972
Recogniton of equity-setted  BEZMRATZ

share-based payments %’éﬁﬁéuﬁ - - - - - - 354 - - - 354 - 354
Transfer from share option hEREREELE

resenve to accumulated Zirafle izl

profits for option forfited BiRE - - - - - - 83) - - 83 - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WeE-HEAA - - - - - - - - - - - 205 2,05
Dividend paid to non-controling - EFF3ERRBE

interests Eaks - - - - - - - - - - - (17) [}
Dividend paid tothe ownersof ~ XRAATRERS

the Company - - - - - - - - - (62,742) (62,742) - (62,742)
Transfer fomaccumulated  EFE Z3HA

profits - - - 5,760 47 - - - - (6,507) - - -

31 December 2011 K%

T2A=t+-H 31,151 236,315 12,728 20,090 5021 1,361 5,706 (4,669) (8,193 241,035 545,545 66,657 612,202

Proft for e year REEHH - - - - - - - - - B 636 855 6B
Bxchange diferences arisng ~ RESNEFEEE

on translation - - 65 - - - - - - - 65 17 82

Fair value adjustments on HEEARSRE

forward confracts designated £ ZRHAL

as cash flow hedges fhrEESE - - - - - - - 3,166 - - 3166 - 3,166
Reclassifcation of fairvale AR EERFIMEH

ganfomhedgereseneto  BEEANZER

proftorloss - - - - - - - - Y -
Total comprehensiveincome.~ AFF2EFX A%

for the year - - 65 - - - - 739 - 60,346 61,150 8,602 69,752
Exercise of share opfions ik 30 582 - - - - (178) - - - 434 - 434
Recognition of equity-settled TR

share-based payments - - - - - - 129 - - - 129 - 129
Transfer from share option

reserve to accumulated

profts for option forfeited Sﬁx?é - - - - - - 933 - - 933 - - -
Acquistion of addtional ERE-BARY

interest in a subsidiary Riggx - - - - - - - - (36) - 36) (2,063 (2,099
Dividend paid to non-controling 2 TiF TR

interests ERRE - - - - - - - - - - - (3,328 (3.328)
Dividend paid to the owners iﬁl@ ThERS

of the Company - - - - - - - - - 28,060) 28,060) - 28,060)
Transfer fomacoumulated ~ EAE 25HEF

profits - - - 10,837 1,361 - - - - (12,198 - - -
At 31 December 2012 RoF-2k

+ZA=+-H 31,181 236,897 12,793 30,927 6,362 1,361 4,724 (3,930) (3,229 262,056 579,162 69,868 649,030
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 {2 —F— —#+ _-HA=+—HIF&F

Note:

In 2009, at the time of the acquisition of additional 20% equity interests
of Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. and Ningbo Pacific Container
Co., Ltd., the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
these subsidiaries continued to be carried at their book values in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The excess of the fair
value and the book value of the net assets attributable to the additional
interests acquired, amounted to US$3,193,000, had been recognised
as other reserve in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) (other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)
applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, these entities have
to provide for the PRC statutory reserves before declaring
dividends to their shareholders as approved by the board of
directors. The reserves, which include general reserve and
development reserve, are not distributable until the end of
the operation periods of the respective entities, at which time
any remaining balance of the reserves can be distributed to
shareholders upon liquidation of the subsidiaries. The general
reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses of the
entities. The general reserve and development reserve can
be used to increase capital upon approval from the PRC’s
relevant authority. The distributable profits of the subsidiaries
are determined based on their accumulated profits calculated in
accordance with the PRC accounting rules and regulations.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘l-]_ = fﬁaﬁl)lLE*ﬁ%‘

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #{Z2 = F— —F+ - H=+—HIFFE

2012 2011
—F--F —T——%F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Mt SeEDT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXEY
Profit before taxation BR LA A 102,879 204,736
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation e 18,573 16,457
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - #eE R
and equipment By-pdE (66) (181)
Loss on property, plant and FIIEIE - R
equipment written off Bt BB 381 3,202
Gain on disposal of jointly & RS F e
controlled entities & (3,360) -
Share of results of associates FriGEst & A a2 A (575) (112)
Share of results of jointly Firfh 2L R4 6 B a2
controlled entities ZEECaF) 1,602 (2,638)
Amortisation of patents SRR 117 219
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  FEAIFHE TR IA# §Y 1,602 1,667
Allowance for doubtful debts RIZIRENR 22 700
Recognition of equity-settled R AR X
share-based payments CEREE 129 354
Investment income BERA (4,421) (3,722)
Interest expense FEXH 18,290 17,980
Reclassification of fair value (gain) loss WIEE AR T AR
of derivative financial instruments PTESRIAY
designated as hedging instruments AAEECERN) B
from hedge reserve R¥EHREBEN EEE (2,427) 7,734
Exchange loss arising from the notes FHERINEFTH E5IE 536 8,416
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KBARZ e 45 - (251)
Gain on fair value remeasurement RS 15 bl iR LA A 7
of a jointly controlled entity BEEH—HXF
upon obtaining control THIE RS 2 W - (860)
Imputed interest on deferred payable RIERR R 2 HEF B - 55

—:ﬁiﬁl%mgﬁﬁﬁﬁm@ﬂ, I\H83




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERERR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #2 —F——F+=-H=+—HIFFZF

2012 2011
—F--F —T——%F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Htst SeEDT F=7T
Operating cash flows before BELEEEENZ
movements in working capital BEXHERE 133,282 253,656
Decrease in inventories FERD 24,387 2,409
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables  FEUWBR TR (3840) 91,565 (41,025)
(Increase) decrease in prepayments TER R H A FEUCRIR
and other receivables (320 ek > (21,093) 124,994
Decrease in amount due from FEUEARIRAR A Bl
ultimate holding company 925 1,418
Decrease in amount due from JEW— B BEE R RIFIE
a related company Ve 405 120
Decrease in trade payables FERBRFUR D (1,849) (79,185)
Increase (decrease) in bills payable P RIRIE 50 Ot 4>) 55,328 (75,442)
Increase (decrease) in accruals FERTE A R E AL ERT AR
and other payables #hnCRid) 16,352 (5,890)
Decrease in derivative financial B AP TAEMITAE
instrument liability designated SR ITEBERD
as hedging instruments (275) -
Decrease in derivative financial WRDEAFEERS
instrument liability classified WOTESRTIARE
as held for trading Ve = (1,226)
Cash from operations EXMBHRE 209,027 179,829
Interest paid EFE (17,784) (17,314)
Income tax paid BEENFTET (36,417) (45,805)
Net cash from operating activities EERENBHEFHAE 244,826 116,710
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GRRENERR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &7 — & —

S At AR

2012 2011
—E—_fF —ET——%F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Htst SeEDT FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREFE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E Y% - #23 MRHE (85,959) (67,193)
Deposits paid of non-current assets EfERBEERS (19,541) (23,077)
Payment of prepaid lease payments HINTENEERIE - (263)
Proceed on disposal of a jointly HE—HEIEHIEEEE
controlled entity 11,858 -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant HEWE - sk
and equipment B 124 368
Deposits received on disposal B EHE 2B AR
of subsidiaries e 50,358 -
Dividends received from associates and B UkHE 2 A 7] K kA
jointly controlled entities BERRE 999 365
Interest received BUFIE 4,074 3,559
Dividend income from unlisted BUSEETEFRIER S
equity investment 347 163
Advances made to fellow subsidiaries BIEES NG b (3,071) (2,476)
Repayment received from fellow W (B[R R B A R FR
subsidiaries 3,088 2,318
Advances made to jointly M R B RS & RIE
controlled entities = (19,848)
Repayment received from jointly Ut [a] R 28 1) & B S T8
controlled entities 19 25,806
Decrease in deferred payable BERERFOR D - (994)
Proceed on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MBARME 45 - 792
Capital contributions in investment I HFIEHEBIEE
in jointly controlled entities ZRANE R = (4,445)
Cash outflow in respect of UG BE BB A AR 25 FTHE
the acquisition of subsidiaries He - (14,076)
Net cash used in investing activities RZEFEEERE B (37,704) (89,001)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

..vT = fﬁ. G 7 uwii&%

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 —Z

——F A= —HIFE

2012 2011
—E-_fF —T——F
Notes US$’000 Us$'000
Btat FEx FET

FINANCING ACTIVITIES ALERE
Proceeds from exercise of share options ~ 1T{E RIS 434 972
New bank loans IRITHERK 57,344 288,006
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (144,539) (372,046)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IHE R AR R =

interests 9! (3,328) (1)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company AR BIRRERE (28,060) (52,742)
Advance from ultimate holding company — FxAIEREA 7{ﬁﬁm)\ 166 228
Repayment to ultimate holding company B8 & 4L A FIFUE (166) (428)
Advances from associates IEPANGHEUN T FOR 6,500 6,511
Repayments to associates [E i /NEI B e (6,524) (7,180)
Advances from jointly controlled entites & AFEREIEHIE ?ﬁ 45 213
Repayments to jointly controlled entities &% £ [F) #2504 5 52 708 (70) (1,394)
Consideration paid for acquisition R E AR

of additional interest in a subsidiary ZEAREER (2,099) -
Proceeds from issue of notes BITRIBFIE - 210,600
Notes issue expense BITEREY N - (3,159)
Net cash (used in) from BALEEE (T #E) NG

financing activities HEFH (120,297) 69,410
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HeERERREZEM

CASH EQUIVALENTS 86,825 97,119
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BZHRER

AT 1 JANUARY £RRE 331,577 229,279
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~— [ERE S > 52 28 5,179
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W+ZH=+—HZ

AT 31 DECEMBER HeRERREE 418,430 331,577
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HeERERREEE

REPRESENTED BY:
Bank balances and cash RITAABR RIS 418,430 331,577
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is a listed public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding company
is Pacific International Lines (Private) Limited (“PIL”), a
company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section of
corporate information of the annual report. The financial
statements are presented in United States dollars
(“US$”), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of
manufacturing of containers and other related products
and providing logistics services.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets; and

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

2  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

R REIERTRY
BB HREE
([EFBMBHREER D)

B AR HE 1 R A BRI ET R AR
IERTRIF B MR & 2R

ZNER [0 R AR B ER AN LA TS B 2840 1 181 R A 2K
BRI RIS RT BB TS R -

effective.
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle!
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities'
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS
and HKFRS 7 9 and Transition Disclosures®
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and
and HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance'
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities?
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements'
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements'
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement!

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits’

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements’

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income*
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities?
Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine'

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012

88\\\
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R Bl =

R REIERTRY
BB HREER
([EFEMBHREER @)

B AR i HE 12 R A BRI ET R AR
ERTHEBMBREERN @)

EEMBHREENEOR EMI A

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements ZETNFRMNBEBYHHRE LR E IR
SINEREE 2 BERETENHAT - BEH
BHREENFEIRNR _-ZE—TF2EBE
CRBEMNLIEERZ D ERGE -

2  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows: BAEMBHREERFIRMEZERKNT ¢

o All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. All
other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

. With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in financial liabilities’
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the changes in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through profit
or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for the Group and the Company
for annual period beginning on 1 January 2015, with
earlier application permitted. The Directors anticipate
that the adoption of HKFRS 9 may have impact on
classification of measurement in respect of the Group’s
and the Company’s available-for-sale investment, which
is currently stated at cost less impairment and will be
measured at fair value upon adoption and be designated
as fair value through other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (Continued)

New and revised Standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS
28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below:

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC) — Int 12
Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10
includes a new definition of control that contains three
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to
deal with complex scenarios.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (Continued)

New and revised Standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements,

associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK(SIC) - Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control should be classified. Under
HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint
operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights
and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In
contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint
arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition,
joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than
those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional
guidance on the application of these five HKFRSs for the
first time.

The Directors anticipate that these five standards will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013. The
application of these five standards is not expected to
have significant impact on amounts reported but will
result in more extensive disclosures in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements. The standard defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items of which other HKFRSs require or permit fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are
more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based
on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently required
for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13
to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements and the
Company’s financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 2013 and that the application of the
new standard may result in more extensive disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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o4 |1

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income introduce new
terminology for the statement of comprehensive income
and income statement. Under the amendments to HKAS
1, a ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed
as ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’. The amendments to HKAS 1 also require
items of other comprehensive income to be grouped
into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group
for annual period beginning on 1 January 2013. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income
will be modified accordingly when the amendments are
applied in the future accounting periods.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other

new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
derivative financial instrument, which is measured at fair
value, as explained in the principal accounting policies
set out below. Historical cost is generally based on fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

(a) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company
and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition and up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances,
income and expenses are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive
income to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of
a subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted based on the net asset value of the
subsidiaries and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it (i) derecognises the assets (including any
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is
lost, (i) derecognises the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income
attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss
attributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss
has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to retained earnings as
specified by applicable HKFRSSs).

The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or a jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and
liabilities or assets related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R Bl =

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or another measurement basis required by
another standard.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group
obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the
Company achieves the control and has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at
cost, less any identified impairment loss.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for the transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position initially at cost and adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associates, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interest
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of future
losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and a liability is recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R Bl =

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EE&HEw)

(Continued)

(d) Investments in associates (d) REEARZEED
(Continued)
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over ERREER AR ASERKEAE
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the REETHENEERAEZARE
identifiable assets and liabilities of an associate B85 BRRAEHEWIAKRER
recognised at the date of acquisition is HEA o

recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair ARASEELAZNEERBESZ
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over DA BEFEBLERA  &EH
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is e AN EiEm AR o

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to AEEBENRIRE IRB B
determine whether it is necessary to recognise AIZE MMM ERRERE SR B
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s REMBEELX - BRER - ZEE
investment in an associate. When necessary, the EMERE(RENE) BRIEE—
entire carrying amount of the investment (including BEVEESSFTERNEIR &
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance 1A ) BREL AT UL (o) & REVE L B DA
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single TRERAR (KBS EEFEAEARM
asset by comparing its recoverable amount ARBERHEERKAz2RSE) - £
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to MEERZAEBRIAENARERR
sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss BEH—F D - B EeFEAEEBF
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of B EMRONBEEASEEESE
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment AERIZ5 36 5REE 0] o

loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Investments in associates
(Continued)

Upon disposal of an associate that results in
the Group losing significant influence over that
associate, any retained investment is measured
at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as
a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the previous carrying
amount of the associate attributable to the
retained interest and its fair value is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if
a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it
loses significant influence over that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate
that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Interests in jointly controlled
entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve
the establishment of a separate entity in
which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred
to as jointly controlled entities. The results
and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the
jointly controlled entities. When the Group’s share
of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals
or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the jointly controlled entity), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of a jointly
controlled entity recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the
investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Interests in jointly controlled
entities (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in a jointly controlled entity. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of a jointly controlled entity that
results in the Group losing joint control over that
jointly controlled entity, any retained investment
is measured at fair value at that date and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition as a financial asset in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the
previous carrying amount of the jointly controlled
entity attributable to the retained interest and
its fair value is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the jointly
controlled entity. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that jointly
controlled entity on the same basis as would be
required if that jointly controlled entity had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that jointly
controlled entity would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when it loses joint control over that
jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Interests in jointly controlled
entities (Continued)

The financial statements of jointly controlled
entities used for equity purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for the transactions and events in similar
circumstances.

Where a group entity transacts with its jointly
controlled entities of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the jointly
controlled entity are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity
that are not related to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including
leasehold land (classified as finance leases)
and buildings and site improvements held for
use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes other
than construction in progress and freehold land,
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress
and freehold land less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The estimated useful lives are

as follows:
Estimated
useful life
Leasehold land and
buildings and site improvements
outside Hong Kong
- on medium term lease 20 to 50 years

Buildings and site improvements
in Hong Kong
—on short lease 110 10 years
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fittings and
office equipment

Motor vehicles

510 15 years

5to 10 years
5to 10 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction in progress is included in
property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production, supply, or
administrative purposes. The amortisation of
prepaid lease payments provided during the
construction period is included as part of costs
of building under construction. Costs also include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Construction in
progress are carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Such properties are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives other
than goodwill to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EE&HEK%w)

(Continued)

(h) Impairment losses on tangible (hy BERBEEEEZRERX
and intangible assets other than (FMERM) @)
goodwill (Continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently B EBRREREER - & E (SR
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or BIRSBEN) 2 EEFEKASEE
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised BB 2 AET I EEE - B2
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so IREVFE T Z A E (SREGE
that the increased carrying amount does not © BAL) N EF AR AR E 18 K
exceed the carrying amount that would have K RERTEDFE o EE K 2 8RR
been determined had no impairment loss been FFHER AU -

recognised for the asset (or a cash generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.

() Inventories i) #&
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FEUARKA R A # 3 FERE R ERIE
realisable value. Cost, comprises direct materials, BHER - RABIEEZFRARAE - £
and where applicable, direct labour, and those HEEAT  MEFEEAL UK
overheads that have been incurred in bringing FEERE B AT E RERAREmE
the inventories to their present location and EREEER -
condition.
Costs of inventories are calculated using FERARAINE T AR E - AR
weighted average method. Net realisable FETE BB RGBEPARTEH
value represents the estimated selling price for EFERIBR AR B (T To A % EE
inventories less all estimated cost of completion LR RIEERE 2K AR ZF
and costs necessary to make the sales. %8 o

(i) Patents () =HEFf#E
Patents represent the cost of acquiring rights ERRETHHE R R R SHE T E m e
to technical know-how for the production and B2 ERNE 2 KA o ERRETYIE
sale of new products. Patents are carried at AR E 18 2 2FEE S N REREE
costs less accumulated amortisation and any KBEE o BRI BB IEE S X FH
accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation for SIEFTRE T F AR E BT H (AR
patents is recognised on a straight-line basis over RERE) NEREER

the shorter of contractual life or estimated useful
lives of 5 to 10 years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the Company’s statement
of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

() Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into one of the two categories, including
loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, amounts
due from ultimate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities,
subsidiaries and a related company and
bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated
or not classified as financial assets as
fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. The Group designated the
unguoted equity investments as available-
for-sale financial assets.

For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default
or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost,
the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

FA 5 S R B =

3 EEgBXm

k} &£&MIE#®

(i)

“E-CEER | BWEECEFARAF

EMEEB)
THEEREEX (&)

HREMEE  BREZTE
ERAIRERE -

. BITERE T HBEE
B BRE %

. EBR - mEREBH
XHMBEHARE - K

. ERABBEAREES

RS EM

HRAEHX A EZ S B
BE ARINBESRE
EEREEEEZERMERE
FREEBRNEFER ZEE
ARREREREFRER -

IR AT R Z 2 REEM
FOREBERSBEREEZ
RHERGHRKRSRE
MELEREEZRITNS
MARFER 2REZEDN
ZHAE - BRABEERET
SRERIMEER -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT SRR B =T

3

141

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial
asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EEgZ:H%K®
(Continued)
(k) Financial instruments (Continued) k) IR
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity i) EHEaBEREZIE
instruments (Continued) (%)
Financial liabilities THEE

e Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

Financial liabilities including bank
borrowings, trade payables, other
payables, bills payable, amounts due to
ultimate holding company, associates
and jointly controlled entities and notes
are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss

A financial liability is classified as held for
trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the near
term; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group
manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)

Financial liability at fair value
through profit or 10ss (Continued)

Financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss include held-for-trading derivative
financial instrument that is not designated
and effective as hedging instrument. At the
end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss is measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value arising
on remeasurement recognised directly
in profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

Derivative financial instrument
and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of
the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial
instruments (primarily foreign currency
forward contracts) as hedges of the
foreign currency risk in respect of the
notes issued. Such hedges are designated
and accounted for as cash flow hedges.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

Derivative financial instrument
and hedging (Continued)

Hedge accounting (Continued)

At the inception of the hedging
relationship, the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging
instrument and hedged item, along with
its risk management objectives and its
strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the
Group documents whether the hedging
instrument that is used in a hedging
relationship is highly effective in offsetting
changes in cash flows of the hedged item.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in hedge
reserve. The gain or loss relation to
the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity (hedge reserve) are reclassified
to profit or loss in the periods when the
hedged item is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

Derivative financial instrument
and hedging (Continued)

Cash flow hedges (Continued)

Hedge accounting is discontinued
when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or when it no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised
in profit or loss when the hedged items
affect profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a
contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract issued by
the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition

policy.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Derivative financial instrument
and hedging (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligation are discharged, cancelled
or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

() Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods sold
or services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from manufacturing operations is
recognised either at the time when the containers
being delivered and title has passed to customers
or acceptance notes being issued by customers;
depending on the terms of the underlying sales
contracts and all the following conditions are
satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;
° it is probable that the economic benefits

associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

Revenue from logistics services operations is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Deposits and instalments received from
customers prior to meeting the above criteria
for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under
current liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(m)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
has been established (provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EES:H%K®
(Continued)
(m) Leasing (Continued) (m) HE @
Leasehold land and buildings HELMREF

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit
before taxation” as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in
associates and jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised to profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each
group entity are presented in the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the
group entity operates (its functional currency).
For the purpose of the consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position
of each entity are expressed in US$, which is
the functional currency of the Company, and
the presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (“foreign currencies”) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange difference arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit
or loss on disposal of foreign operation.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations including
comparatives are expressed in US$ using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at monthly average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuated significantly during that year, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of the exchange
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a jointly controlled entity that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or jointly controlled entities that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisitions of a foreign operation on or after 1
January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and retranslated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the exchange translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as a deduction
from the carrying amount of the relevant asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets. Government grants that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

In respect of the subsidiaries in the PRC,
the Group contributes to a state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. Contribution payable by the Group
to the schemes is charged to the profit or loss
when employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

()

Retirement benefit costs (continued)

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group
contributed to defined contribution retirement
schemes which were available to certain
employees of Hong Kong. The assets of these
schemes are held separately and managed by
independent trustees. The amount of the Group’s
contributions, net of any contributions forfeited
in respect of those employees who leave the
schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
is charged to the profit or loss as incurred when
employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contributions.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group
operates and contributes to Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF”) schemes which are available to
all employees of Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of trustees.
Contribution payable by the Group to the MPF
scheme is charged to the profit or loss when
employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured
at the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during the
vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss, such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees
(Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
profits.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are
required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated allowance for doubtful
debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables taking into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The allowance is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the assets
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Allowances are applied
to trade receivables where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected and where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation on the recoverability of trade receivables is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of trade receivables and doubtfu
debt expenses in the years in which such estimate has
been changed. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying
amount of trade receivables was US$181,785,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of US$660,000) (2011:
US$273,372,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
US$700,000)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

134 1

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2012,
the carrying amount of goodwill is US$6,246,000 (2011:
US$6,246,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 19.

Fair value of derivative financial
instruments

As described in note 6¢, the Directors use their
judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instrument not quoted in an
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used
by market practitioners are applied. For derivative
financial instrument, assumptions are made based on
quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of
the instrument. The fair value of the derivative financial
instruments designated as hedging instrument as
at 31 December 2012 was estimated at a liability of
US$8,962,000 (2011: US$12,403,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, management
estimates the useful lives of various categories of
property, plant and equipment according to the
Group’s experiences over the usage of property,
plant and equipment and also by reference to the
relevant industrial norm. If the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment is less than the original
estimate useful lives due to changes in commercial and
technological environment, such difference will impact
the depreciation charge for the remaining useful life. As
at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment was US$343,159,000 (2011:
US$252,560,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings and notes disclosed
in notes 37 and 38 respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associates
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the Directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SR R M
6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6 TR
a. Categories of financial a. TMIAZEE
instruments
Group Company
A& Y /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F5 =—E2—% B —=2—F
US$’000 US$’'000 US$’000 US$’000
T TFET TFEx FFET
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables ~ B K& EWIRE
(including cash (BRERe Kk
and cash equivalents) R%RE) 660,663 675,528 373,028 404,061
Available-for-sale Al E
financial assets TRIEE 1,614 1,614 669 669
662,277 677,142 373,697 404,730
Financial liabilities =R
Derivative financial EEABEHRTA
instruments designated ~ HI$T4 & &l
as hedging instruments T HE 8,962 12,403 8,962 12,403
Amortised cost BESHA AR 649,405 666,337 358,328 386,441
658,367 678,740 367,290 398,844
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R Bl =

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6 EHMIRw

b. Financial risk management b. HHEKREIEEHERBRK
objectives and policies

The Group’s and the Company’s major AEERARNRIZFTESHTEABIE
financial instruments include available-for-sale AMREEZIRE  TESRMIE - &
investments, derivative financial instruments, WHARR - B YRR - IERTERSN -
trade receivables, other receivables, trade ERER - B EAERR - RITHE
payables, bills payable, other payables, bank F o BERESKIZERAT - BREH
borrowings, notes and current accounts with BAR) - BENT - REEHEES
ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries, B AR R —BRERR 2 AR -
associates, jointly controlled entities, subsidiaries ZEcmIT A FBEMERIFRER
and a related company. Details of these financial W o 2S5 ert TAZ B EREE
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. miZER (E¥RR - FEER&E
The risks associated with these financial tERRR)  FERREABDES
instruments include market risk (currency risk, [RUBE o GRfAI AR R I RS < BUR 5
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk T - BERETEREEZERRIA
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate IR G 8 K18 HE B I [ B AU B
these risks are set out below. The management 170

manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk T 153 JEL Bk

() Currency risk 0 EEE
Several subsidiaries of the Group have AEBEBTWBRRIZHET
foreign currency sales and purchases, HNEHEREE - INERTT
bank and cash and bank borrowings, EH A RIBTEE A
which expose the Group to foreign SEAMmEAZINER R
currency risk. Approximately 65% (2011: TEAREBEHEER T RFAZL
64%) of the Group’s cost of sales and 565%(ZF——F : 64%)
expenses are denominated in currencies RN REE B AN EHEET
other than the functional currency of the B MBERNBR(=ZF
relevant group entity making the sales, ——%F : 97%) BRIAREE 4
whilst almost 95% (2011: 97%) of sales BEEEERN e A -

are denominated in the group entity’s
functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT SRR B =T

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6 TR =)
b. Financial risk management b. HHEREIEEHERBRK
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Market risk (Continued) himER (&)
() Currency risk (Continued) 0 EEEE)
The Company’s currency risk is not AAFEMFENEEERI
significant in both years, as its monetary THRE BARARAICE
assets and monetary liabilities (other than EEREBEE(ZEERERE
notes and derivative financial instruments REPTAENITESRMIA
designated as hedging instruments) are BRON) EZPAEITEHE - D
mainly denominated in US$, which is also RATLZINEEEHE -
its functional currency.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s REREBH - AEBLINE
foreign currency denominated monetary FMECEBEENREEAE
assets and monetary liabilities (other than (R RIETE AR T AN
notes and derivative financial instruments Eer TERIN) ZBREEDN
designated as hedging instruments) at the N
reporting date are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE aE
2012 2011 2012 2011
B ZE——F ZFE-f ZT——%F
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
FEx FXE7T FEx FET
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR ¥ 286,781 239,249 497,970 439,699
Hong Kong dollar /& 7T
(“HK$”) 6,785 7,068 648 804
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA 5 S R B =

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6 EMIEw®
MHEREEBRERBR

b. Financial risk management b.
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange
fluctuation of RMB.

The sensitivity analyses include financial
assets and liabilities (other than notes and
derivative financial instruments designated
as hedging instruments) denominated in
foreign currencies which are different from
the functional currency of the relevant
Group entities. The following table shows
the post-tax profit or loss impact of the
foreign currency denominated non-
derivative monetary assets and liabilities
to change in RMB for the Group. The
numbers below indicate the (decrease)
increase in post-tax profit where RMB is
5% (2011: 5%) higher/lower against the
US$. This is mainly attributable to the
exposure outstanding at the end of the
reporting period on RMB bank balances,
bank borrowings and payables net of
receivables assuming they are outstanding
for the whole year:

(&)

5 bR (&)

() EHERE)
R AT
EETEAYAREZER
-

FRESTEEATRRA
RMEBEEB ZEMER
TREERAB(RBRREE
REFPTANTESRTA
BRON) c TREBREARER
ETEHHAREEFITET
AEBEENBEHRHRR
mMEERZTE - TRH
ERTARBLETER
E5955%(—ZF——%F :5%)
By 2 BR B 1% i A Ot 2 ) 38
Bt T2RARERES
HRBAEARBRITES
HEAREEARERITER
Ko FEA AR RFNBR PR U BR SR 2
[ P ER (R R 7% 5 M BR R
FHRRFR—KF)

2012 2011
—E—_f —T——F
US$’000 US$'000
F=Ex FET
RMB against US$ increase ARBHETEABEN R
by 5% (2011: 5%) —T——F:BHZRH) (7,542) (7,173)
RMB against US$ decrease ARBHETLTHRENDZH
by 5% (2011: 5%) —E——F :\HHzH) 7,542 7,173
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT SRR B =T

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

il Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

Currency risk (Continued)

In order to eliminate the exposure of
the RMB-denominated notes issued
in 2011, the Group and the Company
entered into two exchange rate swap
contracts to receive RMB against US$
based on the notes’ notional amount of
RMB1,576,830,000 in total. This notional
amount represents the total coupon
payments and principal to be paid during
three-year tenor.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the RMB exposure
to the hedged item (i.e. RMB-denominated
notes) and its hedging instruments (i.e. the
exchange rate swap contracts designated
as hedging instruments) at the end of
the reporting period. A 5% (2011: 5%)
increase or decrease in RMB represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in exchange
rates.

6
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If RMB is 5% (2011: 5%) higher/lower (i.e.
spot rate for the hedged item and forward
rate for the exchange rate swap contracts)
against the US$ and all other variables
remain constant, the net effect of the
hedged item and the hedging instruments
to the Group’s profit for the year ended
31 December 2012 would increase/
decrease by US$12,000/US$25,000
(2011: US$86,000/US$453,000) and
the Company’s gain (2011: loss) would
increase/decrease by US$12,000/
US$25,000 (2011: decrease/increase by
US$86,000/US$453,000) respectively. In
addition, the Group’s and the Company’s
hedge reserve would be credited by
US$547,000 (2011: US$1,394,000)/
debited by US$494,000 (2011:
US$1,279,000), accordingly.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s cash
flow interest rate risk primarily relates to
floating rate borrowings and variable rate
pbank balances. Interest rate risk on bank
balances is considered immaterial due
to short maturity. It is the Group’s policy
to keep its borrowings at floating rate of
interest so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk
(Continued)

The Group’s and the Company’s
exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The
Group’s and the Company’s cash flow
interest rate risk on non-derivative financial
instruments is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of London Interbank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR”) and borrowing rates
offered by People’s Bank of China arising
from the Group’s and the Company’s
variable-rate borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for bank borrowings at the
end of the reporting period. For floating
rate bank borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis point (2011: 50 basis
point) increase or decrease in interest rate
represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk
(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rate had been 50 basis points
(2011: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would have
decreased/increased by US$555,000
(2011: US$884,000). The Company’s
post-tax profit (2011: loss) for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would have
decreased/increased by US$638,000
(2011: increased/decreased by
US$739,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s and the Company’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable rate bank
borrowings.

The Group’s and the Company’s
sensitivities to interest rates have
decreased during the current year mainly
due to the decrease in variable-rate bank
borrowings.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its investments in unquoted
equity securities. No sensitivity analysis is
presented as the Group’s investments in
unquoted equity securities are measured
at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period.
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s and the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
and the Company due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Company is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantee issued by the Company as
disclosed in note 46. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure the adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. With respect
to financial guarantees provided to subsidiaries
by the Company, the Directors consider the credit
risk is limited because the subsidiaries have
strong financial positions.

In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

With respect to amounts due from subsidiaries,
ultimate holding company, jointly controlled
entities, an associate, fellow subsidiaries and
a related company, the Directors consider the
credit risk is limited because they have strong
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks or financial
institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or state-
owned banks in the PRC.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as
35.06% (2011: 18.13%) and 58.66% (2011:
53.50%) of the total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers, respectively. The Group
has assessed the creditworthiness of these
customers, all of these customers have strong
financial backgrounds and high credit-rating
within the industry. In this regard, the Directors
considered that the credit risk is low. The Group
also has concentration of geographical risk as
65.78% (2011: 55.96%) of the Group’s turnover
was generated from the customers from United
States of America (“USA”) and Europe.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants or to timely negotiate with the
lenders if any non-compliance is expected.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment dates. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The
tables include both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting
period.

In addition, the following tables detail the Group’s
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial
instrument. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted contractual net cash (inflows)
and outflows on derivative instrument that settle
on a net basis. When the amount payable is not
fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined
by reference to the projected interest rates as
illustrated by the yield curves existing at the end
of the reporting period. The liquidity analysis
for the Group’s derivative financial instrument is
prepared based on the contractual maturity as
the management considers that the contractual
maturity is essential for an understanding of the
timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R MRt
6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6 wMIRw®
b. Financial risk management b. HHERKREIEHERBRK
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nBECER 2
Liquidity and interest risk tables TEE)E 2 R B e 7
Group AEH
2012 g5
Weighted  On demand Total Carrying
average  orless than 13 3 months undiscounted amount
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years 5years+  cashflows at31/12/2012
RZ3-2f
mEEH UiS - =R - Bt MR +ZB=1-H
BBz —ER =fiA i-f k3 If RENELE (FEEE

% US$000 US$000 US$000 Us$000 US$000 US$000 US$000
S e S TEn S i e

Derivative financial liability 74##%&t%
- net settlement -BR8
Derivative financial instruments 15 24T A
designated as hedging fiEERIE
instruments (Nots) hiz) - - - 21 8,711 - 8,962 8,962

Non-derivative financial {74 &EE

liabilties
Trade payables EREHR - 29,321 97,726 - - - 127,047 127,047
Bills payable ERES - 36,504 11413 4,942 - - 118,949 118,949
Other payables EthERER - 16,715 5,703 12,499 - - 34,917 34,917
Amount due to ultimate ERRABERAT

holding company F4 - 10 - - - - 10 10
Amounts due to associates  FEREBEEAFIZTA - 1,990 - - - - 1,990 1,990
Amounts due tojointly EFAREHER

controlled entities WE - 12 - - - - 12 12
Bankloans HITER

- Interest bearing borowings* - Af&EE" 251% 9,462 15,952 25,646 102,013 - 153,073 148,054
Notes 4 4.75% - - 10,573 207,823 - 238,396 218,426

94,104 196,794 53,660 329,836 - 674394 649,406
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6 wEMIRw

b. Financial risk management b. HHEREIEEHERBRK
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nBEEEARE)
Liquidity and interest risk tables TREE 2 RFIFR R (&)
(Continued)
2011 e
Weighted ~ On demand Total Carrying
average  orless than 1-3 3months undiscounted amount
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years 5 years+ cashflows ~at 31/12/2011
RZ—%
TET L2 -2 =fA - 5 A$E T-AZt-R

Bl ~fAA =A f i3 F RERELE  (RALE
% US$000 Us§'000 US§000 Us§'000 US$000 Us§'000 US8/000
TEL T TEn SE TEL SE e

Derivative financial liability 74 &iH & (&

- net settlement - B8
Derivative financial instruments & A% T EH)
designated as hedging fiESBIA
instruments (Note) i) - - - 47 11,986 - 12,403 12,403

Non-derivative financial ek

liabilities
Trade payables BRI - 36,289 2313 - - - 128,602 128,602
Blls payatle EfZHE - 25,40 8215 - - - 63,621 63621
Other payables EfpferEa - 17214 1,063 1,506 - - 19783 19783
Amount due to utimate EARAERAR

holding company e - 10 - - - - 10 10
Amounts due toassociates  EREFERATE - 2,014 - - - - 2014 2,014
Amounts due to jointly ERRREHESE

controlld entfies B - 37 - - - - 37 37
Bark loans BER

- interest bearing bomowings™ -iERE 321% 15,902 39,159 45,939 147,693 - 248,693 235,259
Notes £ 4.75% - - 10,460 239,79 - 250,255 217,011

9,872 170,750 57,905 367,488 - 713,015 666,337
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6 THMIRw

b. Financial risk management b. HHERKREIEHERBRK
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nBEERERE)
Liquidity and interest risk tables RBET RFIFERZK (&)
(Continued)
The amounts included above for variable interest FHFOEBREFTECRIBE TR
rate instruments for non-derivative financial AlREERE - BF BB EEN IR EIR
liabilities is subject to change if changes in EEMNEMEFTES -

variable interest rates differ to those estimates
of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

* For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings, * MAEEZFEEREME @+ RF
the weighted average interest rate at the end of HRERIRZ I E BT FE A
each reporting period is used for undiscounted SAER BB I L T E T °

cash flows analysis.

Note: The undiscounted cash flow of derivative Biat . RETHEZMIAS KEHA S
financial instrument was determined assuming TERRBRFTEREREHKRZ
all variables used in the fair value calculation at BIZ A 15 T2 B 2 H -

the end of each reporting period remained the
same until maturity.

TE-CEER | BWEECEARAR
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6 TRMIRw

b. Financial risk management b. HHEREIEEHERBRK
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nBETER 2
Liquidity and interest risk tables TEE 2 R FIE R e 7 (#)
(Continued)
Company b /N
2012 —E-=F
Weighted ~ On demand Total Carrying
average  or less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted amount
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years Syears+  cashflows at31/12/2012
W2F-2%
mEFH bt -z =EA =5 i 8% +ZA=+-H
EIRHE —fEA =R i-£ k3 If RenEgE  JkEtE

% US$000 Us§1000 Us§1000 Us§1000 Us§/000 Us§1000 Us§'000
ST TEn ST i xR ST S

Derivative financial liability ~ fi4 % & E

- net settlement -BRE
Derivative financial instruments 5 1EX 54
designated as hedging fEeRIA
instruments (Nots) i) - = = 251 8711 - 8,962 8,962

Non-derivative financial FirEHhak

liabilities
Other payabes AtERER - - 2552 - - - 2552 2552
Amounts due to subsidiares  ERHBRFFE - 9,622 - - - - 9,622 9,622
Amount due to uffmate EARAERAR

holding company B - 10 - - - - 10 10
Amounts duetoassociates  EREEATE - 218 - - - - 218 218
Amounts due to jointly ERRREHES

controlled entities 7B - - - - - - - -
Bank loans &KIER

~interest bearing borowings” - Fr2fEE” 2.22% - 7,542 2,875 102,018 - 132,430 127,500
Notes ] 4.75% - - 10,573 227,823 - 238,396 218,426
Financial quarantee contracts ~ £BERAY - 39,816 54,237 1,529 6,507 - 102,089 -

49,666 64,331 34911 336,343 - 485,317 356,328

il Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012
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B R M et
6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6 wMIRw®
b. Financial risk management b. HHERKREIEHERBRK
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBEEEARE)
Liquidity and interest risk tables BB RFIF R K (&)
(Continued)
2011 =%
Weighted ~ On demand Total Carrying
average  orlessthan 1-3 3months undiscounted amount
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years 5 years+ cashflows at 31/12/2011
=%
e SR -2 =fA - 5 A$E T-AZt-R
ik i =fEA fo3 ik IF RERELE  (BEGE

% Us§'000 Us§'000 US$000 Us$'000 US8/000 Uss'000 US8'000
TEL SE e SE e SE e

Derivative financial liability 74 &iH & (&

- net settlement -BkE
Dervative finencielnstruments 55734
designated as hedging fESBTA
instruments (Nots) i) - - - 47 11986 - 12403 12,408

Non-derivative financial ek

liabilities
Other payables AERER - 339 - - - - 339 339
Amounts du tosubsidiares - ERTIBLEFE - 18,968 - - - - 18968 18968
Amount due to Utimate ERRSARAA

holding company b - 10 - - - - 10 10
Amounts due to associates  FERBSEDEFE - 113 - - - - 113 113
Amounts cue to jointly ERtREHES

controlled entities B - - - - - - - -
Bank oans RITER

~interest bearing borowings' ~ -FFEEE" 2.34% - - 22,851 132,637 - 155,388 150,000
Notes 2k 4.75% - - 10,460 239,79 - 260,255 217,011
Financial quarantee conracts ~ £BERAH - 34,608 57,087 14977 783 - 14,507 -

54,038 57,087 48,288 380,167 - 539,680 386,441
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

il Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables
(Continued)

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts
the Company could be required to settle under
the arrangement for the utilised amount that is
guaranteed by the Company if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Company considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. However, this estimate is
subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee
which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities is subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates
of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

For the Company'’s interest bearing borrowings,
the weighted average interest rate at the end of
each reporting period is used for undiscounted
cash flows analysis.

Note: The undiscounted cash flow of derivative
financial instrument was determined assuming
all variables used in the fair value calculation at
the end of each reporting period remained the
same until maturity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

- the fair value of derivative instrument is
made of discounted cash flow analysis
using the application yield curve and
forward rate for the duration of the
instrument for non-optional derivatives;
and

- the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
financial instrument) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

Fair value measurements recognised
in the statement of financial position

The derivative financial instruments designated
as hedging instruments of US$8,962,000 (2011:
12,408,000) are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, which is grouped
into Level 2 measurement. Level 2 fair value
measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in
the current and prior years.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities (except
for the notes) recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to
their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

REVENUE

Revenue represents sales of goods from manufacturing
and services income from logistics services operations,
less returns, discounts and sales related taxes, and is
analysed as follows:

E S

EEEIRBERB 2 HE RN IRTS 2 IRT%
WeRRE - MR BHEEER - o m
T

2012 2011

—F-F —ET——%F

US$’000 US$000

FEx FFET

Manufacturing BUERTE 1,506,200 1,782,022
Logistics services i RS 30,408 35,696
1,536,608 1,817,718

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (i.e. Chief Executive Officer) for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance are organised into two operating
divisions — manufacturing and logistics services. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its
segment information under HKFRS 8.

No operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Principal activities are as follows:

Manufacturing - manufacturing of marine dry
freight containers, refrigerated
containers, collapsible flatrack
containers, tank containers,
US domestic containers, other
specialised containers and
container parts.

Logistics services -  provision of container storage,
repair and trucking services,
serving as a freight station,
container/cargo handling
and other container related
services.

SEEN
MERDEEDHEAFEAAREEES
EBRRE(BERITRARE) 2EHR2ER
RE D RMEQLEERT - FUERBY)RAR
%o RMBBUBRSERL8RIEK - A%
BAZE AP AR L2 RE D BER -

MIRAE A T BELBRREHE

FEEBWT -

BNEERE - AESERERM R/R
EEE - TRBREATRE
=i B EERkEE
HRg - HiEEE AN
M EERER A -

WRiRTE - REBEEMART - EiE -

g - BB KEMS
HMERE  ARHMEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ER R B =
8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8 DERER (&)
Information regarding these segments is presented ZEDBERIZWRAT -
below:
Segment revenue and results TEHERBRER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and REEARERKEEDT 2 EHEBRELED
results by reportable and operating segment: iGN
2012 -
Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total Eliminations Total
HEER Wi BR% gt iReH ek
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$°000 US$°000
T£ER T£x T£ER T£x FER
REVENUE BEE
External sales HOMHE 1,506,200 30,408 1,536,608 - 1,536,608
Inter-segment sales AEEEE 13 751 764 (764) -
Total At 1,506,213 31,150 1,587,372 (764) 1,536,608

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing
market prices.

DEEHEERDETHET

SEGMENT RESULTS PEEE 110,954 5,780 116,734 - 116,734
Finance costs HBER (19,676)
Investment income BERA 4,421

Reclassification of fair value ~ #ISE AR TAR

gain of derivative fTESRMIA

financial instruments ZRAEERN

designated as hedging BETRHEED

instruments from hedge b

reserve 2,427
Share of results of associates ~ FE{HEEE A A 2% 7 575
Share of results of jointly JEME R REHE

controlled entities 2B (1,602)
Profit before taxation BREL AR A 102,879
Income tax expense FIEHIERY (33,948)
Profit for the year KEEEF 68,931
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

DEER (®)
DEEXERRER )

2011 —ET——%F
Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total  Eliminations Total
BUERT MR R et i FEkS
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn T TEn T TEn
REVENUE EEL
External sales HINEE 1,782,022 35,696 1,817,718 - 1,817,718
Inter-segment sales S e e 68 1,049 1,117 (1,117) -
Total &t 1,782,090 36,745 1,818,835 (1,117) 1,817,718
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing
market prices. \
AEFEEEERDENSERE ©
SEGMENT RESULTS REEE 217,683 6,505 224,188 - 224,188
Finance costs BISER (19,121)
Investment income KERA 3,722
Reclassification of fair value ~ 1RI8TE AL TAM
loss of derivative TSR TA
financial instruments ZARBEEE
designated as hedging RERREED
instruments from hedge E =t
reserve (7,734)
Changes in fair value of PERREERSH
derivative financial fTEemTA
instruments classified ZAREEE
as held for trading 931
Share of results of associates  FE{HEEE A A 2% 7 112
Share of results of jointly BRI TR
controlled entities g 2,638
Profit before taxation BRIEAT A 204,736
Income tax expense FTSRIAR S (50,909)
Profit for the year REERF 153,827

Segment results represent the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of finance costs, investment
income, reclassification of fair value gain (loss) of
derivative financial instruments designated as hedging
instruments from hedge reserve, changes in fair value
of derivative financial instruments, share of results of
associates and share of results of jointly controlled
entities. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
Chief Executive Officer for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

8 HHEENE)

Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s total assets REEARERLEEDTNBREERBAG
and total liabilities by reportable and operating segment: DWW -
2012 -
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
BEER Wi IR 75 ok
US$°000 US$’000 US$’'000
FT£Ex FEx TEx
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 969,188 61,026 1,030,214
Interests in associates NN P 5 5,314
Interests in jointly controlled entities A FLRIFEHIE L 2 5 6,812
Unallocated corporate assets KOBERBEE 422,865
Consolidated total assets e EEER 1,465,205
LIABILITIES afk
Segment liabilities DEEE 412,002 10,690 422,692
Unallocated corporate liabilities KABERFAE 393,483
Consolidated total liabilities meEaBRRE 816,175
OTHER INFORMATION HihE R
Amounts included in the measure AR FTE 2 8B A5
of segment profit or loss EEAHHEEN
or segment assets: TEEE:
Additions of capital expenditure N 118,866 1,434 120,300
Depreciation and amortisation e M 17,004 3,288 20,292
Gain (loss) on disposal of property,  HEME « # R HE
plant and equipment 2 Wz (F598) 67 (i) 66
Loss on property, plant and FHIEME - MR REE
equipment written off o it 326 55 381

S
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) TEVE L)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continueq) THEEREE#E)
2011 —ET——%F
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
BUEET L 1BE
US$000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 964,935 59,839 1,024,774
Interests in associates NN s 3 5,628
Interests in jointly controlled entities KA FFEIEHIEEE 2 19,606
Unallocated corporate assets AOBRRIEE 336,772
Consolidated total assets REEELR 1,386,780
LIABILITIES aff
Segment liabilities HEERE 277,386 13,302 290,688
Unallocated corporate liabilities VAN W/NCIR=L 483,890
Consolidated total liabilities e aERE 774,578
OTHER INFORMATION HinEwl
Amounts included in the measure of IR FHE 7 28EFsk
segment profit or loss BEIDIEERN
or segment assets: TEEE:
Additions of capital expenditure g E AR 56,881 575 57,456
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 14,392 3,851 18,243
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - R REE
plant and equipment W 181 - 181
Loss on property, plant and FHIEE - MR REE
equipment written off o it - 3,184 18 3,202
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R Bl =

DERER (&)
NHEEREGEE)

BRETEEMERGFRIET A RS REE DI
the reportable and operating segments. #—&Bn -

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

The amounts included in other information are part of

REVEEN RN BREMEROE -

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments - E%E"H‘éﬁ%@ Al RHEREHE
other than interests in associates, interests EHERAPBEAREEIN - FTE

in jointly controlled entities and unallocated ﬁ}%i’in RELE DI o A HREHED
A A
[==} A

B iRmE 2 B E LR R A ¥R
ZERBRHEEENR R

corporate assets. Assets used jointly by
reportable segments are allocated on the basis
of the revenue earned by individual reportable
segments; and

BRAFERIE - BEREEERRS
other than current and deferred tax liabilities and EEARBE  FIEAEISEELE
unallocated corporate liabilities. Liabilities for PDE o AIIREDEEEHE  BETY
HEERFGLLAVEDBD

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments -

]

W

which reportable segments are jointly liable are %
allocated in proportion to segment assets.

FTEERERBZEESR

Revenue from major products and
services

AEEXEEMERB2EEESTEAT

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from

its major products and services (after elimination of inter- (BHEIEDEHIHEE) -
segment sales):
2012 2011
—E—C_fF —T——%
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Manufacturing: BUEZETS
Dry freight containers SRR 1,064,707 1,181,443
Refrigerated containers RRERR 202,805 244 275
Tank containers ] 85,319 109,296
US domestic containers ER AR 79,543 171,498
Other specialised containers HEiriEsisa
and container parts JVE TS 73,826 75,510
Logistics services Y AR 7% 30,408 35,696
1,536,608 1,817,718
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8 HHEENE)

Geographical information 1 [ 53 1

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the REBZEBDHRES - FERERE - R
PRC and Thailand. The Group’s manufacturing division is SE 2 BLEZEBRNTE - IRIREERE
located in the PRC. Logistics services division is located &~ R R IRE .

in Hong Kong, the PRC and Thailand.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TRIEMHASEIRE PR 2 HE M5O

revenue by geographical market based on the location LEERE - WARERERMEEMIRBIE
of customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods/ HRH -

services:

2012 2011

—F—_fF —E——fF

US$’000 US$'000

TErn FET

USA ERH 785,290 709,371

Europe BOM 225,553 307,861

Hong Kong BB 214,664 225,884

South Korea Ea 86,936 116,205

PRC & 74,065 103,274

Others Ht 150,100 355,123

1,536,608 1,817,718
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount
of segment assets and non-current assets, other
than available-for-sale investment, analysed by the

FA 5 S R B =

DEER (2)
W= 538 (2)
AR 2R E (BEEM) DT D IBEE &

FRBDEE AIHEEZRERIN) 2REF
B:

geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount of
non-current assets
other than

Carrying amount available-for-sale

of segment assets investment
A HE ZHE LMY
SEEEZEREFE ERBEEZEREFE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F-F —ET——%F —F-F —ET—%F
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET F=x FET
PRC F 1,010,206 1,007,336 454,032 371,751
Hong Kong BB 19,968 17,402 5,868 4,885
Others Hth 40 36 762 762
1,030,214 1,024,774 460,662 377,398
Information about major customers FEXPEM

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of
the total sales of the Group are mainly derived from
the manufacturing segment in both years. For both
years, there is one customer contributing over 10%
of the total sales amounting to US$380,726,000 and
US$290,992,000 in 2012 and 2011 respectively.

REMBEFEEAEEHEEEBIRBI10%
MWEFPETEREREEBD I - REMF -
HHEREBBI0BNNEFLPRE—R ' H
HEEN_Z——FR-F——F955
380,726,000 3 7T } 290,992,000 F T ©

S
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT SRR B =T

9  FINANCE COSTS 9 WMBER

2012 2011
—F-=fF —E——fF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts FEZH - BRAFA
wholly repayable within five years FPEEEZRITEREES 6,996 9,498
Notes coupon payments ERES 10,415 7,328
Imputed interest on deferred payable RIEBR R HEF B - 55
Bank charges IRITFEE 2,265 2,240
19,676 19,121

10 INVESTMENT INCOME 10 HEBWA
2012 2011
—F-F —ET—%F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Interest earned on bank deposits RITIF KA B 4,074 3,559
Dividend income from available-for-sale AHEEZRE

investment A% B A 347 163
4,421 3,722
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ER R B =
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11 BRFHELER
2012 2011
—E—C—F —E——%F
US$’000 US$'000
F=x F=T
Profit before taxation has been arrived BB AT A 2B (RHA)
at after charging (crediting) the following: TAHEE
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE B & 733 574
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments B Bk AN » BIEE EHIE
— Salaries and other benefits - #re hEfER 110,191 101,431
— Retirement benefit costs (Note 13) — BRIREFIER (HE13) 3,666 2,899
— Share-based payments - AR 129 354
113,986 104,684
Depreciation and amortisation TE R
Depreciation of property, plant Yz - R NERETE
and equipment 18,573 16,457
Amortisation s
- Patents - B 117 219
— Prepaid lease payments in respect -HELHZANEE
of leasehold land B 1,602 1,567
20,292 18,243
Operating lease charges KEHEER
- Land and buildings - T REF 5,429 5,690
— Plant and machinery - R 138 237
5,567 5,927
Allowance for doubtful debts REIREE 22 700
Share of taxation charge of associates JEIREEE A RITIE 237 69
Share of taxation charge of jointly FEAG R ERER I8
controlled entities 141 142
378 211
Cost of inventories recognised as expense = REAHEXA 2 FE 1,339,966 1,505,169
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE - s MR E
and equipment Z W (66) (181)
Loss on property, plant and equipment I - WEERERE
written off Z BB 381 3,202
Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entities  H £ F R HIE 52 ~ W a8
(included in other income) (BREEEMKAA) (3,360) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MBAR K& - (251)
Gain on fair value remeasurement of Tﬂ%%%@ﬁﬁ@
a jointly controlled entity upon Eﬁ HEEHE
obtaining control Zuﬁlﬁn - (860)

S
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

12 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 12 EFERAARSHMA L ZEH
PAID INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS &
The following was the emoluments paid or payable to NTRENSEN T U (ZE——%F: +
each of the 12 (2011: 10) Directors of the Company. MEZCESHS -
2012 _E-_fF
Chang Teo Chan Hsueh  Tam Shuk Teo Kuan  ChengFu  LauHo Ong Yang, Jin

YunChung  Siong Seng KwokLeung ~ ChaoEn Ping, Sylvia TiouSeng  KimKin Kwok,David  Kit van  KaThai Vietor  XuChu Total
A% RNB 0 RER  BER  Sax ¥R BSE 0 BER  #WE IR BEN &R £
US§000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000 - USS000  USS000  USS'000  USH000  USS000  USS000
T FEr FEn FEr FEr fEr R TR TR T B FEn R

(Note i) (Note i) (Note i) (Note iv)
(i) (Wi (i) (i)
Fees [k & 2 19 2 19 p2) 3 - 39 30 36 10 301
Other emoluments: Afple -
Salaries and other benefts HEREMER - 48 194 176 64 51 - - - - - - 1,103
Contrioutons to refrement EIRERIES
beneft scheme - 19 10 - 10 2 - - - - - - Ll
Pefomancerelted incentie ~ $ERTREES
payments - 1,509 A 2 17 15 - - - - - - 1,583
Share-based payments HREE 5 49 10 12 10 2 2 - - 2 2 - %
48 2,04 254 22 300 (4] 3 - 3 32 38 10 3,122
2011 —T—%
Chang Teo  Hsueh Teo Jn Kuan  LauHo Ong Yang,  LauHo
YunChung SiongSeng  ChaoEn  TiouSeng ~ XuChu  KmKin Kt van ~ KaThai Victor Man Total
faf o RE O EER O REE Wy BRE AR IXE BEH AR &5
US§000  US$'000  USS000  USS000  USS000  US$000  USS000  US$000  US§000  US$000  US$000
Hr T & TR TR TEr i & TEr TEr i
(Note v) (Note vi)
(Hitv) (Hitv)
Fees we 39 2 28 28 2 38 28 27 36 15 273
Other emoluments; At :
Selariesand other benefits  FERE{ER - 348 167 4 - - - - - - 558
Contributions torefiement ~ R{RERILS
benefit scheme - 17 - - - - - - - - 17
Performance related incentive ~ $£RIfEREES
payments - 3450 4 13 - - - - - - 3,507
Share-hased payments WERR 12 124 ki) 6 3 6 - 6 5 4 19
51 3,965 264 85 26 39 2 3B i 19 4,551
Mr. Teo Siong Seng is also the Chief Executive Officer RINBESLAE TR AR EEITIARE - AW
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above BoHeREMIERBREITIRASMEHRSN
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief RSz % -

Executive Officer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

Note i:

Note ii:

Note iii:

Note iv:

Note v:

Note vi:

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung has been appointed as
executive Director on 1 March 2012.

Ms. Tam Shuk Ping, Sylvia has been appointed as
executive Director on 1 March 2012, and resigned on
2 February 2013.

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David has been appointed as
independent non-executive Director on 1 November
2012.

Mr. Jin Xu Chu, a former Director, retired from office at
the 2012 annual general meeting held on 6 June 2012
and did not offer himself for re-election.

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan had been appointed as
independent non-executive Director on 1 March 2011.

Mr. Lau Ho Man, a former Director, retired from office
at the 2011 annual general meeting held on 30 May
2011 and did not offer himself for re-election.

The above analysis includes 4 (2011: 2) Directors whose
emoluments were among the five highest paid individuals

in the Group. Details of the aggregate emoluments
paid to the remaining 1 (2011: 3) individual(s) whose
emoluments were among the five highest paid individuals

in the Group and which have not been included in

Directors’ emoluments above are set out below:—

FA 5 S R B =

12 EERAZEDHMA LT ZE

&E)
Bisti - BERFEAER - E——F = —HESE
FANTEE -

Misti: BHKLER-E——F=H—HEZ
ERHITEE UR—F—=F_H—

ABHT -

Hiatii 0 BHEEAER - FE——F+—H—HE
EHREUINTTESE

Wiativ: BIEFZMIAEER-F—=—F~AH
NARTZ —E——FERFFFEAS
_FARIT - G TNEEE(T o

Bisty . BIRffEs e R - E——F = f—HEZE
ERBE T IHBITESE °

Btitvi: BIEBEZARALEER-FT——FAHH

=t AEGTZ —E——FERFEFA
BRI - W TEEET -

s EeRAEEELERSTMAL
PEAZNE(CE——F MB)EEL-F
RES—R (2T ——%F : ZR)BAKEHE
hEEERHFMALZI - MARIIA LRE
=Rz AL EMSFBENT

2012 2011

—E——f —T——F

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Salaries and other benefits e R EMmEF 169 560
Retirement benefit costs BRIREFIHR 6 19
Share-based payments AR SE 5 64
180 643

“E-CEER | BWEECEFARAF o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

12

13

166 | |

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

12

EERTERSHMA L ZM
&)

WEF M I5E T HIHE :

2012 2011

—E—_fF —T——%

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A AE

US$128,520 — US$192,780 128,520 7T - 192,780 7T
(HK$1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000) (1,000,000 7T
- 1,500,000 7 ) 1 1

US$192,781 — US$257,040
(HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000)

2,000,000 7T)

US$257,041 — US$321,300
(HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000)

2,500,000%7T)

192,781 37T — 257,040% 7T
(1,500,001 # 7T -

257,041 37T - 321,300 3% 7T
(2,000,001 # 7T -

No waiver of emoluments, compensation loss and
inducement to join or upon joining the Group was paid
to Directors or the five highest paid individuals during the
year .

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated defined
contribution retirement schemes for certain employees
in Hong Kong. These schemes are registered under the
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance. The assets
of the scheme are held separately and managed by
independent trustees. Under the rules of the schemes,
the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at rates specified
in the rules. Any amount unvested upon an employee
ceasing to be a member shall be used to offset
subsequent employer’s contributions.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
MPF scheme for all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF
scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions
to the MPF scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

The employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of state-sponsored retirement benefit schemes operated
by the government in the PRC. Subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of relevant payroll to
the retirement benefit schemes. Obligations under the
scheme are borne by the PRC Government.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit or loss
representing contributions payable by the Group to the
MPF Scheme operated in Hong Kong and the retirement
benefit schemes in the PRC amounted to US$3,666,000
(2011: US$2,899,000).

No forfeited contributions of the Group’s defined
contribution retirement schemes was used to reduce the
current year’s contributions. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had no forfeited contributions,
which arose from the employees leaving the retirement
schemes and which are available to reduce the
contribution payable by the Group in the future years.

FA 5 S R B =

13 BABEFIER @

R-ZZTF+_A—RHE  AEECZRHE
ERRERIKNZERERE - ZETEITY
BRREHIMEATREFBRD] - FSEFIERTE
S EIEEREM - At B2 EETEAS
BNEEDHALHRBLIZEARTS °

RES\EHAEZRA - BELREEERE
BRRIRRIE 2 LR AET IR - AL
BEr 82— B EARIEZLFT SR - A
HEAROR AR BT FORE R R B F 2 FE A 4K

=+
e

ERE KB RRNER T
ZHRRBRKETEIKE - HI/B
SET B AL BIHR
AEDRTERFAR

R BIER AT HETT
RABIRERR
o WEtBIZ BT

B8Nk 2R RERHR D AERBERN T
ZECBEBR L ABRFTEIAREFRREZ
RRETEIZ 58 & $£3,666,000F 7T (=
ZT——4 :2,899,000%7T) °

ARG E 2 FREHRFORKE B U EHDL UL
ZHHEBIERERFEZHRE - RRE
HIR - AEREIL A REEREFRR ARG E
Ko BEAE AR HORE SR B TR B 2 DR MK

:g—:ﬁﬁﬁlﬁmgﬁﬁﬁﬁm@a{,h\MﬂBV‘




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14 B HIERX

FB MBI iRz MIEFE A GRS
Flz16.5%HE -

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

B (D E TSI T A S A ET R B & AR
REERNFRE SR 2 RITHREAE -

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the PRC in which the Group

operates.
2012 2011
—E—_fF —T——%F
US$°000 US$'000
FEx FET
Current tax: REERIA
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNER
— Current year - RFE 21 257
— Prior years overprovision - AT E 2 (5) -
16 257
PRC Enterprise Income Tax AR ATIS T
— Current year - RFE 30,248 47,509
— Prior years (over)underprovision - B E () D s (50) 446
30,198 47,955
Deferred tax (Note 43): EAERL IR (H15F43) -
Current year charge REFZH 3,734 2,697
Income tax expense for the year REEMEHERE 33,948 50,909

168 | I——‘

In accordance with the tax legislations applicable to
foreign investment enterprises, certain subsidiaries
of the Company are entitled to the exemption from
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the first two years
commencing from the first profit-making year of
operations, after offsetting all unexpired tax losses from
previous years, and thereafter to a 50% relief from the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the following three years.
As a result, certain subsidiaries of the Company were
subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 12.5%
for the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2012. These
subsidiaries would be taxed at 25% for the coming
years.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FA 5 S R B =

14 FEHRERXZ®)

2012 2011
—FE—_f —ET——F
US$’000 % US$’'000 %
FEx Btk FET Bk
Profit before taxation R Bt B igs 71 102,879 204,736
Tax at the domestic tax rate  LABI AT & A& 25%
of 25% (2011: 25%) (2011 : 25%) 5T & 25,720 25.00 51,184 25.00
Tax effect of share of results JE{EEEL AT 2
of associates w7 RAg A (144) (0.14) (28) (0.01)
Tax effect of share of results G TR HI 62
of jointly controlled entities 2 &518 CF)
2GR 401 0.39 (660) (0.32)
Tax effect of expenses that  7E &+ [ 2R A % FII 6
are not deductible in TEER 2 S H
determining taxable profit ~ Z B2 1,796 1.75 5,342 2.61
Tax effect of income that are  FE &2 & :R )i FII A
not taxable in BEREL 2 WA
determining taxable profit & (2,156) (2.10) (4,514) (2.20)
Tax effect of deductible RNIEFERZTRIEE
temporary difference BERER Y
not recognised Bgse - - 475 0.23
Tax effect on tax losses RAFEARIEMER
arising in the current ZHBEE
year not recognised WS 4,637 4.51 2,686 1.31
Tax effect of utilisation of — {ERATEE KIE
tax losses previously not R IATEEE
recognised 2GR E (27) (0.03) (783) (0.38)
(Overjunderprovision in BIEE (0 2
prior years e s (55) (0.05) 446 0.22
Income tax on FTiSHiERR R
concessionary rate (4,184) (4.07) (5,630) (2.75)
Withholding tax on ROBEFE 2
undistributed profits RINRATHIE 3,734 3.63 2,697 1.32
Withholding tax paid on PRC B4 & R {E
dividend previously not RZHPERE
recognised RINRATHRIE 3,862 3.75 131 0.06
Others EHAh 364 0.35 (437) (0.21)
Tax charge and effective AEERIEBES N
rate for the year PGS 33,948 32.99 50,909 24.88

“E-CEER | BWEECEFARAF o

111169



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R R Bt
15 DIVIDENDS 15 2
2012 2011
—F--F —T——%F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Dividends recognised as distributions REABRBEDIRIE.
during the year:
Interim in respect of current financial RELZHERE - B2
year, paid — HK4 cents (2011: HKO cents) & & 3@A% 4781l
per ordinary share =%
FEBRIEMW) 12,478 27,941
Final in respect of the previous financial FFEEZREKE - BN
year, paid — HK5 cents (2011: HK8 cents)  &F&3@A% 5781l
per ordinary share (ZF—%:
FEmA% 8 ENL) 15,582 24,801
28,060 52,742

e Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

The final dividend of HK2 cents in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: final dividend of
HK5 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December
2011) per ordinary share, total of which equivalent
to approximately HK$48,400,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$6,200,000) (2011: HK$120,964,000
(equivalent to US$15,582,000)) has been proposed
by the Directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in forthcoming annual general meeting.

EEeRBERITRMEZREHE-Z
——F+-AZt+—RALEEEEEAK?2
B ZE——F HEZZE——F+=
A=+—BLEFESLBERSBI) 2K
Hi R B - & 18 % 5 #)48,400,000 % 7T
(N #16,200,000E7T) (T F——4:
120,964,000/ 7t( #8 & 5 15,582,000%
7)) BB R RN RITZ R R AF K
2 AR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R 3 2
16 EARNINGS PER SHARE 16 BERET
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share RARRRELMERREEGRAF TR
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on TEHBHE :
the following data:
2012 2011
—F—_fF —E——fF
US$’000 Us$'000
F=x FET
Earnings: Y -
Earnings for the purposes of HEUGTERER R E
calculating basic and BIRERN 2 ZH
diluted earnings per share 60,346 138,641
Number of shares: BR7EAE -
Weighted average number of FHEUAGTE ARG EF
ordinary shares for the purpose AR ANAE
of calculating basic T8 E
earnings per share 2,418,906,258 2,415,613,232
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary EhREEE BT
shares for share options Epil 2 1,515,950 4,524,202
Weighted average number of HEUGTESHEERAT
ordinary shares for the purpose 2 EmAR hniE
of calculating diluted earnings SRk 4=
per share 2,420,422,208 2,420,137,434

TE-CEER | BWEECEARAR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 #)3% - #s8 R&

Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings Plant fittings and
and site and office Motor  Construction
improvements machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
HELHRTET BER HE KER
Group 358 RIBHR BE BLERG RE ERIE 4%

Us§ 000 US§:000 US§:000 US§:000 US§:000 US§:000
RE RE RE RE RE RE

Cost BE
At 1 January 2011 RZE—F-f—H 124,005 141,912 9,008 6,875 18,263 300,063
Translation differences BEES 1626 790 103 4 - 2,561
Aoquisition of a subsiclary  WEE—THE L] 16,760 9,855 180 770 4 27,569
Additions hE 460 3,004 500 762 52,047 57,193
Disposals e - (219) (1) 67) - (307)
Write off i (1,831) (8.804) (1,621) (1,351) - (13,607)
Transfer B 14,180 8,884 1,351 439 (24,854) -
At 31 December 2011 K-E——%+-A=1-H 155,200 155,642 9,500 7470 45,660 373472
Translation differences BEES 37 2 21 14 - 74
Additions hE 215 3,866 345 966 104,206 109,618
Disposals ik - (589) () (254) - (849)
Write off iz - (1,480) (207) (224) - (1911)
Transfer a8 255 26,845 2,867 2413 (32,380) -
At 31 December 2012 RZF-Z5+ZA=+-H 155,707 184,266 12,520 10,385 117,506 480,404

Accumulated depreciation  Z7EHTE
At 1 January 2011 RZE—5-F-H 33,108 69,375 6,389 4512 - 113,884
Tranglation dffferences BEER 487 504 73 2 - 1,096
Charge for the year TEENE 5,497 9,250 1,084 626 - 16,457
Eliminated on disposals HEHH - (62) (19 (39) - (120)
Eiminated on write off REiapd (1,404) 6,406) (1,469) (1,126) - (10,408)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—%+ZA=+-H 37,688 72,661 6,558 4,005 - 120912
Translation differences BEES - 7 3 1 - 81
Charge for the year TEENE 6,704 10,308 662 899 = 18,573
Eliminated on disposals HEHH - (503) (60) (228) - (791)
Bliminated on write off sk - (1174 (182) (174) - (1530)
At 31 December 2012 RZF-Z54+ZR=t+-H 44,302 81,369 6,981 4,503 - 137,245

Carrying values REERE
At 31 December 2012 RZF-Z5+_A=t+-H 111,315 102,917 5539 5,882 117,506 343,159
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+ZA=+-H 117,512 82,981 2,942 3,465 45,660 252,560

e Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R Bl =

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 4% - B R%E &)
(Continued)

The carrying value of land and buildings of the Group is REEN M REF 2 REBEITAT :
analysed as follows:

Leasehold
land and Site
buildings improvements Total
HELH
RiEF TiHR L)
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FEx F=T
Group &
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-A=+—H
Held outside Hong Kong ERBUINEE RS
On medium-term lease HRERFA 4D
(20 to 50 years) (20=504F) 3,441 107,874 111,315
At 31 December 2011 W_ZE——%+_A=+—H
Held in Hong Kong EEBHE
On short lease 5 ERFRAY
(less than 10 years) (LH10%F) - 1 1
Held outside Hong Kong EEBAIMEERES
On medium-term lease R HATE AT
(20 to 50 years) (202 50%) 3,553 113,958 117,511
3,553 113,959 117,512

S
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 4% - B R%E &)

(Continued)
Furniture,
Leasehold fittings and
land and office Motor
buildings equipment vehicles Total
HELH HFE KER
REF WAERH RE k]
US$000 US$ 000 US$'000 US$'000
TEx TEx TEx TErx
Company b /NG|
Cost EEK
At 1 January 2011 WZE——F—H—H 4,287 2,403 61 6,751
Additions /%EE - 65 - 65
At 31 December 2011 R-Z——F+-A=+—H 4,287 2,468 61 6,816
Additions ﬁﬁ - 24 - 24
Disposal HE - ) - )
At 31 December 2012 RZE—Z—F+-A=1—H 4,287 2,491 61 6,839
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZIEIE
At 1 January 2011 RZZ—F—H—H 621 1,634 61 2,316
Charge for the year REEHE 113 170 - 283
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+ZA=1—H 734 1,804 61 2,599
Charge for the year AEENE 112 184 - 296
Eliminated on disposals HELHH - - - -
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-A=+—H 846 1,088 61 2,895
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2012 RZFE-Z&+°A=+—H 3,441 503 - 3,944
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=-A=1+—H 3,553 664 - 4,217

e Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012



17

18

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R Bl =

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 #)3 - S REE (&)

(Continued)
2012 2011
Company Y /N —F—_fF —T——fF
US$’000 US$'000
F=x FET
Leasehold land and buildings held VAR EATE A9 (20 250 4F)
outside Hong Kong on A BB AN [E
medium — term lease Ky L ib R AEF
(20 to 50 years) 3,441 3,553
The land and building elements of a lease of land and T REFHARH L REFE S AR
building cannot be allocated reliably between the land T ERFEHOER A - BIHHOERE
and building elements, the entire lease is treated as WRAYEMEE - MBS iR M o
property, plant and equipment.
PATENTS 18 E T
Group AEE
Us$'000
FET
Cost A
At 1 January 2011, R-_T——%—HF—H"
31 December 2011 and —ET——F+-fA=1+—HRK
31 December 2012 —E-_H+-A=+—H 4,583
Amortisation ey
At 1 January 2011 WZZE——F—H—H 4,247
Charge for the year PG i 219
At 31 December 2011 WZE——F+=-A=+—H 4,466
Charge for the year PGS i 117
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-A=+—H 4,583
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2012 R-IE-—-F+"A=+—H -
At 31 December 2011 RZZT—F+=ZA=+—8 117

“E-CEER | BWEECEFARAF i



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SR R M
18 PATENTS (Continued) 18 EHEFIH#E &)
Company P /N
US$'000
FZE=T
Cost A
At 1 January 2011, n-—ZE—F—H—A8-
31 December 2011 and —ET—F+ZA=F+—HEK
31 December 2012 —ET——F+-A=+—H 1,000
Amortisation ey
At 1 January 2011 RZFE——F—H—H 633
Charge for the year IREEHEE 200
At 31 December 2011 RZZFE—F+=-_A=+—H 883
Charge for the year I EHESE 117
At 31 December 2012 RZE—=—F+=-A=+—H 1,000
Carrying values BREEE
At 31 December 2012 R-_F—_f+°"A=+—H -
At 31 December 2011 RE—F+_A=+—H 117
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R Bl =

GOODWILL 19 HE
Group AEH
US$’'000
FET
Cost A
At 1 January 2011 WZE——F—HA—H 7,224
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary WEE— B A RIEAE 966
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary HE— A R (318)
At 31 December 2011 and RZZE——F+-A=+—HK
31 December 2012 —E-—_H+-A=+—H 7,872
Impairment HE
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——F—H—H 1,944
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary o — BB A B (318)
At 31 December 2011 and RZE——F+A=+—HK
31 December 2012 —E-——H+-A=+—H 1,626
Carrying values FREEE
At 31 December 2012 RIE——_F+°"A=+—H 6,246
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=A=+—H 6,246
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been UREREME - ESEEE R R BREUR

allocated to an individual cash generating unit (“CGU”),
including five (2011: five) subsidiaries in manufacturing of
container.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of CGU is determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling
prices and direct costs during the period. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are
based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling
prices and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

BE aﬁﬂfﬁ(_g——i CHE) BR
SUEREM B A

AEER B SFAHBETREA - 0
REPSBREBT LR EORES U

HIRBE F IR -

WRR BN AWRE e ERREERERE
HE - SHEEREERMEANIZRRE
EHRENIRE BRXURERHEBR
MEZRBERNEEE - B EBERAIN X
AETANERE - RRE R HH G EE

1670 22 iR B3R & 58 07 48 B 1 5 JE LR 2 R
o IBERARIFRAERBRIMETE
EERMERKERNE R UNISNELIE
BIFE AR RE B IR REENER -

—CFER | BHERECEARAH
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19

20

178\\\| 
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GOODWILL (Continued)

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by management
for the next five years and extrapolates cash flows for the
following five years based on an estimated growth rate
of 5% (2011: 5%). The rate used to discount the forecast
cash flows is 10% (2011: 10%). The Directors consider
that reasonably possible change in key assumptions on
which the Directors have based to determine the CGU’s
recoverable amount would not cause the CGU’s carrying
amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

19

GEIE -2,

AEENRERERATREBERORERE
FIEtMARRAFNYHEERR - WK
5% (—F——%F : 5%) WEFHE R ERKFER
ARAFHHRERE - BAREAIRSRE
FEERENBRRERI0% (ZF——F:
10%) - EER AN ERS REEMLA
WEISEN T ERREFEEN A S T
YWAesIBReREEMNREERLER
Yeml g8 o

20 MMBARZER

Company
P /N

2012 2011
—E——f —ET——F
US$°000 US$’'000
T=Ex FFET
Unlisted shares and investments, at cost JEEMR RIEE - KA 305,811 279,473
Less: Impairment loss recognised L ERARIEE R - -
305,811 279,473

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company
reversed an impairment loss of US$3,782,000 in relation
to the investment costs on certain subsidiaries in the
PRC in order to reflect the increase in their estimated
recoverable amounts.

HE-_Z—F+=-A=+—HILFE &
NABFEELHE AR ZZEXNANRER
7 3,782,000 % 7T + LA R EL TR HA AT 0]
SRR IEN °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M et
20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 RMBARIZH#EZE (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December RZE—ZFRT——FF+A=+—
2012 and 2011 are set out below: B ARRZETEMBRARIZFBNT :
Issued and fully
Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration ~ Group's equity interest capital activities
BBITR
M3/ HERHG/
& bR KEBAILRE Bl A TEXH
2012 2011
—§-—f —_T——F
DY Terminal Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
EFEERRAT BA HK$1,000,000 container
TRR storage and
1,000,000 7T repair services
RUEERBRT
KBRS
Eng Kong Container & Warehousing Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordinary Investment
KREREERRAT B HK$300,000 holding
EER RERR
300,000% 7T
Eng Kong Container Services Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordinary Provision of
KEEERBARATF BB HK$3,000,000 container
LEk storage, drayage
3,000,0007%7C and repair services
RIELBRE
ToiE RAHE IR
Foshan Shunde Leliu Wharf & Container Co., Ltd. # PRC 59.0% 59.0% US$21,000,000 Provision of
(“Foshan Shunde Leliu Wharf’) # (Note 1) 21,000,000% 7T container
BmIEERS AR EEERR AR (Hizt1) terminal services
(ThLmIEERs A REERM
Bk
Foshan Shunde Singamas Tank Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$10,000,000 Manufacturing
(“Foshan Shunde Singamas Tank Container”) HE (Note 2) 10,000,000 7T of tank containers
fITEERERE S EERAR (Hi#2) SUEER

(MHhiL IR B e\ 1R )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M e
20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 RMBARIZH#EZE (&)
(Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration ~ Group's equity interest capital activities

E#ITR

B/ WRBRH/
&8 Ealpii KEEERRE BEARE TEEH

2012 2011
5% F—-Ff

Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific Container Co., Ltd. * British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Marketing dry
Islands 1,000%7T freight and
HBRUHS specialised containers
in the PRC
ERELH
HERBREREN
Guangdong Shun An Da Pacific Container Co., Ltd. * * PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$17,900,000 Manufacturing
EREZERTERBRAR " H 17,900,00057C of dry freight
and specialised
containers
B SR
REER
Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. * ¥ PRC 91.0% 91.0% US$40,000,000 Manufacturing
EMRYEEERAR H 40,000,000% 7T of dry freight
containers
B SR
Ningbo Pacific Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% 100.0% 1US$20,000,000 Manufacturing
BERATEREERAR & 20,000,000%7C of dry freight
and specialised
containers
B SR
REER
Qidong Pacific Logistics Equipment Co., Ltd.* " PRC 100.0% N/A US$45,000,000 Manufacturing
(“Qidong Pacific Logistics”) H (Note 3) NEA 45,000,000%7C of refrigerated
BERTOREEERAR (Hzz3) contaners
(IBRATR]) BERRERM
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R Bl =

20 MNMBABZHESLRE (&)

(Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration ~ Group's equity interest capital activities

BETR

B/ WRBRH/
&% LMt FEEERRE EARE TEEH

2012 2011
5% F——Ff
Qidong Pacific Port Co., Ltd. * PRC 100.0% 100.0% RMB90,000,000 Provision of
(“Qidong Pacific’) HE (Note4) AR 90,000,0007¢ container
BRATRBERAR " (Hiit4) terminal services
(TBRAF)) REERM
SRR
Qidong Singamas Energy Equipment Co., Ltd.* * PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$45,000,000 Manufacturing
BREDEREEERAR HE (Note 5) 45,000,000F 7T of dry freight
(H1i25) and specialised
containers
g SR
KRR
Qingdao Pacific Container Co., Ltd.** PRC 100.0%  100.0% US$21,605,700 Manufacturing
BEATERERAR " H 21,605,700%7T of dry freight
and specialised
containers
B SR
REER
Qingdao Singamas Industrial Vehicle Co., Ltd.* # PRC - - RMB20,000,000 Manufacturing
(“Qingdao Singamas’) HE (Note6)  AR*620,000,0007C  of container chassis
EEBBIXEERAR (Hiit6) BEE SRR
(I588%H))

Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container Co., Ltd. # PRC 74.0% 74.0% US$25,300,000 Manufacturing
LEBELATEEERAR ! H 25,300,000 7T of dry freight and
specialised containers
g SR
KRR
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Technical & Development (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.”)
BRERER (L) BRAR "
(A5 [ BRE RIS (L8 ERAR))
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B R R M e
20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 RMBARIZH#EZE (&)
(Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration ~ Group's equity interest capital activities

E#ITR

B/ WRBRH/
&8 Ealpii KEEERRE BEARE TEEH

2012 2011
5% F—-Ff

Shanghai Pacific International Container Co., Ltd. *# PRC 60.0% 60.0% US$26,000,000 Manufacturing
HEATFERERERAR " i 26,000,000%7T of tank containers
SRR
Shanghai Reeferco Container Co., Ltd. * * PRC 90.9% 90.9% US$22,000,000 Manufacturing
HEBRLRERERAA" i 22,000,000%7T of refrigerated
containers
S RRERM
Singamas Container Holdings Ltd. * Bahamas - - US$7,200,000 Investment
(“Singamas Bahamas’) ErE (Note 7) 7,200,000%7T holding
(Hiz#7) REER
Singamas Container Industry Co., Ltd. ** PRC 75.0% 75.0% US$5,100,000 Manufacturing
BHERIEARAR i 5,100,000 % 7T of collapsible
flatrack and
specialised
containers
HETRAR
KRN
Singamas Container Holdings (Shanghai) Limited * * PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,000,000 Provision of
(formerly known as “Singamas Container H 2,000,00037T technical and

development services

of container
manufacturing
TSRS
R R AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M et
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 RMBARIZH#EZE (&)
(Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration  Group's equity interest capital activities
BERITR
3L/ WREH/
&% Ealpiit FEEERRE EARE TEXH
2012 2011
=§-2§ 32—
Singamas Depots Holdings Ltd. * Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Investment
BRI EBRAR BA HK$10,000 holding
L BAR
10,00087C
Singamas Logistics (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. * PRC 60.0% 60.0% US$5,780,000 Provision of
Bhon(E8)ERAR " HE 5,780,000 % 7T container storage
and repair services
RS RMRT
REBRS
Singamas Logistics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$6,500,000 Provision of
BRR(R2)BRAR HE 6,500,000% 7T container storage
and repair services
RS RMRT
REBRS
Singamas North America, Inc. @ USA 100.0% 100.0% US$500,000 Marketing
XE (Note §) 500,000% 7T containers in
(Hi:£8) the USA
EXRBSHERRA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M e
20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 RMBARIZH#EZE (&)
(Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration ~ Group's equity interest capital activities

E#ITR

B/ WRESH/
&8 Eauyiika KEEERRE BEARE TEEH

2012 2011
=$-2§ “T—%

Singamas Terminals (China) Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
EBRUES RERR
Singamas Terminals Holdings Ltd. * British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
RERUES REAER
Singamas Terminals (HK) Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%T holding
RERUES REER
Singamas Terminals (Hong Kong) Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
BREREA(FE) AR BA HK$5,000,000 mid-stream
EER services
5,000,000 7T RALPIRIER
TR
Singamas Warehouse (Shanghai) Company Ltd. British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
EBRUES RERR
Tianjin Pacific Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 97.0% 97.0% US$25,700,000 Manufacturing
RERTEEERAR i 25,700,000%7C of dry freight
and specialised
containers
BEE SR
REER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M et
20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 RMBARIZH#EZE (&)
(Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of paid share/
incorporation/ contributed Principal
Name registration  Group's equity interest capital activities
BETR
B/ WREH/
&% LMt FEEERRE EARE TEEH
2012 2011
Z§-2% “F—f
Tianjin Singamas Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,000,000 Provision of
REBRWEREBRAR HE 2,000,000% 7T container storage,
repair and trucking
services, and
serving as a
freight station
REEEREREE
B HE
REE1RY%
Wellmass Group Ltd. British Virgin 60.0% 60.0% US$10,000 Investment
Islands 10,000% 7T holding
RERTHS REER
Xiamen Pacific Container Manufacturing PRC 100.0% 95.2% US$23,000,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. * " ("Xiamen Pacific”) i (Note 9)  (Note 9) of dry freight
EFATEREEERAR (Wz9)  (Wit9 containers
(TEFAF)) 23,000,000% T BEG SRR
Yixing Singamas Metal Products Co., Ltd. * # PRC 95.0% 95.0% US$200,000 Manufacturing
BEBHCENRERLR HE 200,000 70 of container parts
REERRRY
* Subsidiaries held directly by the Company * AR A EEE B A
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in accordance # RIEBELAVIRAEER PR T2 e
with relevant laws and regulations BibE
» Wholly owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC 8 RIEFBZDI REERFEL 7.2 2N E
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations HHS
e Represented common shares held by the Company @ REAL Al B ) ZHR
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

The principal place of operation of each subsidiary is
the same as the place of incorporation/registration
stated above, except for those companies incorporated
in British Virgin Islands and Bahamas which are
incorporated for investment holding purpose.

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the Directors,
principally affected the results and assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year.

Notes:

1 On 16 October 2012, each of the Company and
Singamas Terminals (China) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a share transfer
agreement with Foshan Shunde Chuangjian Investment
Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the PRC with
common substantial shareholder with Guangdong
Fuwa Machinery Holding Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Fuwa
Machinery”), a company incorporated in the PRC
which is currently holding 41% equity interest in Foshan
Shunde Leliu Wharf, to dispose of their respective
40% and 19% equity interest of Foshan Shunde
Leliu Wharf at a consideration of RMB98,3710,000
and RMB46,690,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$15,641,000 and US$7,428,000) respectively. As at
31 December 2012, the transaction has not obtained
approval from related government authority.

2 On 16 October 2012, the Company entered into a
share transfer agreement with Guangdong Fuwa
Machinery to dispose of its 100% equity interest
of Foshan Shunde Singamas Tank Container at a
consideration of RMB171,525,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$27,289,000). As at 31 December
2012, the transaction has not obtained approval from
related government authority.

3 Qidong Pacific Logistics was newly established
during the year 2012, which is mainly engaged in
manufacturing of refrigerated containers.

4 Qidong Pacific was established during the year 2011,
which is mainly engaged in provision of container
terminal services.
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B AR ZHERE &)

BREBRLEEMERERILAERIRE
ERARIN  SMBRARKEER 2 T B
BRER b XCPTE 2 RS FE B AER o

ERMIIDREFRRUAREZBANE
EREATVENTIEZMNEAR - EEEAR
REEMBHB AR ZFIERSIBRERE -

BEAFEL  WREEAMBARERE
BZEAES -

1 RZFE—ZFF+A+NE  ARFRES
EW1E 2 7] - Singamas Terminals (China)
Limited & B B2 1L TTNE{Z = B E 1 BB
RG] (B R B 7 30 8B = 2 e
EEERA A ([ERZERW]) - —FI
R B FE A L TTNETR R £ E 41 %
BAEmZ A BER—FZERE)
FHE—IHRIEEE - D FIUARE
98,310,0007T B A R # 46,690,0007T (18
ZR#115,641,000% 7T % 7,428,000% )
BB &R FIR L TR 275
1h40% K 19% 2 R A # iz « KR —F——
FFZH=+—H WX G FEEEE
BRFEEPIRIHL I -

) REF—ZF+A+NH AR AHER

EEREELT] —ERIEEZE i UAR
171,625,000t (18 % K 4927,289,000
ZET) BB &R R B T NETE [
B ENE100% 2 R » R=ZF—=
F+ZH=4—H X G HFERZIEE
BTESPTRIHL E ©

3 BRAFY )5 —FE— —FEFAIEE
RAF] T ERRGESRERE

4 BRAFI—E——FEKTHERL
Al FEEIRAERETEIRE -




20

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

5

The Group had made additional investment of
US$13,000,000 during year 2011. The paid-up capital
increased from US$32,000,000 to US$45,000,000
accordingly.

In 2006, the joint venture partner of Qingdao Singamas
agreed to receive a fixed sum of guarantee payments
annually in lieu of sharing any profit and loss nor the
residual interests in the assets of Qingdao Singamas
thereafter. Accordingly, Qingdao Singamas had been
accounted for as a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group since then. The Group had disposed of its entire
equity interest of Qingdao Singamas to an independent
third party during the year ended 31 December 2011.

Singamas Bahamas was dissolved during year 2011.

On 30 April 2011, the Group acquired additional 50%
equity interest of Singamas North America, Inc. at a
cash consideration of US$250,000. After netting off
the cash and cash equivalents held by Singamas North
America, Inc., the net cash outflow arising on this
acquisition was US$220,000. Upon completion of the
transaction, Singamas North America, Inc. became a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 31 December 2011, the Group acquired additional
53.5% equity interest of Xiamen Pacific. Xiamen Pacific
was previously a 41.7% owned jointly controlled entity
of the Group. Upon completion of the transaction,
Xiamen Pacific became a 95.2% owned subsidiary of
the Company.

On 31 December 2012, the Group acquired the
remaining 4.8% equity interest of Xiamen Pacific for a
cash consideration of approximately RMB13,194,000
(equivalent to approximately US$2,099,000). The
surplus over the carrying amount of the respective
4.8% equity interest of Xiamen Pacific of approximately
US$2,063,000 was amounted to US$36,000,
which was debited to other reserve in consolidated
statements of changes in equity. Upon completion of
the transaction, Xiamen Pacific became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.
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B AR ZERE &)
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KEFR =F——F1Z )17 13,000,000
ETTRIKE - AEHALAH 32,000,000
SETTIE PIZE 45,000,000 E 7T °

R-FENGF  FEBIZ & EBHERE
R G F —EEE2 U AE AR
B BB (R E R 1R R A ZE AR
B o Ul BEEBMER T ENEL A
FIAREEN - KEBEREE —F——
FrZH=+—HILFRALEH &S5
WZRETELE=T °

Singamas BahamasE & — & ——FfFE o

RZFE——FEWNA=+H FREK
250,000 7T = # % 1X 18 45 fE Singamas
North America Inc. 50% & 7N 1# 25 ° #/%
Singamas North America, Inc. 55,2 ¥ %
RERBLE  NAWBATEELSFH
DI 43 220,000 5T © EXZTKIE

Singamas North America, Inc. BB
Al 2 EAMB L A]

REZF——FFZH=4+—H  FRaE
FBIEPTIAF653.6% A Mm o BFTATFI
BIA—13H41.7% R A E s B 2 A HE
B o BB BFIKFERBER
FIHEH 95.2% 1Em T E 2 7] »

RZEFE—ZFF+ZHA=4+—H &R
B A AT A FE 5 13,194,000 7T (15 ZE R4
2,099,000 % T ).2 B & (L1818 EPTIA-F
BRT4.8% 87 m - #HEFPIAF4.8%
FR A 12 7 1 B [ET (B 49 2,063,000 7T+ It
HIEHEHAI36,000% 7T » RS E
By o RMEEFHE - EXZ7TH
% BPIXFEKBALFZ 2ENE L
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BT ER R P =
21 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 21 FEWFERTHIE A RIFIE
SUBSIDIARIES
Company P /N
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and FE WP BB A RIFUIB S B IR 208 B Bl FE 85K
repayable on demand. Included in the amounts due HHA - 7 AP B A RIFIAH 70,494,000 %
from subsidiaries is an amount of US$70,494,000 (2011: T(ZZ——4F : 122,254,000k 7T) BHE
US$122,254,000) which bears variable interest at a B FBERURRAE ZRITEFKA N
spread of no more than 0.25% (2011: 0.25%) per annum TEZRER0.25% (ZT——4F : 0.25%) =
over the cost of bank borrowings of the Company. BFtH - ESFKIBETNEHE - RARESE
The remaining balances are interest free. The Directors AN FEAT BT B A RIUB B IR S B AR 18
expected the amounts due from/to subsidiaries to be + @A mE, BT o
recovered/repaid within twelve months after the end of
the reporting period.
The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest ERMBARGES AEER - 286X K
free and repayable on demand. REETFEFAE -
22 INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 22 REEARIZEZD HE
ASSOCIATES
Group Company
AEH PN/
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F-—F —T—F IF-F _T—F
US$’000 US$’'000 US$’000 US$’000
F=x F=ET FEx FET
Unlisted shares and LT 2R
investments:
At cost EEIDWIN 2,909 2,909 757 757
Share of post-acquisiton  JE{EULES & £ -
reserves, net of R E IR AR R
dividend received 2,405 2,719 - -
5,314 5,628 757 757

188 | I——‘
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R Bl =

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 22 REEARZEZR BE®
ASSOCIATES (continued)
Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2012 and RZE——FR-_FB——F+_A=+—
2011 are set out below: A AEBZEZEBERARZFBERT
Place of
Form of incorporation/
business registration Group Proportion of Principal
Name structure  and operation equity interest voting power held activities
B/ 3] Firi%
4 ATk REEHE Fr ik R FREILH TEEH
2012 2011 2012 2011
3% —f—f Z%-2f —T—F
Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. Incorporated PRC 40.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%" Provision of
ERRBEEERAR %E i container storage
and repair
services
RUERBRT
R#ER%
Singamas Thai Logistics Co., Ltd. * Incorporated Thailand 25.0%" 25.0%" 25.0% 25.0% Provision of
B % container storage
and repair
services
RUERBRT
R#ER%
Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas Container Incorporated PRC 28.0%" 28.0%" 28.6%" 28.6%" Provision of
Co., Ltd. * AC] H container storage,
ERSEBRERERAR repalr and trucking
services, and
servingasa
freight station
REERMRRE
#is  ER
BB
Yixing Goldrich Welding Metal Incorporated PRC 30.0%" 30.0%" 33.3% 33.3% Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. ** AE] H of welding parts
ERGBREMHARAR BUERERM
* Associates held directly by the Company * AR EEFEHER A
i Equity joint venture established in the PRC in # RIZEZOIRETERFEL 7.2 s

accordance with relevant laws and regulations

In proportion to issued and fully paid registered capital

Bibx

8 KB Z T RBEZMRAZ LR
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R 55 R R Bl =

22

INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN
ASSOCIATES (continued)

22 REHSNTIZEER BE®)

Summarised financial information in respect of the IATER T ASE 2 BE A w2 B ER
Group’s associates is set out below: 2

2012 2011

—E—C—F —E——fF

US$’000 Us$’000

FEx F=T

Total assets WEE 30,050 32,684

Total liabilities BEE (13,293) (14,745)

Net assets FEE 16,757 17,939

Group’s share of associates’ net assets EEERBERNREEFE 5,314 5,628

2012 2011

—F—_fF —ET——%F

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Revenue EER 28,196 28,488

Profit for the year IS A 1,790 193
Group’s share of associates’ profit SEEEEE QR NFE N

for the year 575 112
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R MRt
23 INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 23 REREHEEZER BE
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Group Company
EE /NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—®--f -FT—4% ZB--f -F—F
US$’000 Us$'000 US$’000 Us$’000
FEx F=T TEr FET
Unlisted shares and LT 2R
investments:
At cost D EIN 5,429 19,587 - 676
Share of post-acquisiton  JEMEUREE & -
reserves, net of R B R AR R
dividend received 1,383 19 - -
6,812 19,606 - 676
Particulars of jointly controlled entities as at RZE——FR-T——F+=A=+—
31 December 2012 and 2011 are set out below: A AEBEEEHFIEHIERFBOT
Place of
Form of incorporation/
business registration Group Proportion of Principal
Name structure  and operation equity interest voting power held activities
AL/& R F5E Fri%
78 s REENY Frr it FRE LG TEEH
2012 2011 2012 2011
Z§-2f “F-F Z§-2f “3F
Dalian Singamas International Incorporated PRC 36.8% 36.8% 33.3% 33.3% Provision of
Container Co., Ltd. * EE i container storage
RNEHREREERER AR and repair
services
REUERMERR
BB
Fuzhou Singamas Container Co., Ltd. *  Incorporated PRC 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% 40.0% Provision of
BNBHEEER AR %E HE container storage
and repair
services
REERMERR
BB

TE-CEER | BWEECEARAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R MR
23 INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 23 REREHEEZER RE
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (%)
(Continued)
Place of
Formof incorporation/
business registration Group Proportion of Principal
Name structure  and operation equity interest voting power held activities
AL/ F£E Fir#s
A Tk 7 REENY Friti i RRELH EXE40
2012 2011 2012 2011
“F-2f 2% %" _T—F
Guangzhou Singamas Timber Co., Ltd *  Incorporated PRC - 52.0% - 60.0% Manufacturing of
(“Singamas Timber") ] H (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) container floorboard
BNDBRARARAR (B 1) (1) (Wi1) BERREAMR
(TBRAED)
Shanghai Jifa Logistics Co., Ltd. * Incorporated PRC - 25.0% - 22.2% Provision of
(“Shanghai Jifa’) ] H (Note 2) (Note 2) contaner storage,
LEREMRERAR " (Hi2) (Hs#2) repair and
(TEE%%)) logistics services
REERAERE
HERDRRE
Zhejiang Jiajie Singamas Bamboo & Incorporated PRC - 45.0% - 45.0% Manufacturing of
Wood Science and Technology ] i (Note 3) (Note 3) container floorboard
Co., Ltd. *(‘Zhejiang Jiaje’) (H3) (H3) HEERRAR
MIEAMARBRAERAR ¢
(MRIEAD)
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in # WRIEA G0 R ERB B 72 e

accordance with relevant laws and regulations

The voting power of the Group in respective jointly

controlled entities is determined by the proportion of
the Group’s representatives in the board of directors of

respective jointly controlled entities.

il Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012
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23 INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 23 REFEHEEZER KE
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES ()
(Continued)
Notes: Yoz

According to the Articles of Association of Singamas
Timber, 66.67% voting power is required to govern the
significant financial and operating policies of Singamas
Timber. Since the Company and the joint venture
partner have contractual arrangements to jointly
control the significant financial and operating policies of
Singamas Timber, Singamas Timber was regarded as a
Jjointly controlled entity of the Company.

Singamas Timber was dissolved during the year.

RIFBRIRZE ) L A ERE - BHIARZE
BEUYBRACEHER66.67%F5KEZX
R AR B RE B A KA A
BB R B BRI RATE IR - A
BRIR R TE B R A A ERE -

BEHIAREE R FRARAL -

2 On 21 November 2012, Singamas Depots Holdings 2 RZFE—ZF+—A=+—H £x7
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, — 2 BN B LA — BIESTEBR
disposed of its 25% equity interest of Shanghai Jifa to 2B AN B 74,694,0007T (155 R A
an independent third party for a cash consideration 11,858,000 ).2 B2 (1B & LG5
of approximately RMB74,594,000 (equivalent to BOL% B T HIE=T °
approximately US$11,858,000).

3 Zhejiang Jiajie was incorporated in 2011 and mainly 3 WTERIRZFE——FRTHBR AR

engaged in manufacturing of container floorboard. On
30 November 2012, the Group disposed of its 45%
equity interest of Zhejiang Jiajie to the joint venturer
for a consideration of RMB27,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$4,295,000). As at 31 December
2012, the amount has not been settled and included in
other receivables.

TE-CEER | BWEECEARAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ErprET e
23 INTERESTS/INVESTMENTS IN 23 RERBEFERZER HE
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (&)
(Continued)
The summarised financial information in respect of the REBREEIESIERS 2 iR =75k
Group’s interests in the jointly controlled entities which W BER2ENNT -
are accounted for using the equity method is set out
below:
2012 2011
—E—_fF —ET—%F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Current assets MENVEE 3,120 16,059
Non-current assets IEREEE 7,792 15,964
Current liabilities nEBE 1,931 10,200
Non-current liabilities ERBBE 2,169 2,217
Income WA 21,237 79,000
Expenses 2 H (22,839) (76,362)

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012



25

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ER R B =
24 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24 FwI{tH&ZRE
Group Company
AEE ¥ /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
55 —T—F B <—T——%F
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=7T FEx FET
Unlisted securities LETESH
— Equity securities, - IEARFESH -
at cost REA 1,614 1,614 669 669
The above unlisted investments represent investments Lt dE EMBESERARBEMA I 2 FLAE
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities AT 2 LMRABLHIRE - AREE
established in the PRC. They are measured at cost less DRABEMGFTHEER  EEREAAEE
impairment at the end of the reporting period because THERAISERT & - MRS REN S MEHARIZ
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so BB ERTE o
significant that the Directors are of the opinion that their
fair values cannot be measured reliably.
The Group’s unquoted equity investments in 2012 RZZ—ZF  AEBERBEZIELMBSFE
included 14.0% (2011: 14.0%) equity interest of Xiamen BERAEEMREMRERROHBRAF]
Superchain Logistics Development Co., Ltd, a logistic 14.0% (ZTFE——%5F  14.0%) Ix#E - 25—
company in the PRC. TR B & 2 VIR A|) ©
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 25 FE{THENE
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—F—_fF —ET——%F
US$’000 US$'000
FExT FEIT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments AEEBENAEFIERE
comprise:
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: EHEAIM R 2 HE + 3
Medium-term lease T ERFEAY 80,846 71,793
Analysed for reporting purpose as: P EMEL 22T -
Amount shown under non-current assets ~ NIEREIEEZ R S5 79,004 70,164
Amount shown under current assets RREEESHhz &5 1,842 1,629
80,846 71,793
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26 DEPOSITS FOR NON-CURRENT

26 FRFEERE

ASSETS
Group Company
A& VNN
2012 2011 2012 2011
g5 =ET—F IZE--f Z=—%F
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$’'000
FEx FET TEx FET
Deposits paid for property, DAHHE - #EE K
plant and RiEtRe (WD
equipment (Note i) 2,537 11,809 1,420 -
Deposits paid for prepaid 2 HFERFEE A
lease payments (Note ii) &® (Kt 17,590 11,268 - -
20,127 23,077 1,420 -
Notes: Biat -

il Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

At the end of the reporting period, deposit of
RMB7,020,000 (equivalent to US$1,117,000) and
HK$11,011,000 (equivalent to US$1,420,000) (2011
RMB74,404,000 (equivalent to US$11,809,000)) had
been paid for the purchases of property, plant and
equipment. The remaining balance was disclosed
as capital commitment as set out in Note 47. The
acquisition is expected to complete in 2013.

At the end of the reporting period, partial payments
for the acquisition of land use rights in Qidong and
Qingdao, the PRC, amounting to RMB110,561,000
(equivalent to US$17,590,000) (2011: RMB71,000,000
(equivalent to US$11,268,000)) had been made by the
Group, for the development of new factories. The land
use right certificates have not yet been obtained by the
Group as at 31 December 2012 and expected to obtain
in 2013.

i

RIFERIEK - ETARKE7,020,0007T (18
Z R 1,117,000% 5T ) % 11,011,000% ¢
(1% R 1,420,000% ) (= F——4F :
A B 74,404,000 7T (121 11,809,000
ET))IERBEEYE BERREZIZ
T o BT HBERM T 47 EF R IEEH
FE o WBEIEA TG - FE— = FTHK o

RBFEHLR EHEZTHTARE
110,561,000 7T (#5571 17,690,000 7T)
(ZF——4F : AR 71,000,000 (1
FER11,268,000% 7T )) 1EBEAML R F
BIERE R EE > &R E 7 E
FAIERZTR - R=F—=F+=H
=1—H  ZEEKRRIZZ L HE
ATE  WHEABER-FE—=ZFAKE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EprETE S
INVENTORIES 27 HFE&
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—F—_F —ET——%F
US$’000 US$'000
F=x FET
Raw materials R 135,128 175,366
Work in progress EEH 25,199 35,195
Finished goods UK 92,957 67,110
253,284 277,671
The entire carrying amounts of inventories as at 31 RZE——FR-_F—F+ZA=1+—H
December 2012 and 2011 are expected to be recovered MEFEZERMFEERETET—EAR
within the next twelve months. SHE ©
TRADE RECEIVABLES 28 [EWERFX
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—F-F —ET——%F
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx FET
Trade receivables FEUERK 182,445 274,072
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RIEERREMR (660) (700)
Total trade receivables HA AR R 181,785 273,372

A defined credit policy is maintained within the Group.
The general credit terms are agreed with each of its
trade customers depending on the creditworthiness of
the customers. The general credit term ranges from 30
days to 120 days (2011: 30 days to 120 days).

AEECDHE-—ERRZIEERR - E8
H—MRAOREI0RIF(ZT——F:
H30REI0KRTE)  REFEFLZEEM
E o AREEZEPONGEERREZE

FRIGRR -
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28

198 || |

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 28 FEWER (&)
The aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance R &R 2 R FUR R EBIREE (LLE
for doubtful debts, which is prepared based on invoice TR ZEZAFE - WEHBEKRARRA
date of each transaction, which approximated the BAFRAY) 2 BRER AT AT
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
2012 2011
—F—_fF —ET——F
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
0 to 30 days TE=FX 136,860 213,064
31 to 60 days =t+—EX+X 23,657 34,201
61 to 90 days ANtT—EATX 8,600 13,646
91 to 120 days NtT—ZF—A=Z+X 6,391 10,122
Over 120 days —BZTRNUE 6,277 2,339
181,785 273,372

The Group assessed the credit quality of trade
receivables based on historical default rates and the
creditworthiness of the customers. An aggregate amount
of US$162,008,000 was subsequently settled.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
US$27,991,000 (2011: US$26,641,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for allowance. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The Group has assessed
the creditworthiness and historical default rates of these
customers, trade receivables that are past due but not
impaired have very low historical default rates and have
high credit-rating within the industry. In this regard,
the Directors considered that the default risk is low.
Accordingly, no allowance has been provided.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

AEBREFELEREREF ZZETHE
WERRZEEE & - &4 162,008,000
ELE R EEIE -

AEERFEBZRKERSERLSER
BEA £27,991,000E (=T ——F:
26,641,000% 7T) 2 %80 HAFE U BR 3K - A&
B A2 AR S ERIZARER - AEE
HZERBNENRERD - XEBBTE
ZERPZEEBRELBEARER - @EMERE
B EUER 2 B L IR R B RRITA
BEEENEETIR - Al - EERAHEN
RBRIE - B I RIBAR A -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ER R B =
TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 28 MEWERFK (&)
The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each WEERIERENENER(UNERR S 2
transaction, of trade receivables which are past due but BEAGE) 2ERESTAT -
not impaired is as follows:
2012 2011
—F-°fF —T—%
US$’000 US$000
FEx FET
31 to 60 days =t+—z=xtXK 13,966 7,260
61 to 90 days Nt—=htX 6,378 9,181
91 to 120 days nt+—&E—8\Z+X 2,954 7,861
Over 120 days —Bt+XRAUAE 4,693 2,339
27,991 26,641
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REZEREE 2 EBIT :
2012 2011
—F-=fF —E——fF
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx F=7T
Balance at the beginning of the year FEEER 700 -
Provision for doubtful debts recognised on B iERRIZIRERE
receivables 22 700
Amounts written off as uncollectible FESE T EElE 2 258 (62) -
Balance at the end of the year FIEERR 660 700
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 29 T REMEWIE
RECEIVABLES
As at 31 December 2012, prepayments and other RZE—=—ZF+A=+—H " BRHEH
receivables included advanced of US$79,672,000 (2011: U OB B FETE A 79,672,000 % 0 (=&
US$42,407,000) to certain suppliers as deposits for ——4F : 42,407,000 7T) T Z REERE1E
raw materials purchases. The remaining balance was BEERMZE  SEXERETRIEE
mainly included refundable value added tax and other AR EMTE IR o ZRBEEH IR+ =@
advance payments. The entire amount is expected to be ARikE, B -

recovered/realised within the next twelve months.
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B 75 R R Bt
30 AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO ULTIMATE 30 [EUL BN kA RRIE
HOLDING COMPANY
The general credit term for trade balances with ultimate BEERAFNEZ#HEEEH —MREI0
holding company is 30 days (2011: 30 days). No K(ZE——F :30K) - AFEIWLHBE
allowance on doubtful debts has been provided during RIBARER -
the year.
The aged analysis of amount due from ultimate holding REE R FRER AR FIB(AERR
company, which is prepared based on invoice date of SHZEZAFE - WEAEW AR B HE
each transaction, which approximated the respective #9) 2 BREE DT -
revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:
Group
rEHE
2012 2011
—E—_fF —T—%
US$’000 US$'000
F=x FET
0 to 30 days TE=1+XK 44 63
31 to 60 days =+—FXR+X 43 414
61 to 90 days ANT—EA+TX 3 324
91 to 120 days nt+—&—8B=Z+X - 202
Over 120 days —BAZtRUE - 12
90 1,015
For the year ended 31 December 2012, amount due RZB-—ZF+ZA=+—H EBE&EK
from ultimate holding company with aggregate carrying ZERABFIEEERAEMES $£46,0003%

I i Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

amount of US$46,000 (2011: US$952,000) was past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The Group assessed
the credit quality of the ultimate holding company based
on historical default rates and the creditworthiness. In
this regard, the Directors considered that the default risk
is low. Accordingly, no impairment has been provided.

fi%
T(ZZT——4 : 952,000%7T) Z B HAfE
BRIX » AN B 48 4 B R PR R VR0 (1
1o NEBMYUZEHRENENIFEAER - &
SERBELIEREREEBTEREERA
RIZIEEEx - At EERAHENER
& - B IR ERE -
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FA 5 S R B =

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO ULTIMATE 30 [EUL FEfT S akih A BIFIE
HOLDING COMPANY (continued) (%)
The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each B HRB R R (B B9 FE Y i B4R IR A R SRR
transaction, of amount due from ultimate holding (NBRRS2EZHHE) 2ERER T
company which are past due but not impaired is as ™
follows:
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—F-—F —T——%F
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx FET
31 to 60 days =t+—EX+X 43 414
61 to 90 days AtT—EATX 3 324
91 to 120 days AT+—Z2—BZ+X - 202
Over 120 days —BZTRNUE - 12
46 952
The amount due to ultimate holding company of the REE RARR BN REIZERARFIES
Group and the Company was unsecured, interest free AEEE - RS ERSERETEERBE -
and repayable on demand.
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO FELLOW 31 [EBU BRI RMEBAR - B

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The amounts due from/to fellow subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities of the Group and the
Company are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand. The Directors expected the amounts will be
recovered/repaid within twelve months after the end of
the reporting period.

ERAIRLRERERNIER

AEERARBZ R TENRREER
A~ B2 AR MR B R IRY SRR
e REERLEREEREY - EFHE
ISR HERS MRE T @A RGRE
SIS -

S
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32 AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED

Bl —BRE QR IE

COMPANY
Particulars of the amount due from a related company is JEW—BRIERRIFRIBZFHBNT ¢
as follows:
Group
EH
Balance Balance  Maximum amount
as at as at outstanding
31.12.2012 1.1.2012 during the year
R-F—_F R-T—_%F
+ZHA=+—H —HA—H RFERZ
Name &8 ZHEER 2 REER = AEREE
US$’000 US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET FET
Pacific International Lines RFfats (BF)
(H.K.) Limited BRAT] - 405 472

Amount due from a related company represents trade
receivable balances due from Pacific International Lines
(H.K.) Limited (“PILHK”). PILHK was related because it
was a company in which Messrs. Chang Yun Chung,
Teo Siong Seng and Teo Tiou Seng, Directors of the
Company and also the controlling shareholders of PIL,
a substantial shareholder and the ultimate holding
company of the Company, have significant influence. On
1 December 2012, PIL acquired 94.7% equity interest
of PILHK. PILHK became a fellow subsidiary of the
Company since then. The balance is subject to normal
credit terms of 30 (2011: 30) days.

|
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AEB RN — BB R RRIA BB T
B(&FB)BERAB([EEKF]) - BEKF
R—ABERR  ABARARESRATE
- RIRBEERRARELE - TRAF M
% - ARAZ EBBRREEBRIER AT - 1
BERER  AREBAFEAREATEN
RZE—"F+-"A—B K¥HEWET
FRBKFAT BB AR Bt - BEK
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—REEGRFETL  FEHR=TR(ZF
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AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED 32 EBUW—FBREQBFREE)
COMPANY (continued)

The aged analysis of amount due from a related RBEBR - B —BEEARFE(AE
company, which was prepared based on invoice date REEAGE - WEERERAERHBHA
of each transaction, which approximated the respective #9) ZBRER DITAAT ¢

revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

Group
AEH
2012 2011
—F—_fF —E——fF
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
0 to 30 days TE=+K - 77
31 to 60 days =t—=x1+X - 98
61 to 90 days ART—ZEA+TRK - 102
91 to 120 days At+—ZE2—BZ+X = 71
Over 120 days —BZt+RNUE - 57
- 405
The aged analysis, based on invoice date of each WERERVERERNER — B BEERQRNRIE
transaction, of amount due from a related company (A REZRHE) 2BRRATHAT
which is past due but not impaired is as follows:
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—F-F —E——%F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=7T
31 to 60 days =t—=x1+X - 98
61 to 90 days RT—ZENA+RK - 102
91 to 120 days At+—ZF—BZ+X = 71
Over 120 days —BZt+RNUE - 57
- 328
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33

34
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BANK BALANCES AND CASH 33

Bank balances of the Group and the Company carry
interest at market rates which range from 0.01% to 5.5%
(2011: 0.01% to 3.15%) and 0.01% to 5% (2011: 0.01%
t0 2.15%) per annum, respectively.

TRADE PAYABLES 34

The aged analysis, based on the invoice date of each
transaction, of trade payables at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

RITERERE
BITHEBNAEERARRAZD BN T
0.01%ZE55%( — T — — F:001% =

3.15%) M 0.01% E5% (=T ——%F : 0.01%
F£2.15%) 2 THFEFIEETB -

B4 BR X

RBERR BNERABRRSHZEBER
AFTE) ZBREDHTENT

bl

Group

AEE
2012 2011
—E-_fF —T——F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=T
0 to 30 days TE=1+X 59,339 61,401
31 to 60 days —t+—EX+X 38,387 30,913
61 to 90 days ANtT—EATX 11,273 19,369
91 to 120 days nt+—&E—8\Z+X 8,409 11,009
Over 120 days —BZTRNUE 9,639 5,910
127,047 128,602

The average credit period on purchases of goods
is 59 (2011: 59) days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are settled within the credit timeframe.

REEMZFHEEHROR(ZT——
F:69K) o KEE HIE £ BRI HIBR
REERATE NI EERIRRA -
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35 BILLS PAYABLE

36

The aged analysis of bills payable at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

35 EMER

R|EHR - BRNRBZRESNAOT

Group

AEE
2012 2011
—F—_fF —ET——%F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=T
0 to 30 days TE=+X 49,973 26,737
31 to 60 days =t+—E=X+X 37,120 11,478
61 to 90 days ANT—ZEhTX 27,873 25,406
91 to 120 days Nt+—=2—FH=+X 3,983 -
Over 120 days —BZTRNUE - -
118,949 63,621

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accruals and other payables consisted of advances from
customers, provision of staff cost and selling expenses
and other accrued expenses for the both year ended
2012 and 2011.

As at 31 December 2012, accruals and other
payables included deposits received on disposal
of subsidiaries, Foshan Shunde Leliu Wharf and
Foshan Shunde Singamas Tank Container, amounted
to RMB316,525,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$50,358,000).

36 MEFtERAREMmEMERK

R-F-——F R T —FFREANES

ERANEMEMNRREBEATENR

B8

AN HE B RER - REMETER -

RZZB——F+-RA=+—0 " EFERK
HitENERBREWHHE ZHEAR -
B LT IR A [ B 8 K 6 LI T B 128 [ s M

BBz -
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37 BANK BORROWINGS 37 RITHEM

Group Company
AER Y NS
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F--F —T——% ZB-ZF _—ZT—F
US$’000 Us$'000 US$’'000 US$'000
FT£x FET FT£x FTEr
Bank borrowings comprise RITENELE
the following:
Bank loans RITIER
Unsecured AR
— within 1 year - BR—FRNEER 50,554 99,808 30,000 22,500
—more than 1 year, but - BREZFA
not exceeding 2 years BE 30,000 35,840 30,000 30,000
— more than 2 years, but - BRE=ZZAFNA
not exceeding 5 years g& 67,500 99,611 67,500 97,500
148,054 235,259 127,500 150,000
Less: Amount due within B BR—FAEERE
one year shown under TRREEE
current liabilities 2HRyEE (50,554) (99,808) (30,000) (22,500)
Amount due after one year AR—FRER
shown under non-current VRIEREBE
liabilities ERZEE 97,500 135,451 97,500 127,500

On 25 March 2011, the Company entered into a facility RZE——F=ZAZ+HB KAAAEH—

agreement with a syndicate of banks in respect of a $RE RT3 7 150,000,000 7T 2 € 8 K A %

US$150 million term loan and revolving credit facilities BEEWH# APWUF - RZZE—ZFX
for a term of four years. Repayments commenced on 25 “T+hBMBER  BEE-T—HF=H
June 2012 and will continue until 25 March 2015. “t+HRHEREREE -

All bank loans are unsecured and mainly carry interest A IRITERVERBERI + ZARBUER

at either LIBOR or borrowing rate offered by the
People’s Bank of China plus certain basis points and MEFBEMFE M BER - BREHAHE
are repayable over a period range from one to four R—ENF - FIEGF—EXEABEE -
years. Interest is repriced every one to six months. The ERFBEFEZREREBRBESHE °
proceeds were largely used to finance the working

capital of the Group during the period.

TR SR B A RIRIT AT 2 IR
on %,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 37 MITEM®)
The ranges of effective annual interest rates for the RZE—=F  NEBRARRRITERZ
year 2012 on the Group’s and the Company’s bank BRMERBED R AE0.76%E7.28% (==
borrowings were 0.76% to 7.28% (2011: 1.14% to ——F 1 1 14% E7.94%) % 2.15% £2.42%
7.94%) and 2.15% to 2.42% (2011: 1.58% to 2.85%) —E——1F 1 158% F2.85%) °
respectively.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank RBERR - NEBBBEEBUENGEE
borrowings that are denominated in currencies other K8 2 SRITIERANT -
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entity
are set out below:
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—EF-_fF =%
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
RVB AR 8,575 27,567
NOTES 38 EiF

On 14 April 2011, the Company issued a three-year
RMB1,380,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$210,600,000) notes that will mature on 14 April
2014 (the “Notes”). The Notes was denominated and
settled in RMB, and borne coupon at 4.75% per annum
payable semi-annually in arrears. The Notes were
unsecured and carried effective interest rate of 5.16%
per annum. The Notes may be redeemed in whole but
not in part at the Company’s option for taxation reason
at their principal amount with accrued but unpaid
interest or at the holders’ option for change of control at
101% of their principal amount, together with accrued
interest.

The Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. The fair value of the
Notes as at 31 December 2012 was estimated at
approximately RMB1,363,730,000 (equivalent to
US$216,964,000) (2011: RMB1,241,848,000 (equivalent
to US$197,091,000)), which was determined based on
the closing market price of the Notes at that date.

R-ZT——FMA+HA - KRARETT —
& 8 & A R #1,380,000,000 7T ( 18 55 7 49
210,600,000 €0 W= FHERE - KR -F
—mMENA+IEARS([ZRIE]) - ZZ2E
NAREERGEE  FEEEEBA75%
BYFLINER - ZZBRTEEFER - &
BRFFIEE5.16% ° AA R AT AR A
BEHUASMEHREERANONEREED
ZEBE2E  BTEERED - kiFEA
AR 101% 2 AS ERI B FHRERTH
FIBIEIE SIS E) o

ZEBRTNEBELFRZA LT - #HEZ
T—ZF+ZA=+—ALk ZEBUZ
B EAEM 2 AR BEMGTHNAARE
1,363,730,000 7. (185 72 216,964,000 % 7T.)
—ZT——%: AR®1,241,848,0007T (18
£ 197,091,0003F%7T)) °

TE-CEER | BWEECEARAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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39 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 39 KEEAEMIANGTESMT
INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS 1=
HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

2012 2011

—F—_fF —T——%F

US$’000 US$'000

FExT FETT

Cash flow hedges — exchange rate swaps IR & 78 ¥ h — [E KRG H] 8,962 12,403

BTREAAREEEBNREM I BAKHE
RARRIEEMELRE - AABIRIL T M
MEXIEHPEL - LEEFEXNZEEDN
R R BHER o

In order to minimise the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure to the exchange rate risk of the Notes, which
was denominated in RMB, the Company entered into
two exchange rate swaps to fix the payment of the
principal and interest of the Notes at a fixed forward
exchange rate.

HZEXRFPENRZRRCEE A2
EEZRA/AUEXRIERANRRDEB RN E
TH - - GEMhR T ——FRTHEREH
BRBERRRERAT

The exchange rate swaps and the corresponding Notes
had the equivalent settlement periods and the Directors
considered that the exchange rate swaps were highly
effective hedging instruments. Major terms of the two
exchange rate swaps entered in 2011 were the same
and were set out below:

Total notional amount

208 ||

of the swaps Maturity Forward rate Total hedged item

ERMARRER A RHEE BEHIEE

(Note)

(Hist)

RMB32,864,000 13 October 2011 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR 32,864,000 7T “T——5+A+=E AR¥615THIEZTL FREFS

RMB33,224,000 13 April 2012 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR 33,224,000 7T “T-HFMA+=A AR¥615THIEZET FEFS

RMB32,686,000 12 October 2012 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR 32,686,000 7T “T-—FtA+TZR AR%615THIET FEMNEB

RMB32,686,000 12 April 2013 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR 32,686,000 7T ZE=HA+=ZA AR®e615THI1ETL EEFE

RMB32,864,000 11 October 2013 RMB6.15 to US$1 For coupon payments

AR#32,864,000 7T ZT—=FtA+—8 AR¥615THIET ZEEFES

RMB1,412,506,000 11 April 2014 RMB6.15 to US$1 For Notes principal of RMB1,380,000,000
and coupon payments of RMB32,506,000

AR#1,412506,000t —ZE—HEFMA+—H AR¥B616TH1ET FEEA: AR 1,380,000,0007T

Note:

As at 31 December 2012, total notional amount

of the swaps was RMB1,478,056,000 (2011:
RMB1,543,965,000) in aggregate for the two exchange

rate swaps.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

Mt

RMEEFE AR 32,506,000 7T

R-E——FF+=—H=+—H WBH

[EREHAXRAEEFZESEBARE
1,478,056,000 (= F——4F : AR

1,643,965,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS
HEDGING INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the gain on
changes in fair value of the exchange rate swaps under
cash flow hedge amounting to US$3,166,000 (2011:
loss of US$12,671,000) has been recognised in other
comprehensive income of which the fair value gain of
the hedging instruments amounting to US$2,427,000
(2011: loss of US$8,002,000) were reclassified from
hedge reserve to profit or loss in the same period when
the hedged items affect profit or loss and upon the
settlement of coupon payment.

39 EEAHTIRMIMTEESMT
R

B

i

“HEFZA=t+—AL ERR

CREVHAMNEREHENMEENAR
B1E )% &3,166,000F T (—Z T ——F ¢
12,671,000FLE1E) EREME2mEKZE

HEER

EHdh2427,000k (=T ——F ¢

8,002,000 (BB ME P TEZ A A EE

EAE R IR R

-

E

Rl REER D EEES

BRENZNEER

SHARE CAPITAL 40 BAE
Number of shares Share Capital
BHEE B&
2012 2011 2012 2012 2011 2011
5§ “2—% ZE-Zf ZF-Zf —“F—% —%—-F
US$'000 HK$'000 US$'000 HK$'000
T£x T#x FER THER
Ordinary shares of LaREREE
HK$0.10 each 010/
Authorised: ETE
At beginning of the year FNRFL
and at end of the year 3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000 38,649 300,000 38,649 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
At beginning of the year F1 2,417,833,300 2,412,612,280 31,151 241,783 31,084 241,261
Exercise of share options (Note) ~ TEEBRIRIE (H2) 2,317,602 5,221,020 30 232 67 522
At end of the year FIR 2,420,150,992  2,417,833,300 31,181 242,015 31,151 241,783
Note: Kt -

During the year, the Company issued and allotted 2,317,692
(2011: 5,221,020) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each upon
exercise of share options. The exercise prices of the share
options ranged from HK$1.38 to HK$1.48 per share (2011:
ranged from HK$1.38 to HK$1.48 per share). The new ordinary
shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all
respects.

RER - FiTEBRE KREEFTRAET
&7 RO.10)E T 22,317,692/ ( = F — — F :
5,221,020 %) ZiEfK o RFRTIEBIBIREZ 7T
&8 FE81.88 BT 1,488 (—ZF——F :
I F &R 1.88 B T2 1.4887T) » FAEHR (5 K

REJRE R EE T T Z B FSER -

CER-CFFR | BRERECEFRARA M
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 1 June
2007 for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to Directors and eligible employees of the Group, and
may be terminated by resolution in general meeting.
Under the Scheme, the Directors may grant options to
qualifying grantees, including employees or directors of
the Company and/or the Group.

At 31 December 2012, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Scheme was 24,990,000 (2011:
32,417,000), representing approximately 1.03% (2011:
1.34%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the adoption date, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue on the offer date without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive Directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from
the date of offer. An aggregate of HK$1 is payable by
each qualifying grantee on acceptance of the offer.
Options may be exercised within the option period
(must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant option) which shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

Share options of 7,170,000 underlying shares were
granted on 1 July 2010 at the exercise price of HK$1.38.

Share options of 8,860,000 underlying shares were

granted on 6 August 2008 at the initial exercise price of
HK$1.93 and adjusted to HK$1.48.
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RIER —ZT+F A —BBEBHRASEER
RRR B8 ([%ET8 ) T Z2BHAR
BEEERAEELEERES - ZAEIA]
ERRRE FRBBEIRERE L - RIBZ

FHEl - ARBERAROBRET S ERA
BA - BREARAR/AAEEZEERE
% o

MN-B——F+-A=+—0  BEZt3
524,990,000 ( =& ——4£ : 32,417,000
D)EB B RARITEZBIRE  (HEARQF]
Rz B BT 2R ME1.08% (= ——F :
1.34%) o ARKEARBIRRFSLHE - R
T}%&.ﬁriﬂ&ﬂjﬁ%ﬁxﬁéﬁﬁ/ﬁ&ﬂxf‘i@%ﬁ

TESHBBEAQRNREBBADEITRGD
10% ° IR LR DB R B LU E - 5T
AMERIA AR KRG 2 B AR m 21T
LT RDEE - NMEBBALQ RN
HIREHEEITIRM 1% - B FETEAREK
B IERTES CERESBBEAARRAR
0.1% S {E{E B8 5,000,000 7T * TR EL
AR R EATHRLAE ©

RO ZBREARTFENE T BEE28
AR - t1l?§x$ﬁ?"“2/\’§7f“7¥<?ﬁ/\
AXHEEAATT - BRERERERER
Al BERS T (R L AERE BB A i & B RT3
HE10F) AZERESENRHEERZER
e TEEREREE - HMER()RHA
AR R MRTE ¢ (i) RER G AR R
8% % BB FHUWRTIE R (i) AN A AR
MEHE=FEZ&=% -

R-ZE—ZTF+F—HEKHH7,170,0001517
F{81.38/8 L2 AR A A -
R-ZZTZ)N\F )\ AXBEE 8,860,00017 %
MWRITHE(B /A 1.93 8 T 2 FARERERAR 4 ﬁfﬂ%
BHEEFAEE1.48787T ©
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 41 UlRKREZ )
Share options of 20,300,000 underlying shares were RZZEZEF5A =+ N\ AHEH 20,300,000

granted on 28 June 2007 at the initial exercise price of

HK$5.14 and adjusted to HK$3.93.

Details are as follows:

Number of options

BREHE

DIRTTEER S48 TT 2 EREBARE - B

TTE(EREIR AR E3.93/8TT

IEWMT

Vesting period

Bt 2 HA

Exercisable period
TEHAE

Option granted on 28 June 2007:

RZFBZEFNAZ T N\BREOBRRE

6,766,666

6,766,667

6,766,667

Option granted on 6 August 2008:

RZZZNFNARNBRDORBARE :

2,953,333

2,953,333

2,953,334

Option granted on 1 July 2010:

R-ZE—TF+ A - BRENBRE

2,390,000

2,390,000

2,390,000

28 June 2007 to 27 June 2008
“EELFXRA-TNHZ
“EENFXNAZ+tH

28 June 2007 to 27 June 2009
“EELFXRA-TNHZE
—EENFANAZ+ER

28 June 2007 to 27 June 2010
“EELFXRA-FTNHEHZE
—E-ZTFXA-+LH

6 August 2008 to 5 August 2009
—EENFENARBE
—EENFNAARAR

6 August 2008 to 5 August 2010
—EENFENARBE
I AN il

6 August 2008 to 5 August 2011
—EENFNARERE
B AN KL=

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011
—F-ZFLA_AE
—E——%X<A=7+H

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2012

—T-ZFLA—HE
—E-—FXA=TH

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2013

—T-TFLH-AZE

—= =
—=

=FRA=1H

BE
—=wER | pakEekaRAR [

28 June 2008 to 27 June 2017
“EENFNA-TNHZ
—E—+tFAAZ+ER

28 June 2009 to 27 June 2017
“EFNFNATNHZE
—ET—+FA=+tH

28 June 2010 to 27 June 2017
—F-FFXA-T/RE
—FtFAASTLA

6 August 2009 to 5 August 2018
ZEZNFNARAE
- \FNARH

6 August 2010 to 5 August 2018
e S AV A= Y
—N\EFENARA

6 August 2011 to 5 August 2018
—E——F/\ARHEZE
—N\EFENARRA

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2020

—T——FtH-AZE
ZE-FTFA=+H

1 July 2012 to 30 June 2020

I S = K}
—TEFXA=1+H

1 July 2013 to 30 June 2020
—E-=F+tH—H=E
—E-TFA=TH
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41 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 41 ARz )

2012 —E--F
The following table discloses the Company’s share TRERES (BIEES) ISR R ERE
options held by employees (including Directors): 2B
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding at
1 January Reclassification during during during 31 December
2012 adjustment the year the year the year 2012
RZF-2f RZB-Zf
-A-A RER +ZA=+-H
W& T HERE EREH ERiTE Rl &7
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
(Note)
(Wit
Directors £ 17,607 4,574 - (1,735) (1,568) 18,878
Employees [E& 14,810 (4,574) - (583) (3,541) 6,112
32,417 - - (2,318) (5,109) 24,990
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R R Bt
41 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 41 WUz @)
The following table discloses the movements of the TRUABREHAFHEEARNGERECFA
Company’s share options by the vesting period during ShE)
the year.
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December
2012 the year the year the year 2012
R25-2% RZB-2f
-A-H ) RER  +ZA=+-H
HRITE Rz EWITE #iRk BRI
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
(Note)
(i)
Granted on 28 June 2007: REBRLERAZTNRRL -
~ with vesting period of e e s
28 June 2007 to ~AZTNAZE
27 June 2008 ZEEN\EAAZ TR 7,926 - - (1,394) 6,532
- with vesting period of -HEHa-55 R
28 June 2007 to ARZTN\BZE
27 June 2009 “ERNERAZTLA 7,926 - - (1,304) 6,532
- with vesting period of -FERR_TRLE
28 June 2007 to ~AZTNAE
27 June 2010 “E-FERACTLE 7,926 - - (1,393) 6,533
Granted on 6 August 2008; RZFENE\ARBRL
~ with vesting period of -BEBR-ET N5
6 August 2008 to NRRBZE
5 August 2009 “ZENENRERR 238 - @) (29) 174
- vith vesting period of -HEBR=TTNE
6 August 2008 to NRRBE
5 August 2010 “E-Z%/\REA 291 - 41) (24) 226
- vith vesting period of -FEBA-EENE
6 August 2008 to NARAZE
5 August 2011 —“2—%)\R1A 2875 - (1,601) (269) 1,005
Granted on 1 July 2010: RZE-SECA-BRM:
- vith vesting period of -FESa-T-5%
1July 201010 tA—-RZ
30 June 2011 “T—55/A=1R 641 - (261) (6) 374
— with vesting period of -HiEHBE-5-5F
1July 201010 tA—-RZ
30 June 2012 —E-CEXAZTE 2,297 - (374) (309) 1,620
~ with vesting period of -HiEHBa-5-5F
1 July 201010 tA-B%
30 June 2013 “F-ZEXAZTA 2,207 - - (303) 1,994
32417 - (2,318) (5,109) 24,990
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ INEAAI 7778 27,823 22,996
Weighted average exercise price  INET19{71EE
(HKS) (#7) 3.26 - 145 347 339

“E-CEER | BWEECEFARAF
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41 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 41 UIRKZ#)
2011 —ZE——F
The following table discloses the Company’s share TRERES (BIEES) ISR R ERE
options held by employees (including Directors): 2B
Qutstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeted  Qutstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December
2011 the year the year the year 2011
RIF—F RZF—F
-A-H R’ER +ZA=1+-A
HA{THRE EREL ERfIfR ipl RATE
'000 '000 000 '000 '000
(Note)
(Hit)
Directors X 20,419 - (2,692) (120) 17,607
Employees & 18,074 - (2,529) (739) 14,810
38,493 - (5,221) (855) 417
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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41 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 41 DBz
The following table discloses the movements of the TRUABREHAFHEEARNGERECFA
Company’s share options by the vesting period during &)
the year.
QOutstanding at Granted Exercised Fofeted  Qutstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December
2011 the year the year the year 2011
RZF——F RZF—F
—A—H ) i RER TZA=1-8
R ERiH ERfIfR iRl RERTE
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
(Note)
(i)
Granted on 28 June 2007: RIBRLERAZT\RRT
- with vesting period of S e s
28 June 2007 to ~AZTNAE
27 June 2008 ZEEN\ERAZTLA 8,013 - - (87) 7,926
- vith vesting period of -BEBA-ERLE
28 June 2007 to ~AZTNAE
27 June 2009 “ERNESACTLR 8,014 - - (88) 7926
— with vesting period of e e s
28 June 2007 to ~AZTN\RE
27 June 2010 S S e = 8,013 - - 87) 7,926
Granted on 6 August 2008: RZEENEN\ARBRL
— with vesting period of -HEHBE-SENE
6 August 2008 to NARBE
5 August 2009 —ZENENRRA 1182 - (789) (105) 238
~ with vesting period of -HEHE-SENE
6 August 2008 to NRRBE
5 August 2010 —%-Z%5/\AEE 2432 - 0,037) (104) 21
— with vesting period of S e e YA
6 August 2008 to NRRRZE
5 August 2011 —“2—%)\A1A 3,719 - (740) (104) 2,875
Granted on 1 July 2010; RZE-BECA-BRM:
~ with vesting period of -HiEHa-5-2F
1.y 2010t tA-RZ
30 June 2011 “E——%/A=1H 2,390 - (1,659) (©4) 641
- vith vesting period of -BESa-T-5F
1uly 201010 tB-RZE
30 June 2012 —E-ZFRA=1H 2,390 - - 93) 2,297
- vith vesting period of s
1.July 201010 tA-RZE
30 June 2013 L Y = 2,390 - - 93 2,097
38,493 - (6,221) (859) 3,417
Exercisable at the end of theyear  IAER T F17f% 27,604 27,823
Weighted average exercise price ~ IMETS5(7((8
(HKS) (B7) 2.99 = 145 2.0 3.26

CER-CFFR | BRERECEFRARA M
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Note:

The forfeiture represented the share options granted to the
eligible Directors and employees of the Group, which were
forfeited upon their resignations in both years.

In respect of the share options exercised, the weighted
average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$1.95
(2011: HK$2.86).

For the share options granted on 1 July 2010, the fair
value of the options determined at the date of grant
using the Binomial option pricing model ranged from
HK$0.61 to HK$0.81.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair values of share options granted on 1 July 2010:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$1.54
Exercise price HK$1.38
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 65%
Semi-annual dividend yield 1.7%
Risk-free interest rate 2.29%

For the share options granted on 6 August 2008, the
fair value of the options determined at the date of grant
using the Binomial option pricing model ranged from
HK$0.53 to HK$0.72.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair values of share options granted on 6 August 2008:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$1.83
Exercise price HK$1.93
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 45%
Semi-annual dividend yield 2.8%
Risk-free interest rate 3.55%

For the share options granted on 28 June 2007, the
fair value of the options determined at the date of grant
using the Binomial option pricing model ranged from
HK$1.62 to HK$2.52.
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WORMIER T ALK IEE EIEEE L IER g R 1E
FEZEA LRIERIF B BAF ORI -

BRACTEZBAE - H1TEE B 2 ¥
B ER1.958TT(ZF——%F : 2.86/8
TT) e

R-Z—ZF+HA—B BREZALBE
ER-—EAPEEEEANR L BHETE
£0.618TE0.81%ETT -

R-ZE-—ZFELA-HRUNEBREZ 2R
EBEDREBEAMREBEETE

R B AR TE 15477
178 1.3877T
RN 2 B R 104F
TEERRE 1R 65%
FEERER 1.7%
fmE e B X 2.29%

RZZEZNENAKRB @ BRREZ AREBE
iEA—EARETEREANRE BHET
A053BILE072ETT -

R-ZFZTN\F/\ARNBRONBEREZ A
EBEDREBATRRBIEETE

R AR U E 1.83/87C
1158 1.93/87C
RN 2 B iR 104F
TR I8 45%
FFEEREE 2.8%
mEpS B X 3.55%

R-ZZHFENA-+H\B - BREZAR
BENSEA_BADEEEEANEL B
EBTA1.628TTE252/87T °
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 41

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair values of share options granted on 28 June 2007:

Closing share price at the date of grant HK$5.25
Exercise price HK$5.14
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 48%
Semi-annual dividend yield 1%
Risk-free interest rate 4.78%

Immediate after the rights issue became unconditional in
2009, adjustments were made to the exercise price and
the number of outstanding share options to subscribe
for shares granted pursuant to the share option scheme.

The following table sets out the adjustments on the
share option scheme in 2009:

Before adjustments

FA 5 S R B =

IR R 3Z (#)

RZZEZLFNAZTNBEREOEREZ
DR BETREATNREEIEET

PR B BT (E 5.25787C
TEE 5147%7T
RENRHE 2 B R 104F
TR 48%
FEFEEREE 1%
fmfE e B 4.78%

EEN _ZTNFHEEGHLREL - RiE
BRERT EIR HARRB AR RTTER ZBER
RNTTEERBRBCFLHEE -

TEREIBEREAEN _FTTNFZRE

After adjustments

R RS

Exercise Exercise
price of Number of price of Number of
each option share options each option share options

BERE BERE
Date of grant B AR T B ESE fT{EE BERESR

(HKS) (HK$)

(L) (L)
28 June 2007 RZZEZ+FARA=ZTNAR 5.14 18,400,000 3.93 24,039,600
6 August 2008 RZZEZNFENARE 1.93 8,740,000 1.48 11,418,810
Total number of options B A% 242 &1 27,140,000 35,458,410
The Binomial option pricing model has been used to BEREsAREBEEFERA ZEABETER

estimate the fair values of the options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair values of the
share options are based on the Directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions.

Share option expense of US$129,000 (2011:
US$354,000) was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2012.

AEE - RAEAABERERNEHELRKR
RIRBEERTCRAEREE - MBR LT
BB - A 2 BETSE L E

B #E S H 5129,000% T (— T ——4 ¢
354,000%(7L) ER_E—_F+=H
—+ Etfﬁrﬁﬁum °

il
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT SRR B =T

42 RESERVES 42 #E
Share Share option Hedge Accumulated
premium reserve reserve profits Total
Company AR BEE BRERE ik REH Fit ]
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET FET FET TET FET
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%F—A—H 235,026 5,819 - 81,400 322,245
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (9,665) (9,665)
Fair value adjustments on WEEAREMEH L
forward contracts designated ~ BHIAHHN AL EEAR
as cash flow hedges - - (12,671) - (12,671)
Reclassification of fair value AR BESEHEPEE
loss from hedge reserve BENEER
to profit or loss - - 8,002 - 8,002
235,026 5,819 (4,669) 71,735 307,911
Exercise of share options TlPiE R E 1,289 (384) - - 905
Recognition of equity-settled BURR 2 2 EREE
share-based payments - 354 - - 354
Transfer from share option HREREREERER
reserves to accumulated 2 R W
profits for forfeited options - (83) - 83 -
Dividend paid to the owners SIRARERRES
of the Company - - - (52,742) (52,742)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%F+-A=+—H 236,315 5,706 (4,669) 19,076 256,428
Profit for the year Kir ikl - - 54,306 54,306
Fair value adjustments on WEEARSREL
forward contracts designated ~ REIAAN DA BERE
as cash flow hedges - - 3,166 - 3,166
Reclassification of fair value gain A7 (B{E & i ¥ #H
from hedge reserve ENEER
to profit or loss - - (2,427) - (2,427
236,315 5,706 (3,930) 73,382 311,473
Exercise of share options TR 582 (178) - - 404
Recognition of equity-settled RUARRE 2 kS
share-based payments - 129 - - 129
Transfer from share option mEREREERER
reserves to accumulated a2 R AR
profits for forfeited options - (933) - 933 -
Dividend paid to the owners STRARRAIRRRE
of the Company - - - (28,060) (28,060)
At 31 December 2012 WZE-Z£+Z8=+—H 236,897 4,724 (3,930) 46,255 283,946
Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December RIBEARRIEOFETBETE - &2

2012, calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong AN ==
Companies Ordinance, amounted to US$46,255,000

(2011: US$19,076,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ER R B =
43 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 43 EEHEAE
Group KEHE
The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) FEERAFERAFERASERRRE
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during ERIEEE (BE)BEREZFHNT
the current and prior years:
Accelerated
tax Undistributed Other
depreciation profits assets Total
EITE ROE
BB ikl HitvgE ik
US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$000
FET FET FET =
At 1 January 2011 R-ZT——4%—HF—H 333 (1,872) (334) (1,873)
Charge to profit or loss (Note 14) B &t ASTH (A3 14) - (2,697) - (2,697)
At 31 December 2011 RZZE—F+-A=+—H 333 (4,569) (334) (4,570)
Charge to profit or loss (Note 14)  Eit A (A7 14) - (3,734) - (3,734)
At 31 December 2012 R=F——#+-A=+-H 333 (8,303) (334) (8,304)
Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC, BIBEPECEMSHE PEMBLAR -
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in BERARRLARZEHEBAE_ZTNGF
respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries, associates —A—BERIMEFERDKRER -
and jointly controlled entities from 1 January 2008 3,734,000 X T 2 EEFEZ L (ZF ——
onwards. Deferred tax charge of US$3,734,000 (2011: F :2,697,000% ) Bt AZE—=—F+=
US$2,697,000) on the undistributed earnings of PRC A=+—BItFEBFEATEMBE QR
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities N R R R E R RIRE R T 2 RIE
has been charged to the consolidated statement of TRIARS °
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December

2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

43 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continuesy 43 IEEFIE&E (&)

At 31 December 2012, the Group has unused tax
losses of US$65,338,000 (2011: US$46,692,000)
available for offset against future profits. No tax losses
has been recognised as deferred tax assets due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of US$4,763,000,
US$345,000 and US$6,503,000 that will expire in 2014,
2016 and 2017 (2011: US$5,706,000 and US$345,000
that will expire in 2014 and 2016), respectively. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 December 2012, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of US$680,000 (2011:
US$1,900,000). No deferred tax asset in relation to such
deductible temporary difference had been recognised.

il Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 31 December 2011, the Company acquired
additional 53.5% equity interest of Xiamen Pacific, a
former jointly controlled entity of the Company for a cash
consideration of US$21,555,000. Upon completion of
the transaction, Xiamen Pacific became a 95.2%-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Xiamen Pacific was
acquired so as to continue the expansion of the Group’s
manufacturing business.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the
date of acquisition were as follows:

44

FA 5 S R B =

W — Bt 8 2 A

R-ZT——F+-_A=+—8 K27
21,555,000 7T 2 B & R EILHE — A £ [
THEEE - EFTAFH53.5% R AR -
ERHTHE  BEPFIATERBARARES
95.2% AR HIME AR - REBKBEE
PIARF BB R AR RIS -

REEBFMUBZEERMER ZAEN
T

US$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment W - e ERE 27,569
Prepaid lease payments FEfFEE FIE 6,081
Inventories FE 19,656
Trade receivables (Note) FEUERIR (ML) 6,619
Prepayments and other receivables TEf R H AL W RIE 6,213
Tax recoverable GIE R 22
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRINIRS 7,699
Trade payables FETARFR (7,461)
Bills payable ENEE (7,481)
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R EAERBRK (4,081)
Amount due to intermediate holding company AR S NCIE O (23)
Tax payable FERIFRIE (1,143)
Bank borrowings RITER (14,790)
38,880

Note:

Hrat -

The fair value of trade receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to US$19,656,000. The gross contractual
amounts of these trade receivables acquired amounted to
US$19,656,000 at the date of acquisition. The best estimate
at the date of acquisition of the contractual cash flows not
expected to be collected was nil.

JEW IR R IEE H.2 2371 (B 18 4 19,656,000 %=
TT o RUGRER - BB EN AR S a4 AI1E
164 19,656,000 7T ° 1Z&R (EFTIE - TERIIL A
AIB 2 NG TFEEIN -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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44

222\ H

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

4 WE—MBLAE (&)

(Continued)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEEEZHE
US$'000
FET
Consideration transferred HEERE 21,555
Fair value of previously held equity interest in SR ERBERARIREL AR ER
the acquiree 16,039
Plus: non-controlling interests (4.8%) ho s FEPE R AR R M R (4.8%) 2,252
Less: net assets acquired B WEEEFRE (38,880)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEE 8 966

At the acquisition date, the Group’s previously held
41.7% equity interest of Xiamen Pacific, which was
previously classified as a jointly controlled entity, was
remeasured to fair value at the date of acquisition,
amounting to US$16,039,000 and the resulting gain of
US$860,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Xiamen Pacific
because the cost of the combination included a control
premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the
combination effectively included amounts in relation to
the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future
market development and the assembled workforce
of Xiamen Pacific. These benefits are not recognised
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

il Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R Bl =

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 4 WE—MBLAE (&)
(Continued)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Xiamen Pacific: KEEMKEMEREFE -
US$'000
FET
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 21,555
Less: bank balances and cash acquired B W IRITEBREIRE (7,699)
13,856
Since the acquisition of Xiamen Pacific was completed ARBEEMATR T —F+=A=1T—
on 31 December 2011, neither revenue was generated B 7er - EEFIKFINR BT E SR
from Xiamen Pacific nor profit for the year was SRFE R o
attributable to the additional business generated by
Xiamen Pacific.
Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January BN T ——F— A —HZTX - ~EE
2011, total group revenue for the year would have been HBE TS 731,952,683,000% 7T+ AEE
US$1,952,683,000, and profit for the year would have i A A& 159,791,000 £ 7T © BLRFRIEE R
been US$159,791,000. The pro forma information is EH2E  UIPRERON_F——F—A—
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an HEMUE 2 BEREEBREE RN - 65
indication of revenue and results of operations of the A RVERIRELE < F8A -
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2011, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.
In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit M R EE B RA R E R R WE
of the Group had Xiamen Pacific been acquired at FIRF 2 WHEE R AF AT - EFEIRIE
the beginning of the current year, the Directors have MsREEKE 2 AR BERTEDE -
calculated depreciation of property, plant and equipment e N EREMITE - TR MR AT B 15 TR

acquired on the basis of the fair values arising in the KPR ZEASE -
initial accounting for the business combination rather

than the carrying amounts recognised in the pre-

acquisition financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ER R P =

45 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 45 WHE—MEBLF
On 31 October 2011, the Group disposed of its entire RZE—F+A=1+—8 FEBCHE
equity interest of Qingdao Singamas to an independent FEEEBMeRETY —BIE=H 55
third party. The net assets of Qingdao Singamas at the BRREERMEEFENT

date of disposal were as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control KEEHENEENAES
was lost:
US$'000
FET
Prepayments and other receivables TES R EAth EUGRIR 544
Trade payables FERTARER ©)
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R E A AR IR 1)
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFE 541
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—MBAR I E :
Consideration received BRE 792
Net assets disposed of HECEEFE (541)
Gain on disposal & e 251
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMSR&FHE .
Cash consideration ReERE 792

Singamas Container Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ER R B =
46 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 46 HAERE
Company
VNN
2012 2011
—E—_fF —E——F
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx F=ET
Guarantees given to bank, in respect of MERITIEL ERIER ¢
banking facilities to:
The subsidiaries: MEBAR :
— amount guaranteed - EReE 810,606 591,317
- amount utilised -EEATHE 102,089 114,507
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 47 BARKIE
2012 2011
—F—_fF —T—%
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Group AEE
Capital expenditure in respect of the EETAVER R & B IRE
acquisition of property, plant and BB ZBEAYIZE - KB R
equipment contracted but not provided B2 EATH
for in the consolidated financial statements 74,474 64,658
Company P /N
Capital expenditure in respect of the EETHIMER A B TS Sk s
acquisition of property, ZHIEAME - S NEE
plant and equipment contracted but ZEREI
not provided for in the financial statements 12,783 -
Capital expenditure in respect of the MR R REINR A B R
additional capital contribution ZEREW
in a subsidiary - 22,500
12,783 22,500
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R R Bt
48 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 48 &2 HERE
Lessee ERAEAN
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the REER - AEBRAQGIRETAHEE 2
Company had outstanding commitments for future KEHER RREAEZ & PHEE 2 HEE]
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable FRINTE -
operating leases, which fall due as follows:
Group Company
&R b, /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—_F —T—F —E—_F —T—%
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 Us$000
FT£x FET FT£x FTEx
Land and buildings T REF
- within 1 year -RE—F 3,393 2,028 755 7583
—-inthe2ndto 5thyear -RE_FEFHF
inclusive (ERMEREEN) 5,457 4,173 252 1,005
—over 5 years -RAEF#E 220 574 - -
9,070 6,775 1,007 1,758

226\\\| 
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Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its container depot sites. Leases
are negotiated for an average period of 1 to 10 years
and rentals are fixed for an average of 1 to 3 years.

Lessor

At the end of the reporting period, certain leasehold
land and buildings of the Group and the Company with
an aggregate carrying amount of US$1,283,000 (2011:
US$1,325,000) were rented out under operating leases.
Property rental income earned during the year was
US$85,000 (2011: US$85,000). These properties have
committed tenants for the next year.

LEHSIEAKENTRER S ZHE
T MOBEFHORERIE10F  MESE
FHEFE/TEIF -

EAHBEA

RIBEER - AEBRARRIZE T TR
BFIRMAES1,283,000F L (ZF——
1,325,000 7L) DLAKERERD - ©
REE - BB EYEFSHESIA 85,000
FE(ZZT——F:85000%7T) - ZWE
EARKR—FREBELHTEAMAA -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R Bl =

48 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 48 &E&iHEXKIE %)

(Continued)

Lessor (Continued) 1’Eﬁl’ﬂfﬂk(é‘§)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the RBERAR - NEBRAQREHAEADIR
Company had contracted with tenants for the following B R KEHERTERBR 2 HER
future minimum payments under non-cancellable EANE S ONNE

operating leases:

Group and Company

AEBE AT
2012 2011
—E—CF —T——F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=
— within 1 year -RE—F 85 36
—in the second year -REZF - -
85 36
49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 49 BFHRENTXS
Group A&
Other than those disclosed in notes 30, 31 and 32 to the Brér e MRS R R M FES0 - 31 M B2 H R -
consolidated financial statements, details of transactions AEEBEEMEEST 2R SFBWELOT -

between the Group and other related parties are
disclosed below.

S
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 55 R R Bl =

49 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 49 FHRAEQARAXRG &)
(Continued)
Group (Continued) 2&% (&)
During the year, the Group entered into the following RER AEBERGEENR GEREEX
trading transactions with related parties that are not B)ERNUTEERS :

members of the Group:

2012 2011

—E—_F —T——%

US$’000 US$000

FEx FET

Sales to ultimate holding company MELIERARHEE M 714 3,526
Sales to fellow subsidiaries MRARWNEAFTEEER

(Note) (Hfat) 3,071 2,632
Sales to a related company M—BBEARHEER

(Note) (K1:#) 848 2,266

Rental income received from a fellow m—[R &M B A RIS

subsidiary (Note) (Hi7E) 85 85

Note: The fellow subsidiaries are Pacific International Lines Htat - FRBE 2 ml B FRFE (FE]) HIR A

(China) Ltd. and PIL Logistics (China) Co., Ltd. in which FIRAFEZE(FE)FRRA - X-FMH

228 |1

PIL, a substantial shareholder of the Company, also the
ultimate holding company of the Company, has 100%
effective interest.

PILHK was related because it was a company in
which Messrs. Chang Yun Chung, Teo Siong Seng
and Teo Tiou Seng, Directors of the Company and
also the controlling shareholders of PIL, a substantial
shareholder and the ultimate holding company of the
Company, have significant influence. PILHK became a
fellow subsidiary of the Company since 1 December
2012.

The balances with the related parties are disclosed in the

consolidated statement of financial position and notes

30, 31 and 32. All such balances are subject to normal
credit terms of 30 days (2011: 30 days).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Group (Continued)

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

49

FA 5 S R B =

EREQNAX S (&)
AEE(E)
FTEEEAS Z IR

REEEERAEMFBZERAS Z WMBH N
™

2012 2011

—F—_fF —ET——%F

US$’000 US$’'000

FEx FET

Short-term employee benefits kg HItE A 3,197 5277
Post-employment benefits ZHEIEIR ) 4 38
Share-based payment ARG RS 106 287
3,344 5,602

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
reviewed by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Company

The balances with ultimate holding company, associates,
jointly controlled entities and subsidiaries are disclosed
in the statement of financial position and notes 21, 30
and 31.

EENHMEIBERABZHRHEHEMEZ
BeREEARR LM SESRE -
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AR R M EE21 ~ 30 K231
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R 55 R R Bl =

50 EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

230\ H

1.

On 5 July 2012, Singamas Depots Holdings
Limited (“Singamas Depots”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into a
share transfer agreement with PIL under which
Singamas Depots agreed to acquire from PIL,
the 40% equity interest of Shanghai Huasing
International Container Freight Transportation Co.,
Ltd. (“Huasing”) which engages in the business
of providing container depot and related logistics
services, at a consideration of approximately
RMB110,699,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$17,502,000). PIL and Sinotrans Eastern Co.,
Ltd. were holding 40% and 60% equity interest in
Huasing respectively. As at 31 December 2012,
the transaction was pending for approval from
related government authority. The transaction
has been subsequently completed on 14 March
2013.

On 25 January 2013, the Company entered into
a share transfer agreement with an individual
third party to disposed of its 30% equity interest
of Yixing Goldrich Welding Metal Co., Ltd., an
associate of the Company, at a consideration
of approximately RMB1,490,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$237,000). The transaction has
been completed on 25 February 2013.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFMBRE

Group
AEE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+-HLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—F-°f —E——F —E-%F —ETNF —EENF
% % % % %
Sales Mix HEQE
(as a percentage of sales) (MSHEHEE M LA
Manufacturing: BUERTS
Dry freight yERMA 69 65 78 34 74
Refrigerated containers RREERM 13 13 22
Tank containers g 6 11
US domestic containers EENESER 5 13
Other specialised containers HiRERR
and container parts SRR 5 5 2 6 6
98 98 97 86 97
Logistics services: MR ART -
Hong Kong B 1 1 1 5 1
PRC (other than Hong Kong, B (B - BM
Macau and Taiwan) REBERIN 1 1 2 9 2
2 2 3 14 3
Total ek 100 100 100 100 100
TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs
HRE %R HREAR HREAR HREER HRIZER
Production volume fEE
20-foot containers 0REEA 238,126 288,524 212,144 34,373 274,047
40-foot containers JOREFER 47,700 60,480 31,214 7,804 58,564
40-foot high cube containers 40 &= B E5AS 276,488 224,214 351,044 24,588 211,318
45-foot high cube containers 45 RBF 55 7,500 8,220 4,644 1,419 3,939
Others Hith 30,288 66,576 37,260 18,416 19,532
600,102 648,014 636,306 86,600 567,400
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

REMBHE
Group
AEH
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
k= —T——F —T-FF ZETNE —TT)NF
Us$'000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$'000
TEn FEL TEL TEL FET
Revenue BEH 1,536,608 1,817,718 1,373,173 274,647 1,385,269
Profit (loss) from operations manTl(58) 116,734 224,188 121,787 (49,633) 72,869
Finance costs HBER (19,676) (19,121) (11,503) (10,027) (28,108)
Investment income BERA 4,421 3,722 1,350 971 2,046
Reclassification of fair value WETAEHIA
gain (loss) of derivative BOTEERIA
financial instruments ZAnfEE
designated as hedging B (B18) Em
instruments from hedge REENEER
reserve 2,427 (7,734) - - -
Changes in fair value of PRRBAERS
derivative financial instruments ~ B9674 @R T A
classified as held for trading ZOREEED - 931 (1,882) 5818 (30,457)
Share of results of associates ~ EMLEE & AR Z &7 575 112 569 665 1,292
Share of results of jointly R RIEH S
controlled entities Z(E8) & (1,602) 2,638 6,940 (6,813) 532
Profit (loss) before taxation BRERTER (B18) 102,879 204,736 117,261 (59,019) 18,174
Income tax expense FSHIE (33,948) (50,909) (14,467) (2,896) (6,900)
Profit (loss) for the year KEEFH (BE) 68,931 153,827 102,794 (61,915) 11,274
Attributable to: &l
Owners of the Company ADRIRR 60,346 138,641 92,541 (51,914) 4515
Non-controlling interests JEVERRAR SR R 8,585 15,186 10,253 (10,001) 6,759
68,931 153,827 102,794 (61,915) 11,274
Earnings (loss) per share BREF (B1R)
Basic EA US2.49 cents 1l US5.74 cents AL US3.84 cents AL US2.97) cents Al US0.51 cent 341l
Diluted ik US2.49 cents £1  US5.73 cents =ML US3.84 cents =ML US2.97) cents Al US0.51 cent Z41L
Assets and Liabilities EERARE
Total assets BEE 1,465,205 1,386,780 1,251,290 737,192 907,083
Total liabilties BakE (816,175) (774,578) (742,723) (333,121) (542,359)
649,030 612,202 508,567 404,071 364,724
Equity attrioutable to AAFRREE R
owners of the Company 579,162 545,545 460,113 364,484 307,794
Non-controlling interests FERBRFER 69,868 66,657 48,454 39,587 56,930
Total equity EniBE 649,030 612,202 508,567 404,071 364,724
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SINGAMAS CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED

19th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Tel E5: (852) 2598 7831

Fax f8H.: (852) 2598 7847

E-mail = #: info@singamas.com

Website #83it: http://www.singamas.com
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